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Independent auditor’s report

To the Board of Directors of ReNew Private Limited (“RPL™)
Report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements
Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of ReNew Private Limited (the “Company™),
which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at March 3 1, 2025, and the consolidated statement of
profit and loss including the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policies. As stated in
note 2.1 the accompanying consolidated financial statements, these consolidated financial statements
have been prepared solely for the information and use of trustees of Senior secured notes issued by a
fellow subsidiary of the Company.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Company as at March 31, 2025 and its financial performance and
its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 as amended (collectively hereinafter referred to as “Ind AS™).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit
of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ International Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) (IESBA Code) together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in
India, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of management and the Board of Directors for the consolidated financial
statements

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with Ind AS, this includes the design, implementation and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

3.R.Batliboi & Co LLP, & Limited Liability Partnershlp with LLP 1denti ¥ No. AAB-d204
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the conselidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and 1o issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to frand or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
errer, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

¢+ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opiion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continve as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
contro] that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them afl relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions
taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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Other Matter- Restriction on distribution or use

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared by the management of RPL and our report
on these consolidated financial statements has been issued, solely for the purpose stated in note 2.1 of
the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements, and accordingly, should not be used, referred to
or distributed for any other purpose or to any other party.

For 8.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accaumtants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

per Naman Agarwal

Partner

Membership Number: 502405 %
UDIN: 25502405BMLBWB3315
Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: July 29, 2025




ReNew Private Limited
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025
{Amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Capital work in progress
Goodwill
Other intangible assets
Intangible assets under development
Right of use assets
Investments
Financial assets
Investment
Derivative instruments
Trade receivables
Loans
Others
Deferred tax asseis (net)
Prepayments
Non-current tax assets (net)
Contract assets
Other non-current assets
Total non-current assets

Current assets

Inventories

Financial assets
Investments
Derivative instruments
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalent
Bank balances other than cash and cagh equivalent
Loans
Others

Prepayments

Contract assets

Other current assets

Total current assets

Assets held for sale

Total current assets

Total assets
Equity and liabilities

Equity
Equity share capital
Other equity
Securities premium
Capital reserve
Debenture redemption reserve
Hedge reserve
Foreign currency translation reserve
Retained losses
Equity attributable to owners of the parent
Non-controlling interests
Total equity

As at As at

Notes 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
5 5,95.841 510,175
5 1.40,489 1.59,167
6 11,583 11,583
6 24259 25,854
6 92 56
7 14,497 12,902
8 387 2,862
9 247 12
15 3,163 2,561
¥ 7.528 8,087
9 0 121
9 3,179 4,079
10 7,251 5,585
12 1,295 897
8,769 8,172
53 2,724 1.500
13 7,718 4,854
$,29,022 758,567
14 4,051 1,689
9 264 1,502
15 3,932 970
1 16,766 13,772
i6 39,922 25.621
16 27,095 35,761
9 679 487
9 15,820 18.804
2 1,514 1,534
53 108 215
13 3,599 3,214
1,13,750 1,03,569
38 3,963 -
1,17,713 1,03,569
9,46,735 8,62,136
17 4,791 4,791
18A 1,27,415 1,27.415
18B 390 (34)
18C 2,038 1,355
18D (812) (2,196)
18F 8 @)
18G (6,901) (12,522)
1,26,929 1,18,807
14,263 12,466
1,41,102 131,273




ReNew Private Limited

Conselidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025
{Amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

Non-current liahilities
Financial {iabilities
Borrowings
Lease liabilities
Derivative instruments
Others
Deferred government grant
Provisions
Deferred tax liabilities (net)
Other non-current ligbilities
Total nen-current liabilities

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Lease [iabilities
Trade payables
Derivative instruments
Other current financial liahilities
Deferred government grant
Other current liabilities
Provisions
Current tax liabilities (net)

Liabilities directly associated with the assets held for sale

Total current liabilities
Total liabilities

Total equity and lLiabilities

Summary of material accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial staterents

As per our report of even date
For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP

Firm Registration No.: 301003E/E300005

Chariered Accountants
ﬁi"

per Naman Agarwal
Partner

Membership No.: 502403
Place: Gurugram

Date: 29 July 2025

As at As at
Notes 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
19 5.66,159 551,204
20 8,282 7.477
26 217 215
27 1,015 1,851
21 181 192
22 9,792 10,773
10 22,409 16,371
23 634 174
6,08.689 5,88,257
24 1,39,402 82,067
20 967 858
7.861 8,765
26 604 321
27 41,741 45,485
21 11 11
28 5,528 4331
29 321 337
378 431
1,96,813 142,606
38 41 -
1,96,854 1,42,606
8.05,543 7,306,863
9,46,735 8,62,136
4.1.1
For and on behaif of the Board of Directors of
ReNew Private Limited
(formerly known as ReNew Power Private Limited)
W P b—ﬂ/ %
L {
Kailash Vaswani Ashish Jain
(Director & Chief Financial Officer) (Company Secretary)

DIN- 06902704
Place: Gurugram
Date: 29 July 2025

Membership No.; F6508
Place: Gurugram
Date: 29 July 2025




ReNew Private Limited
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

Notes

Income

Revenue 30
Late payment surcharge from customers

Other income 31
Total income (i)

Expenses

Cost of raw material and components consumed

Increase in inventories of finished goods 32
Employee benefits expense 33
Other expenses 34
Total expenses (ii)

Earning before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (i) - (ii)

Depreciation and amortisation expense 33
Finance costs 36

Profit before exceptional items, share of gain/(loss} of jointly controlled entities and associates
and tex

Share of loss of jeintly controlled entities and associates
Profit before exceptional items and tax
Exceptional items 38
Profit before tax
Tax expense
Current tax
Deferred tax
Profit for the year (@)

Other comprehensive income

Other comprehensive income that may be reclassified to profit or loss jn subsequent years (net
of tax)
Net gain / (loss) on cash flow hedges
Net gain / (loss) on cash flow hedge reserve
Net loss on cost of hedge reserve
Total net gain / (foss) en cash flow hedges

Income tax effect

Exchange differences on transfation of foreign operations

Net other comprehensive loss that wili be reclassified to profit or loss in Subsequent years (b)

For the year ended

31 March 2025

— 31 March 304 __

97,074 81,330
7 1451
9,040 9,378
106,121 92,159
10,468 3,844
(1,762) -
3,530 2,536
12,975 14,154
25211 20,534
80,910 71,625
20,056 17,102
51,395 46,241
9,459 8,282
(15 (155
9,444 8,127
3,088 3,693
12,532 11,820
1514 981
4,047 3015
6,971 1,824
627 (2308)
(709 1476)
(82) (2,784)

10 626
72 (2,158)

10 0

10 [
(62) (2,158)




ReNew Private Limited
Consclidated Statement of Profit or Loss for the vear eaded 31 March 2025
{Amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended

Notes 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent years
{net of tax):
Re-measurement gain / (loss) of defined benefit plan 50 (18)
Income tax effect (10) 4
Net other comprehensive gain / (luss) niot to be reciassified to profit or loss in subsequent (<} 40 {14)
periods
Other comprehensive loss for the year, net of taxes (@) =(b} + (c} (22) (2,172)
Total comprehensive gain for the year, net of taxes (a) +(d) 6,949 5,652
Profit attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 6,359 7,511
Non-controiling interests 412 313
Total comprehensive gain attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 6,567 5,391
Non-controlling interests 382 261
Earning per share: (face value per share: INR 10)
Basic and diluted profit attributable to otdinary equity holders of the Parent (in TNR) 37 13.69 15.58
Summary of material accounting policies 4.1.1
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financi al statements
As per our report of even date
For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Firt Registration No.- 301003E/E300005 ReNew Private Limited
Chartered Accountants (formerly known as ReNew Power Private Limited)

per Naman\Agarwal | Kailash Vaswani
Partner

Membership No.: 502405 DIN- 06902704
Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram

Date: 29 July 2025

Date: 29 July 2025

(Director & Chief Financial Officer)

Ashish Jain
(Company Secretary}
Membership No.: F650f
Place: Gurugram

Date” 29 July 2025




ReNew Private Limited
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended 31 March 2025
{Amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax

Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Finance costs
Depreciation and amortisation
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (net)
Operation and maintenance reserve
Share based payments
Interest income
Others
Operating profit before working eapital changes

Working capital adjustments:
Decrease in trade receivables
Decrease’ {increase) in hon eurrent trade receivables
Increase in inventories
Increase in other current financial assets
Increase in other non-current financial assets
Decrease / (increase) in other curent assets
Decrease / (increase) in other non-current assets
Increase in prepayments
Increase in in contract assets
Increase in other current financial liabilities
Decrease in other current liabilities
Increase / (decrease) in other non-cuent liabilities
Increase in trade payables
Increase in provisions

Cash generated from operations
Inceme tax paid (net)
Net cash generated from operating activities {(a)

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and right of use assets
Sale of property, plant and equipment

Investment in / (redemption of) deposits having residuak matarity moere than 3 months and mutual funds

Deferred consideration received during the year
Disposal of subsidiary, net of cash dispesed

Amount paid to Holding Company towards equity settled stock option plans (refer note 18E)

Purchase consideration paid

Proceeds from interest received

Loans given

Investments in optionally convertible debentures
Investrent in jointly controlled entities

Net cash used in investing activities ()]

Cash flows from financing activities

Payment for acquisition of interest from non-controlling interest

Payment of lease liabilities (including payment of interest expense)

Proceeds from shares and compulsory convertible debentures issued by subsidiaries#
Proceeds from long-term borrowings

Repayment of long-term borrowings

Proceeds from/(repayment of loan) from refated parties

Proceeds from short ferm interest-bearing loans and bomrowings

Repayment of short term interest-bearing loans and borrowings

Interest paid (including settlement gain / toss on derivative instruments)

Net cash generated/{used) from/in financing activities (c}

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash cquivaients (a) + (b) + (¢)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

12,532 11820
50,436 44376
20,056 17102
(3,088) (3,693)
(868) 158
547 159
{4.454) (5.067)
1,099 IAg
76,260 68374
(3,033) 6,353
860 1,464
(2,281) (754)
974 (M7
(284) (7}
{413) (1,032)
(10} kil |
(676) {438}
(934) (4,152)

- 628

1,203 128
460 1M
(964) 2913
(19 75
71,143 73,963
(2,223) (3,202)
68,920 70,671
(93,015) (1,353,729
11,631 {17,171)
642 1,126
4777 5,141
(B38) -

& {1,538)

4115 1,54
(312) (533)
(115) m2
(1,184) (10)
£74,299) (1,62,792)
(333) (137)
(663) {588}
1.829 7.607
93,329 1.68,707
(45,598) {67.802)
(395) 7,092
2,64,585 2,15,750
{2,37,281) (1,98,219)
(55,792 (51,036)
19,679 81,354
14,300 {20,767)
25,621 36,388
39921 25,621




ReNew Private Limited
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended 31 March 2025
{Amounts in INR millions, untess otherwise stated)

Components of cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cheque on hand

Balances with banks;

- On current accounts

- Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months
Total cash and cash eguivalents

For the year ended

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

14,586 10,739
25,335 14,382
39,921 25621

# includes INR Nil (March 31, 2024- INR 4,478) that Tepresents proceeds from debentures 13sued by subsdiaries during the year ended March 31, 2025.
* includes INR 11,251 (March 3 1, 2024: INR 9,853) that has been capitalised.

Changes in Habitities arising from financing activities

Particalars Opening balance Closing balance asat
0 £
asat1 April 202 | C3sh flows (net) ther Changes 31 March 2025

Long—te_nu bmowmgs (including current maturities and net of ancitlary 581,448 17730 2,169 6.27009
borrowings cost incurred)

Short-term borrowings 51,823, 26,909 {180 78,3552

Totai liabilities from financing activities 6,33,271 74,639 (2,349) 7,08561

Particolars Opening balance Closing balance as at
th N
asatt Aprit2023 | CoEfows(uet) | Other Changes 31 March 2024

Long-lc:nn barmynngs (including cutrent maturities and net of ancillary 429,528 100,905 51015 5.81.448
borrowings cost incurred)

Short-term borrowings 14,485 24,623 12,715 51,823

Total liabilities from financing activities 4,44,013 1,25,528 63,7304 6,33,171
* Including adjustment for ancillary borrowing cost, unrealised/realised foreign exchange gain/loss,

Refer note 40 for movement in lease liabilitics,

The cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in the Ind AS 7 "Statement of Cash Fiows".

The accompanying nietes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statemenis
As per our report of even date
For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Firm Registration No.: 301003E/E300005 ReNew Private Limited
Chartered Accountants (formerly known as ReNew Power Private Limited)

a‘/__" » M i}_
o W

per{Naman Agarwal Kaifash Vaswani Ashish Jain
Partner (Director & Chief Financial Officer) {Company Secretary)
Membership No.: 502405 DIN- 06902704 Membership No : F6508
Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram

Date. 29 July 2025

Date: 29 July 2025

Date: 29 July 2025




ReNew Private Limited
Consslidated Statcment af Changes in Equity far the year ended 31 March 2025
Amounis i INR mullons, unless othermise sigsed)

Attributable ts the equily holders of the Parent

Reserves and Surpiu ems of ather comprehensive income

Coatrib ™ 10D - Nen-Controlling

from Hodding » redemption Foreign Tota] Interesta (NCD)
Compuny Securities Retalned lnsses reserve Capital Hedge currency

Ppremitm reserve reserve# | iranslatlon

reserve

Particulary Equity share
capital

Tatul Equity

7,606
1y

[As at | April 2023 4,791 - 1.27415 i2)

Profit fur the = car

[Other comprehensive meome / {loss) {net of taxes}

Total Comprehenslve lacome - 2
Shere bassd pavment expense Gy the vear Hus -
Transferred to payable io Holding Compeny aganst stock oplon - (RAR) - 4 N
Shires and comypdsory convertible debeniures v by wbediry . | ] d 47 1765
Acquigiion of wierest by noncontrolhag wierest in subsidusies - - ] - ' (3
| AcquisitionDhsposal of micrest fromite non-controlimg imerest . P B 2513 2% A7) 16
Amounl transferred to he carrving emount of propent. plant gnd
equpment (eet of 1ax )

[ Transfer froin debenture rodempton rewre | nel = 5 i)
Arat 11 March H124 | 4,7 = 1,27.415] (12,522) 1,355 [ET) 13,196

1,360 {287)

261

LIRROT|

1,158,807

A5 at | April 2024 4,791 [1] 1,77.415] {§2,522) 1,355 34y (2,196)|
o N 6,559

IProfit for the vear - - - 6,359 N
Oner comprohensve meome | |0rsa! net af texes) - - - 40| -] - (41}
Total Comprehensive licome - E B 6,399 o B (43)
Share bascd payment cxpense for the vear (refer Note 41) - 1,312 - 0%, - - -
Amoumt peid 1o Holding Company agawmst stock ophon {838) - B E - -
Transfeired to pavable o Holding Company agamst stock apluon -] (674) B - -
Shares issued by subsiduary -] N L B

Trmsaciiors with non controlling imierest g ] (322 178 424 E
Amousy transferned to the camyiRg amount of properiy, planl and
equipment {rel of lay)

Trensler from debentors redenplion reserve (a1} - - - 759 759, - -
A at 31 March 2025 4.791 ) 1.27,415 (6,901 2,038 90| (E12)

# meludss cash flow hedge reserve and cost of hedpe reserve

6566/
1615
1838)
(674

| 820/
26/ (1%}

1427 &

1,26.939 14,263

The eccompanying nntes arc an miegrel part of the consohdated [Cancial stalements

A3 per our report of evendate
For B.R. Batlibol & Co, LLP For and oo bebalf of the Board of Directors of
] wi N 301003 E/BEXR005 ReNew Privade Limited
{Tormerly known a3 ReNew Power Private Limited) .

per Naman Kailush Vaywaoi Ashish Jain

Partner (Directoy & Chief Financial Officer) (Company Secretary)
Membershif No - 502405 DIN- 6202704 Memberghip No F6508
Place (G Place Gurugrmm Place Gurugram

Date 20 July 2025 Pate 29 Julv 2025 Dale 2% July 2025




ReNew Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
{Amounts in INR millions. unless otherwise stated)

1

2.1

2.2

Corporate Information

ReNew Private Limited (‘the Company’} is a private limited company domicilked in India and incorporated in India having CIN
U40300DL2011PTC291527. The registered office of the Company is located at 138, Ansal Chamber - 11 Bhikaji Cama Place, New Delhi-110066.
The Consolidated Financial Statements comprise financial statements of the Renew Power Private Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively, the
Group) for the year ended 31 March 2025. The Group i3 carrymg out business activities refating to generation of power through non-conventional
and renewable energy sources.

Information on the Group's structure is provided in nete 42 and information on other related party relatienships of the Group is provided in note

43
The Conselidated Financial Statements of the Group have been approved for issue by the Group's Board of Directors on 29 July 2025.

Basis and parpose of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under
the Companies (indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) as applicable to the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have heen prepared on a historical cost basis, except fot the following assets and liabilities which have been
measured at fair value:

- Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments)
- Share based payments

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting policics, set out below and were consistently
applied to ali periods presented untess otherwise stated. Refer notz 4.2 for new and amended standards and interpretations adopted by the Group.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group are financial statements which have been prepared for the purpose of submission to the trusice
of the US$400,000,000 4.5% Senior Secured Notes due 2027, issued by a fellow subsidiary.

Absolute amounts less than [NR 500,000 are appearing in the consolidated financial statements as "0 dug to presentation 1n millions

Basis of consolidation

The censolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries as at March 31, 2025. Control is
achieved when the Group is exposed, or has nights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee. Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has:

- Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee)
- Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and
- The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result 1n control. To support this presumption and when the Group has less than a
majerity of the voting or similar rights of an nvestee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

-The contractual arrangements with the other vote holders of the investee
-Rights arising from other contractual arrangements
-The Group's voting rights and potential voting rights

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Growp foses
control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or dispesed of during the year are included in the
consolidated financial statements from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to fransactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCT) are attributed to the equity holders of the parent of the Group and to the
non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries lo bring their accounting policies in line with the Group’s
accounting polictes, The financial statements of all subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting-peg that of the Company for
consolidation purposes.




ReNew Private Limited
Notes fo Consolidated Financial Statements for the vear ended 31 March 2025
(Amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

3.1

4.L1

a)

The coensolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar
circumstances. If a member of the Group uses accounting policies other than those adopted in the consolidated financial statements for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to that Group member’s financial statements in preparing the
consolidated financial statements to ensure conform ity with the Group's accounting policies.

The financiai statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drewn up to same reporting date as that of ReNew Power Private
Limited ( the Company} i.e. year ended on 31 March, When the end of the reporting period of the parent is different from that of a subsidiary, the
subsidiary prepares, for consolidation purposes, additional financial information as of the same date as the financial statements of the parent to
enable the parent to conselidate the financial information of the subsidiary, unless it is impracticable to do so.

Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of consclidated financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of revenues, expenses, assels and liabilities and the accompanying disclosures. Unceriainty about these assum ptions and estimates could
fesult in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

In the process of applying the accounting policies management has made certain Judgments, estimates and assumptions. The key assumptions
concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and lizbilitics within the next financial year, are described below. The Group based its assumptions
and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions abeut
future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond control of the Group. Such changes
are reflecied in assumptions when they occur.

Estimates and assumptions

a} Impairment of goodwill for Ostro group of CGUs

The key assumptions used to determine the recoverable amount for the different CGUSs or group of CGUs including the Ostro Group of CGUs
where goodwill has been aflocated are disclosed and further explained in Note 6. The impairment assessments are based on a range of estimates
and assumptions, including future estimates of revenues, costs and discount rates as more fully described in the said Note 6

Significant accounting judgements
Note 54(a) below describes accounting judgements applied with respect to the contracts entered for transmission projects under the Build, Gwa,
Operate and Maintain (BOOM) model, where there has been a change of law 1n the previous year.

Summary of material acconnting policies
The following are the material accounting policies applied by the Group in preparing its consolidated financial statements:

Business combirations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an aequisition is measured as the aggregate of the
consideration transfemed measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets, Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred and included in other expenses

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the acquired set of activities and assets include an input and a substantive process that
together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The acquired process is considered substantive if it is critical to the ability to
continue producing outputs, and the inputs acquired include an organised workforce with the hecessary skills, knowledge, or experience o
perform that process or it significantly contributes to the ability to continue producing outputs and is considered unique or scarce or cannot he
replaced without significant cest, effort, or delay in the ability to continue producing outputs.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their acquisition date fair values For this
purpose, the liabilities assumed include contingent liabilities representing present obligation and they are measured at their acquisition fair values
irrespective of the fact that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is not probable. However, the following assets and liabitities
acquired in & business combination are measured at the basis indicated below:
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- Deferred tax assets or liabilities and the assets or liabilities related o employee benefit arrangements are recognised and measured in accordance
with Ind AS 12 Income Tax and Ind AS 19 Employee Benefits respectively.

- Liabilities or equity instruments related to share based payment arrangements of the acquiree or share — based payments arrangements of the
Group entered into to replace share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree are measured in accordance with Ind AS 102 Share-hased
Payment at the acquisition date.

- Assets {or disposal groups) thal are ciassified as held for sale in accordance with Ind AS 105 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations are measured in accordance with that standard.

- Reacquired rights are measured at a value deterntined on the basis of the remaining contractual term of the related contract Such valuation does
not consider potential renewal of the reacquired right.

- Potential tax effects of temporary differences and carry forwards of an acquiree that exist at the acquisition date or arise as a result of the
acquisition are accounted in accordance with Ind AS 12

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financia) assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation in
accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This inchudes the separation of
embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equity interest is re-measured at its acquisition date fair value and any
resulting gain or loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss or OCl, as appropriate

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent consideration
classified as an asset or Liability that is a financial instrument and within the scope of Ind AS 109 Financial Tnstruments, is measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recogised in the statement of profit or loss in accordance with Ind AS 109. Other contingent consideration that 15 not
within the scope of Ind AS 109 is measured at fair value at each reporting date with changes m fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not re-measured at subsequent reporting dates and subsequent its settlement is accounted for within

equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount recognised for non-
controlling interests, and any previous interest held, over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the net
assets acquired 1s in excess of the aggregate consideration transferred, the Group re-assesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets
acquired and all of the labilities assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure the amounts to be recognised at the acquisition date. If the
reassessment still tesults in an excess of the fair value of net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred, then the pam is
recognised in OCI and accumulated in equity as capital reserve, However, if there is no clear evidence of bargain purchase, the entity recognises
the gain directly in equity as capital reserve, without routing the same through OCI.

After initial recogrition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses, For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired int a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquires are assigned to those units.

A cash generating unit to which goodwitl has been allocated is tested for impairment annually on 31 March, or more frequently when there js an
indication that the unit may be impaired. Tf the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is less than s carrying amount, the impainment
loss is aflocated first to reduce the carrving amount of arty goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in the statement of profit ot loss. An Impairment
loss recognised for goodwill 1s not reversed in subsequent periods.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with
the disposed operation is included in the carrying amount of the operatien when determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative values of the disposed operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained
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b)

Investment in associates and jointly controlled entities (joint ventures)
An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence, Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint contral over those policies.

A joint venture is 2 type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights 1o the net assets of the
Joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharin g control.

The considerations made in determining significant influence or Joint contrel are similar to those necessary to determine control aver subsidiaries
The Group’s investment in its associate and joint venture are accounted for using the equity method.

Under the equity method, the investment in an associate or a Jjoint venture is initially recognised at cost. The carmying amount of the investment is
adjusted to recognise changes in the Group's share of net assets of the associate or joint venture since the acquisition date Goodwill refating to the
associate or joint venture is included in the carrying amount of the investment and is not tested for impairment separately.

The statement of profit er toss reflects the Group’s share of the results of aperations of the associate or joint venture. Any change in OCI of those
investees is presented as part of the Group's OCI, Tn addition, when there has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the associate or
Joint venture, the Group recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in the statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses
resulung from transactions between the Group and the associate or Jont venture are eliminated to the extent of the interest in the associate or Joimt
venture,

The aggregate of the Group’s share of profit or Joss of an asseciate and a Joint venture is shown on the face of the statement of profit or loss and
represents profit or loss after tax and non-controlling interests in the subsidiaries of the associate o Jjoint venture

The financial statements of the associate or joint venture are prepared for the same reporting period as the Group When necessary. adjustments
are made to bring the accounting pelicies in line with those of the Group.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise an impairment loss on its investment in its
associate or joint venture. At each reporting date, the Group determines whether there is objective evidence that the investment in the associate or
Joint venture js impaired. If there is such evidence, the Group calculates the amouni of impairment as the difference between the recoverable
amount of the associate or joint venture and its carrying value, and then recognises the loss within ‘Share of profit of an associate and a joint
venture' in the statement of profit or loss.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint control over the Joint venture, the Group measures and recognises any retained
investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon toss of significant influence or joint
control and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal 1s recognised in profit or loss.

Interests in joint operations

A joint aperation is a joint arrangsment whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the assets, and obligations for
the liabilities, relating 1o the arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

When a Group entity undertakes its activities wnder Joint operations, the Group as a joint operator recognises in relation to its interest in a jomnt
operation;

* its assets, including uts share of any assets held Jointhy;

» its liahilities, including its share of any liabilities incurred Jointly,

* it revenue from the sale of its share of the output anising frem the joint operation,

* its share of the revenue from the sale of the output by the Joint gperation, and

* 168 expenses, including its share of any expenses incurred fointly

The Gioup accounts for the assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses relating to its interest in a joint operation in accordance with the Ind AS
applicable to the particular assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses.

When a Group entity transacts with a joint operation in which a Group entity is a joint operator (such as a sale or contribution of assets), the
Group is considered to be conducting the transaction with the other parties to the foint operation, and gans and losses resulting from the
transactions are recogmised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements only to the extent of other parties’ interests in the joint operation

When a Group entity transacts with a joint operation in which a Group entity is a joint operator (such as a purchase of assets), the Group does not
recogrisq its share of the gains and losses until it resells those assets to a third party.
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¢)

€)

€)

Current versus non-current classification

The Group segregates assets and liabilities into current and non-current categones for presentation in the statement of financial position after
considering its normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in IAS I, “Presentation of financial statements™ For this purpose, current assets
and liabilities include current portion of non-current assets and Habilities tespectively. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are always classified as
non-current.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation / settlement in cash and cash equivalents The
Group has identified period upto twelve months as their operating cycle for classification of their current assets and liabilities

Fair value measurement
The Group measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each reporting date

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes
place either:

* It the principal market for the asset or liability, or
* In the absence of a prncipat market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or [iabihty

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by ihe Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or lizbility,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. The fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a
market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the congolidated financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

* Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

* Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement 1s directly or indirectly
observable

* Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the fowest level tnput that 15 sighificant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated financial staternents on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers
have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the far value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reperting period.

The management of the Group determines the policies and procedures for beth recurring fair value measurement, such as unquoted financial
assets, and for non-recurring measurement, such as assets held For sale.

At gach reporting date, the management of the Group analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are required to be
remeasured or re-assessed as per the accounting policies of the Group.

This note summarises the accounting policy for determination of fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given n the relevant notes as
following:

- Disclosures for significant estimates and assumptions (Refer Note 3.1)

- Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy (Refer Note 46)

- Financial instruments (inchiding those carried at amortised cost) (Refer Note 45 and 46)

Revenue recognition

(i) Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers 1s recognised when contro! of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services, The Group has generaily concluded
that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements, because it typically controls the goods or services before transferring them to the customer.

This space has been left blank intentionally




ReNew Private Limited
Notes to Conselidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

a) Sale of Power

Income from supply of power is recognised over time on the supply of units generated from plant to the grid as per terms of the Power Purchase
Agreement ('PPA') entered mto with the customers.

The Group considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are separate performance obligations to which a portion of the
transaction price needs to be allocated In determining the transaction price for the sale of power, the Group considers the effiects of variable
consideration and existence of a significant financing component. There is only one performance obligation in the arrangement and therefore,
allocation of transaction price is not required.

b) Sale of goods

Revenue is adjusted for variable consideration such as discounts, rebates, refunds, credits, price concessions, meentives, liquidated damages or
other simitar deductions in & contract except when it is highly probable it will not be provided The amount of revenue excludes any amount
collected on behalf of third partics.

The Group recognises Tevenue at the point in time when the products are delivered to the customer, which is when the control over product is
transferred to the customer.

In revenue arrangements with multiple performance obligations, the Group accounts for individual products and services separately if they are
distinct — i.e,, if a product or service 1s separately idenufiable from other items in the arrangement and i a customer can benefit from it. The
consideration 15 allocated between separate products and services in the arrangement based on their stand-atone selling prices.

There is no significant financing component in revenue recognition.

¢) Income from services (management consultancy)

The Group recognises revenue from projects management/technical consultancy over time because the customer simultaneously receives and
cansumes the benefits provided to them, as per the terms of the agreement entered with the customer

d) Sale of equipment

Revenue from sale of equipment is recognised at the poini in time when controf of the asset is transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of
the equipment. The Group considers whether there are other premises in the contract that are separate performance obl 1gations 1o which a portion
of the transaction price needs to be allocated. In determining the transaction price for the sale of equipment, the Group considers the effects of
variable consideration, the existence of significant financing components, non-cash consideration, and consideration payable to the customer.
There is only one performance obligation in the arrangement and therefore, ailocation of transaction price is not required

¢) Income from operation and maintenance services
Revenue from operation and maintenance services are recopnised over time as per the terms of agreement.

f) Revenue from Engineering Procurement and Construction (“*EPC") Contracts

Revenue from provisien of service is recognised over a period of time on the percentage of completion method. Percentage of completion is
determined as a proportion of cost incurred to date to the total cstimated contract cost. Profit on contracts is recognised on percentage of
completion method and losses are accounted as scon as these are anticipated. In case the total cost of a contract based on technical and other
estimates is expected to exceed the corresponding contract value such expected loss is provided for. The revenne on account of extra claims on
construction contracts are accounted for at the time of acceptance in principle by the customers due to uncertainties attached.

Contract revenue earned in excess of billing has been reflected under other current assets and billing in excess of contract revenue has been
reflected under current liabilities in the balance sheet,

Variable consideration

If the consideration in a contract inclides a variable amount, the Group estimates the amount of consideration to which it will be entitled in
exchange for transferring the goods or service to the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained wntit
it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not oceur when the associated
uncertainty with the variable consideration 1s subsequently resolved. To estimate the variable consideration, the Group applies appropriate method
given under Ind AS 115.

- Rebates
In some PPAs, the Group provide rebates in invoice if payment is made before the due date. These are adjusted against revenue and are offset

against amounts payable by the customers.

- Significant financing component
Significant financing component for customer contracts is cansidererd for the length of time between the customers” payment and the transfer of
the performance obligation, as well as the prevailing interest rate in the market. The transaction price for these contracts is discounted, using the
interest rate implicit in the contract. This rate is commensurate with the tate that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction between
the Group and the customer at contract inception,

e ———
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£) Revenue on account of service concession arrangements

The Group has entered into Transmission Services Agreements (TSAs) pursuant to which it's fransmissien assets must meet the minimum
availabality criteria. The Group's performance obligation under the TSAs is to provide power transmission services. The performance obligation is
satisfied over time as the customers receive and consume the benefits provided by the Group. Accordingly, the revenue from power Gransmission
services is recognised over time based on the tariff charges approved under the respective tariff orders and includes unbilled revenues acerued up
to the end of the respective reporting period.

The total consideration which is expected 10 be received throughout the license period is allocated to construction services and to operating
services based on the proportional fair vahue figures of those services.

a} The value of the construction services is determined according to construction costs, plus a standard construction margin, according t the
Company’s estimate

b} The value of the operating services is determined according to operating costs, plus a standard margin, according to the Company’s estimate

{(if) Contract balances:

(a) Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred fo the customer, If the Group performs by transfemng
goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is duge, a contract asset is recognised for the earned
consideration that is conditional. Contract assets are subject to impairment assessment. Refer to accounting policies in section (p) Impairment of
non-tinancial assets.

{b) Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to 2 customer for which the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration 1s due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration befare the Group transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract
liability is recognised when the payment is made or the paymeni 1s due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when
the Group performs under the contract. (i.e., transfers control of the related gouds or services to the customer)

(c)} Trade reccivables

A receivable represents the Group's tight to an amount of consideration that is unconditional {i.e,, only the passage of time is required before
payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial assets in sectiorn {u) Financial mstruments - initial recognition and
subsequent measurement

(iii) Others

(a) Income from compensation for loss of revenue
Income from compensation for loss of revenue is recognised afier certainty of receipt of the same is established.

f)  Foreign currencies
The Group’s consolidated financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the Company’s functional currency. For each entity, the Group
determines the functional currency and items included in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency.

Foreigu currency translation

Transactions in foreign cutrencies are initially recorded by the Group’s entities at their respective functional currency spot rates at the date the
transaction first qualifies for recognition. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functionat
currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date. Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or
loss with the exception of monetary items that are designated as part of the hedge of the Group’s net investment in a foreign operation, These are
recognised in OCI until the net investment is disposed of, at which time, the cumulative amount is reclassified to profit or loss. Tax charges and
credits attributable to exchange differences on those monetary items are alse recognised in OCL

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the
initial transactions, Non-monetary items measured at fair valve in a foreign currency are translated usmg the exchange rates at the date when the
fair value is determmed.

The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the
change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fur value gain or loss is recognised in QCI or profit or loss are also
recognised in OCT of profit or loss, respectively).
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g)

Group companies

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of forsign operations are translated into INR at the rate of exchange prevailing at the reporting date and
their statements of profit or Ioss are translated at exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. The exchange differences arising on
translation for consolidation are recognised in OCIL On disposal of a forcign operation, the compenent of OCI relating 1o that particular foreign
operation is reclassified to profit or loss.

Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation suthoritics The tax
rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substaniively enacied, at the reporting date in India. Current income
tax refating to items recognised outside profit or loss 1s recognised outside profit or loss (either in OCI or equity). Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and considers
whether it is probable that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. The Group reflects the effect of uncertainty for each
uncertain tax treatment by using either most likely method or expected value method, depending on which methed predicts better resolution of the
treatment. Current income tax assets and liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off these and intends either to settle on 4 net
basis, or 10 realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability methed on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date

Deferred tax Habilitics are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

- When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

- In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and mterests in joint ventures, when the
tirming of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for ali deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses
Deferred tax assets arg recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised except:

- When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability n a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit ner taxable profit or loss

- In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax
assels are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no lenger probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be wtilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each
reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

In situations where Group is entitled to a tax heliday under the Income-iax Act, 1961, enacted in India, no deferred tax (asset or liability} is
recognised in respect of temporary differences which reverse during the tax holiday period. Deferred taxes in respect of temporary differences
which reverse after the tax holiday period are recoghised in the period in which the temporary differences originate. However, the Group restict
the recoghition of deferred tax assets to the extent that it has become reasonably certain that sufficient future taxable income will be availsble
against which such deferred tax assets can be realised,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset is realised or the liability 1s
settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or subsiantively enacted at the reporting date

Deferred tax relating to items recognised eutside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss {either in OCI or equity). Deferred tax items are
recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets Against cument @x
liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the samie taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Minimum Alernate Tax
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h)

Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid m a year is charged to the statement of profit or loss as current tax for the year. The deferred tax aset is
recogrused for MAT credit available only to the extent that it is probable that the concemed company will pay normal income tax during the
specified period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward, in the year in which the company recognizes MAT credit
as an assel, it 1s created by way of credit to the statement of profit or loss and shown as part of deferred tax asset. The commpany reviews the “MAT
ctedit entitlement” asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent that it is no longer probable that it will pay normal tax
during the specified period.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attached conditions will be compiled
with. When the grant related to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which
1t1s intended to compensate, are expensed. When grant is related to an asset, it is recognised as income in equal amounts over the expected useful
life of related asset.

When the Group receive grants of non-monetary assets, the asset and the grant are recorded at fair value amounts and released to profit or loss
aver the expected useful life in a pattern of consumption of the benefit of the underlying asset 1.e. by equal annual instalments,

The Group presents grants related to an expense item as other income in the statement of profit er loss. Thus, generation based incentive and Sale
of emission reduction certificates have been recognised as other income,

Generation based incentive:
Generation based incentive 1s recognised on the basis of supply of units generated by the Group to the state electricity board from the eligible
profect in accerdance with the scheme of the "Generation Based Incentive (GBI} for Grid interactive Wind Power Projects”

Subsidy (Viability Gap Funding)

The Group receives Viability Gap Funding (VGE) for setting up of cettain solar power projects. The Group records the VGF proceeds on
fulfilment of the underlying conditions as deferred government grant. Such deferred grant is recognised over the period of usefil life of underlying
asset.

Sale of emission reduction certificates

Governrnent grants in the form of carbon emission rights (CERs), which are received on projects registered under the United Nations Framework
on Chimate Change, are recarded as non-financial assets and initially measured at fair value when there is reasonable assurance that such CERs
will be received, with credit being recognised as Income from carbon credits under other operating income in the statement of profit or loss. Such
CERs are subsequently tested for impairment. The Group derecognises the CERs when the certificate is sold, which occurs when units are
transferred to the customer The difference between the carmying value and sale price is recognised as income from emission reduction certificates
Unbifled CERs which are agreed to be sold to a specific party have been treated as financial assets

Property, plant and equipment

Under the previous GAAP (Indian GAAP), Property, plant and equipment (PPE) comprising of Freehold land, plant and machinery and office
equipment were carried in the balance sheet at cost net of depreciation. Using the deemed cost exemption available as per Ind AS 101, the Group
has elected to carry forward the net block of PPE under IGAAP as on 31st March 2015 as book value of such assets under Ind AS as at the
transition date (Ist April, 2015).

On transition date to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of ali of its property, plant and equipment recogiised as
at 1 April, 2015 measured as per previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment

Ot transition date to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and equipment recognised as
at 1 April, 2015 measured as per previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment.

Capital work in progress and freehold land are stated at cosl, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any. Property, plant and equipment except
frechold tand is stated at cost, net of accumuylated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing
part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if' the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts
of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives.
Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the
recognition criteria are satistied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in the statement profit or loss as incurred.

The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the cost of the respeclive asset if the
recognition criteria for a provision are met. Refer 1o significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions (Note 3.1) and provisions
(Note 22) for further information about the recognised decommissioning proviston.
Subsequent costs
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The cost of replacing a part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the item of property, plant and
equipment, if it 1s probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Group and its cost can be measured reliably
with the carrying amount of the replaced part getting derecognised. The cost for day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are
recognised in statement of profit or loss as and when incurred.

Derecognition

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initéally recognised is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient
obtains control) or when no futire economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
{calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit or loss
when the asset 15 derecognised.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of property, plant and equipment are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or Joss when the asset is derecognised.

Intangible assets

Under the previous GAAP (Indian GAAP), intangible assets were carried in the balance sheet at cost net of amortisation. Using the deemed cost
exemption available as per Ind AS 101, the Group has elected to carry forward the carrying vaiue of PPE under IGAAT as on 31 March 2015 as
book value of such assets under Ind AS as at the transition date (1 April 2015).

On transition date to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its intangible assets recognised as at 1 April,
2015 measured as per previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of the intangible assets.

On transition date to Ind AS, the Company has ¢lected to continye with the carrying value of all of its intangible assets recognised as at ! April,
2015 measured as per previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of the intangible assets.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured in initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets and intangible assets under
development acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are
carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses and intangible assets under development are carried at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the ntangible
asset may be impaired.

An intangible asset is derecognised upon dispesal {i.e., at the date the recipient ebtains control) or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising upon derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference belween the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit or loss.

Customer related intangibles are capitalised if they meet the definitions of an intangible asset and the recogrtion critena are satisfied. Customer-
related intangibles acquired as part of a business combination are valued at fai value and those acquired separately are measured at cost. Such
intangibles are amortised over the remaining useful life of the customer relationships ar the period of the contractual arrangements,

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, either individually or at the cash-generating
unit level. The assessment of imdefinite life is reviewed annually 1o determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the
change it useful Iife from mdefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis,

Development costs

Development expenditures on an individual project are recognised as an intangible asset when the Group ean demonstrate
* The technical feasibiltty of completing the intangible asset so that the asset will be available for use or sale

« Its intention to complete and its ability and mtention to use or self the asset

* How the asset will generate future economic benefits

+ The availability of resources to complete the asset

= The ability te measure reliably the expenditure during development

Followmng initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the asset is carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses. Amertisation of the asset begins when development is complete and the asset 1s available for use, It is amortised
over the period of expected future benefit.
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Depreciation/amortisation of property, plant and equipment and intangibles assets
Depreciation and amortisation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows

[Category E— B Y T N— v
|Plant and equipment (solar roollop projecis )*® 25 or terms of PPA, whichever is less (15-25)
Piant and cquipment (solar power projects)* 35

|F'lant and equipment (wind pPower projects )* 130

Plamt and equipment (hydro power projects) 25-45

Plant and equipment (transmission projects)™® 50

Plam and equipment (others) o _ 5-18

|Office cquipment R 5

Furniture and fixture o o 10

Computers R T 3

Computer servers . — s 6

Computer softwares = 136 o i . B
Other Intangible assets L . ]

Customer contracts 125

Development rights o - 25 = = .

Carbon eredit rights o - s

\Leaschold hmprovements - Useful life or lease term (5). whichever is lower
Building {Temporary structure) 3 - — i -
Building (other than Tempeorary structure) 1;{:

* Based on an external technical assessment, the management believes that the useful lives as given above and residual value of (0%6-5° o, best
represents the period over which management expects o use its assets and its residual value. The useful life of plant and equipment is different
from the useful life as prescribed under Part C of Schedule IT of Companies Act, 2013.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation and amortisationof property, plant and equipment are veviewed at each financial
period end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Nop-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for sale

The Group classifies non-current assets and disposal groups as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through contmuing use. Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their
carrying amount and fair value Jess cosis to sell. Costs to sell are the incremental costs directly attributable to the disposal of an asset (disposal
group), excluding finance costs and income tax expense

The criteria for held for sale classtication is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable, and the asset or disposal group 1s available for
immediate sale in its present condition. Actions required to complete the sale should indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to the sale
will be made or that the decision to sell will be withdrawn. Management must be commitied to the plan to sell the asset and the safe expected to be
completed within one year from the date of the classification,

Property, plant and equipment and intangible are not depreciated, or amertised assets once classified as held for sale

Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale are presented separately from other items in the balance sheet.

Immediately prior to classification as held for sale, the assets or groups of assets were remeasured in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policies. Subsequently, assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale were valued at the lower of book value or fair value less disposal
costs. A gain or loss not previously recognised by the date of sale of non-current assets (or disposal group) is recognised at the date of de-
recognition.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value, Cost mcludes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the

inventories 1o their present location and condition, Cost is determined using weighited average method.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs necessary to make the sale

This space has been left blank intentienally
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Boerrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale. Borrowing costs consist of mterest, discount on issue, premium payable on redemption and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of finds {this cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to
the borrowing costs). The borrewing costs are amortised basis the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method over the term of the loan. The EIR
amortisation is recognised under finance cosis in the statement of profit or foss. The amount amortised for the year from disbursement of
borrowed funds upto the date of capitalisation of the qualifying assets is added to cost of the qualifying assets.

To the extent, group borrows funds for general purpose and uses them for the purpose of obtaining a qualifving asset, the group determines the
amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation by applying a capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that asset. The capitalisation rate used
is weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to the borrewings of the group that are outstanding during the year, other than borrowings
made specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset. In case any specific borrowing remains outstanding afler the related asset is
ready for its intended use or sale, that barrowing becomes part of the funds that an entity borrows generally when calculating the capitalisation rate
on general borrowings. The Group treats as part of general borrowings any borrowing originally made 1o develop a qualifying asset when
substantially all of the activities necessary fo prepare that asset for its intended use or sale are complete.

Leases
The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of
an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

As a lessee
The Group applies a single recognition and ineasurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets, The
Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underly Ing assets,

i} Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for use}. Right-of-
use assels are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, irtal direct costs incured, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Ri ght-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease term. and the estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows:

* Leasehold [and: 13 1o 30 years
* Building. 3 to 3 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of & purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

The right-of-use assets are alse subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in section (p) Impairment of non-financial assets.

ii) Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liabilities rueasured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the
lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments {including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also inclede the
exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain o be exercised by the Group and payments of penaities for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as
expenses (unless they are incurred to produce mventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of fease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date becauss the
interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of Jease liabilities 1s increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there isa
medification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resuliing from a change n an index or
rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset

iii) Short-term Ieases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its shori-term leases (i.e., those lcases that have a lease term of 12 months or
less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the Iease of low-value assets recognition exemption to
leases of office equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-termn leases and leases of low value assets are recognised
as expense o a straight-line basis over the lease term.

As a lessor
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Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases.
Rental income from operating lease is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initiaf direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same
basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are eamed.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assess, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual
impairment testing for a cash-generating unit (CGU) asset is required in case of CGU which includes Goodwill, the Group estimate the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount 1s the highet of an asset’s or CGU fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.
Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or group of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its secoverable amount, the asset is considered
impaired and is written down to its recoverable arnount,

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre -tax discount rate that reflects cyment
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market
fransactions are taken into account, If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. The higher of value-in-use or
fair value fess costs of disposal is regarded as the recoverable amount.

The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared separately for each of the Group’s
CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a remaining life of the project

Impairment tosses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Share based payments

Company provides additional bepefits to certain members of senior management and employees of the Group in the form of share-bssed
payments, whereby employees render services as consideration for equity instruments {equity-settled transactions). On August 23, 2021, all
outstanding vested and unvested options of the Company were replaced with the options of Holding Company. The employces of the Group were
entitled to 0.8289 Holding Company Stock Option for every one option held in the Company (refer Note 41),

Equity-settied transactions
The cost of equity-setiled transactions is determined by the fait value at the date when the grant is made using an appropriate valuation model

The cost is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in share-based payment reserve in equity, over the period in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled in employee benefit expenses The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each
reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Group's best estimate of the numbers of
equity istruments that will ultimately vest. The statement of profit or loss expense or credit for a period represents the movement in cumulative
expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period and is recogmsed 1n employee benefit expense.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when determming the grant date fair value of awards, but the
likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.
Market performance conditions are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any other condition attached to an award, but without associated
service requirement, are considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an
immediate expensing of an award unless there are also service and Jor performance conditions,

No expense ts recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because of non-market performance and for service conditions have not been met.
Where awards include a market or non-market condition, the transaction are treated as vested itrespective of whether the market or non-vesting
condition fs satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service condition are satisfied.

When the ferms of an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum expense recognised is the grant date fair value of the unmodified award,
provided the original vesting terms of the award are met. An additional expense, measured as at the date of modification, is recognised for any
modification that increases the total fair value of the share-based payment transaction, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee. Where an award
is cancelled by the entity or by the counterparty, any remaining element of the fair value of the award 1s expensed immediately through the
statement of profit er [oss.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted earnings per share.

Share based payment cost, to the extent peitaining to the employees of sabsidiary, is reduced from employee benefit expenses of the Company
and is considered as deemed mvestment in the form of capital coniribution in the subsidiary.
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On repurchase of vested equity instraments by the Group, the payment made to the employee shall be accounted for as a deduction from equity,
except to the extent that the payment exceeds the fair value of the equity instruments repurchased, measured at the repurchase date. Any such
excess shall be recognised as an expense in the statement of prefit or loss.

Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Group has no obligation, other than the contribution
payable to the provident fund. The Group recognise contribition payable to provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the
related service.

Remeasurements comprising of actuarial gain and losses, the effect of the asset ceiting, excluding amount recognised in the net interest on the
defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit Hahility), are
recognised in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they oceur.

Remeasurements are not reclassified to the statement of profit or loss in subsequent periods
The Group operates 2 defined benefit plan in India, viz,, grawity. The cost of providing benefit under this plan is determined on the basis of
actuarial valuation at each period-gnd carried out using the projected unit cost method

Past service costs are recognised in statement of profit or loss on the earlier of
- The date of the plan amendment or curtailment; and
- The date that the Group recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest ss calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Group recognises the following changes in
the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit or loss:

- Service casts comprising cuirent service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routing settlements; and

- Net interest expense or income

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilised within the next twelve months, is treated as short term employee benefit. The Group
measures the expected cost of such absences as an additional amount that it expects 1o pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has
accumulated at reporting date.

The Group treats the accumulated leave expected to be carried forward bevond twelve months, as leng term employee benefit for measurement
purposcs. Such long term compensated absences are determined on the basis of actuarial valuation at each period-end carried out using the
projected unit cost method. Remeaswrements comprising of actuarial gain and losses are recognised in the balance sheet with a corresponding
debit or credit to profit or loss in the period in which they occur. The Group presents the leave as current liability in the balance sheet, to the
extent is does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for 12 months after the reporting date. Where Group has unconditional legal
and contractual right to defer the settlement for a period beyond 12 months, the same is presented as non-current liability

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and & reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. When the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is
recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented 1n the
statement of profit or loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks
specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Decommissioning liability

The Group considers constructive obligations and records a provision for decommissioning costs of the wind and solar power plasts.
Decommissioning costs are provided for at the present value of expected costs to settle the obligation using estimated cash flows and are
recognised as part of the cost of the relevant asset. The cash flows are discounted i a current pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specific to the
decommissioning liability. The unwinding of the discount is expensed as incurred and recognised in the statement of prafit or loss as a finance
cost. The estimated future costs of decommussioning are reviewed annually and adjusted as appropriate. Changes in the estimated future costs, or
in the discount rate applied, are added to or deducted from the cost of the asset.
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Exceptional items

Exceptional items are those items that management considers, by virtue of their size or incidence (including bt not limited to impairment charges
and acquisition and restructuring refated costs), should be disclosed separately to ensure that the financial information allows an understanding of
the underlying performance of the business in the year, so as to facilitate comparison with prier periods. Also tax charges related to exceptional
items and certain one-time tax effects are considered exceptional. Such items are material by nature or amount to the year's result and require
separate disclosure in accordance with Ind AS. The determination as to which items should be disclosed separately requires a degree of
judgement. The details of exceptional items are set out in note 38,

Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and & financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVTQCI), and fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

The classification of financial assets at injtial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the Group’s
business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at
FVTPL, transaction costs, Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient are measured at the transaction price as disclosed in section (e) Revenue from contracts with customers.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place
(regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset

Subseguent meosurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A ‘debt instrument” is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose ehjective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

b) Contraciual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash fiows that are solely payments of principal and mterest (SPPI) on the prinespal
amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assels are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method Amortised cost 15 calculated
by taking inte account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is
inclnded in other income in the statement of profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the statement of profit or loss

Debt instruments at FYTOCT

A “debt instrument” is classified at FVTOCI if boih of the following criteria are met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets. and
b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPL.

Debt instruments included within FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are
recognised in the other comprehensive income (OCT). However, the Group recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign
exchange pain or loss in the statement of profit or loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gam or loss previously recognised in OClis
reclassified from the equity to statement of profit or loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income
using the EIR method.

Debt instruments at FVTPL
FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt mstrument, which does not meet the criteria for calegorisation as at amortised cost or
as FVTOC], is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Group may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise msets amortised cost or FYTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL.
However, such election 15 allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition meonsistency (referred to as “accounting

mismatch’). The Group has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within FVTPL. category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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Embedded derivatives

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial liability or non-financial host, is separated from the host and accounted for as a
separate derivative it the economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to the host; a separate instrument with the same terms s the
emnbedded derivative would meet the definition of a derivative; and the hybrid contract is not measured at far value through profit or loss
Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either
achange in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that waould otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial
asset out of the fair value through profit or loss category.

Equity invesiments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fir value, Equity instruments which are held for trading and contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS103 applies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity
instruments, the Group may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value The
Group makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on 1nitial recognition and js irrevocable.

If the Group decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCL, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are
recoghised in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCT to statement of profit or loss, even on sale of investment However, the
Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of & group of similar financial assets) 15 primarily derecognised when

- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, ar

- The respective Group has transferred their rights 1o receive cash flows from the asset or have assumed the obligation to pay the received cash
flows m full without matenial delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement ; And

- Either the Group has transferred substantialiy all the risks and rewards of the asset, or has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but have transferred cantrol of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates 1if and to
what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and
rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the continymng
involvement of Group. In that case, the Group also recognise an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured
on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of
the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group applies expected credit loss (ECL) mode] for measurement and recognition of impairment loss for all
debt instruments not held at FVTPL. ECLs are based on the difference betwsen the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest rate.

The Group follows 'simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables or contract revenue receivables The
Group has established a provision matrix that 1s based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-Jooking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.

The assessmeni of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast econlomic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate The
amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and of forecast economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss experience and
Torecast of economic conditions may also not be representairve of customer’s actual default in the future.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Group to track changes in credit risk. Rather it recognises impairment loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from initial Tecognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the group defermines that whether there has been a significant
increase in the credit risk since instial recagnition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECT. is used to provide for impairment
loss However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. II. in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves
such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss
allowance based on 12-month ECL. The Group considers that there has been a significant increase in credit risk when contractyal payinents are
more than 30 days past due.
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Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default evenis over the expected life of a financial instrument The F2-
month ECL i5 a portion of the lifetime ECL which results frem default events that are possible within 12 menths after the reporting date.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group may also
consider & financial asset to be in default when internal or exiernal information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding
contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written off when there s no
reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

For financial guarantee cotitracts, the date that the Group becomes a party to the irevocable commitment is considered to be the date of mitial
recognition for the purposes of ussessing the financial instrument for impairment. In assessing whether there has been a significant increase in the
credit nisk sitice initial recognition of a financial guarantee contracts, the Group considers the changes in the risk that the specified debtor will
default on the contract,

For a financial guarantee contract, as the Group is required to make payments only in the event of a defanit by the debtor in accordance with the
terms of the instrument that is guaranteed, the expected loss allowance is the expected payments to reimburse the holder for a credit loss that it
incurs less any amounts that the Group expects to receive from the holder, the debtor or any other party.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to identify whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk and
revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past
due.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) during the Year is recognised as ihcome / expense in the statement of’ profit or loss
Finzancial liabilities

Initial recognition and meosurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables,
or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial Habilities are recognised initially at fair value and in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributsble
ransaction costs.

The financial liabilities of the Group include trade and other payables, derivative financial instruments, loans and borrowings including benk
overdrafi.

Subsequent measurenent
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as discussed below -

Loagns and borrowings
After initial recognition, interest-bearing foans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gams and
losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculaied by taking inte account any discount or Ppremium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EiR.
The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit or Joss. This category generally applies to borrowmngs

A financial Hability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelted or expires. When an existing financial
liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new hability. The difference in the
Tespective carmying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Compound instruments- Compulsorily Convertible Debentures
Compulsorily Convertible Debentures (CCIDs) are separated into liability and equity components based on the terms of the contract.

Basis the terms of these compound financial instruments the distributions to holders of an equity instrument are being recognised by the entity
directly in equity. Transaction costs of an equity transaction are being accounted for as a reduction from equity.

The Group recognises interest, dividends, losses and gains relating to such financial instrument or a component that is a financial liability as
income or expense in the statement of profit or loss.
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v)

The present value of the liability part of the compuisorily convertible debentures classified under financial liabilities and the equity component is
calgulated by sublracting the liability from the total proceeds of CCDs.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of a compound financial instrument are allocated to the liability and equity components of the instrument
in proportion to the allocation of proceeds Transaction cests that relate jomtly to more than one transaction (for example, cost of 1ssue of
debentures, lsting fees) are allocated to those transactions using a basis of allocation that is rational and consistent with similar transactions

Financial gnarantees

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the group are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for A loss it incurs
because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument Financial guarantee contracts
are vecognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the isswance of the Ruarantee
Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109
and the amount recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recagnised in accordance with the principles of ingd AS 115.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obl 1gation under the liability is discharged” cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability
is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original lizhility and the recognition of a new liability The difference in the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss

The Group recognise debr modifications agreed with lenders 1o restructure their existing debt obligations. Such modifications are done to take
advantage of falling interest rates by cancelling the exposure to high interest fixed rate debt, pay a fee or penalty on cancellation and replace it
with debt at a lower interest rate (exchange of old debt with new debt) The qualitative factors considered to be relevant for modified financial
liabilities include, but are not limited to, the currency that the debt instrument is denominated in, the interest rate (that is fixed versus floating
rate), conversion features attached to the insrument and changes in covenants. Fhe accounting treatment is determined depending on whether
modifications or exchange of debt instruments represent a settlement of the original debt or merely a renegotiation of that debt. The exchange of
debt instruments with substantially different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a
new financial liability.

Reciassification of financial assets and liahilities

The Group determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for
financial assets which are equity instruments. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there 15 a change in
the business model for managing those assets Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent.

Qffseiting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right
1o offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge acconnting

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative [inancial Instruments, such as foreign currency forward contracts, cross currency swaps {CCS), call spreads, foreign
currency option contracts and interest rate swaps (IR8), to hedge its interest rate risks and foreign currency risks. Such derivative financial
instruments are initially recogmsed at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered mto and are subsequently re-measured at fair
value. Dertvatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to profit or loss, except for the effective portion of cash
flow hedges, which is recognised in OCI and later reclassified to profit or loss when the hedge item affects profit or loss or treated as basis
adjusiment if a hedged forecast transaction subsequently results in the recognition of 2 non-financial asset or non-financial liability

For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as:

- Fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognised asset or liability or an unrecognised firm commitment

- Cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to variability in cash flows that is either awributable to a particular risk assoctated with a
recognised asset or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction or the foreign currency risk in an unrecognised firm commitment
- Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation
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W)

X}

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Group formally designates and documents the hedge relationsh ip to which the Group wishes to apply
hedge accounting and the risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge.

The documentation includes identification of the hedging instrument, the hedged item, the nature of the risk being hedged and how the Group will
assess whether the hedging relationship meets the hedge effectiveness requirements (including the analysis of sources of hedge inefTectiveness
and how the hedge ratio is determined). A hedging relationship qualifies for hedge accounting if it meets all of the following effectiveness
requirements:

* There is ‘an economic relationship’ between the hedged item and the hedging instrument

* The effect of credit risk does not *deminate the valve changes’ that result from that economic relationship.

* The hedge ratio of the hedging relationship s the same as that resulting from the quantity of the hedged item that the Group actually hedges and
the quantity of the hedging instrument that the Group actually uses to hedge that quantity of hedged item,

Hedges that meet the sirict cnteria for hedge accounting are accounted for, as described below:

{i) Cash flow hedges
The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised in OCI in the cash flow hedge reserve, while any ineffective
portion is recognised immediately in the statement of profit or loss,

The cash flow hedge reserve is adjusted to the lower of the cumultative gain or loss on the hedging instrument and the cumulative change in fair
value of the hedged item

The Group uses forward currency contracts as hedges of iis exposure to foreipn currency risk in forecast transactions and firm commitments, as
well as forward commodity contracts for its exposure to volatility in the commodity prices. The ineffective portion relating to foreign currency
contracts is recognised as other expense and the ineffective portion relating to commodity contracts is recognised in other operating income or
eXpenses.

The Group designates the spot element of forward contracts as a hedging instrument. The amounts accumulated in OCI are accounted for,
depending on the nature of the underlying hedged transaction. If the hedged transaction subsequently resulis in the recognition of & non-finangial
item, the amount accumulated in equity is removed from the separate component of equity and included in the initial cost or other carrying
amount of the hedged asset or liability This is not a reclassification adjustment and will not be recognised in OCI for the year. This also apphes
where the hedped forecast transaction of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability subsequently becomes a firm commiitment for which fair
value hedge accounting is applied

When option contracts are used, the Group uses only intrinsic value of the option as the hedging instrument Gains or losses relating to the
effective portion of the changes in intrinsic value of the opiion are recognised in the cash flow hedging reserve which equity. The changes n the
time value of money that relate to the hedged item are recognised within other comprehensive income in the cost of hedging reserve within equity.

For any other cash flow hedges, the amount accemulated in OCI is reclassified to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment in the same period
or periods during which the hedged cash flows affect profit or loss.

If cash flow hedge accounting is discontiued, the amount that has been accumulated in OCT must remain in accutlated OCT if the hedged
future cash flows are still expected to occur. Otherwise, the amount will be immediately reclessified o profit or loss as a reclassification
adjustment. After discontinuation, once the hedged cash flow ocours, any amount remaining in accumulated OCE must be accounted for
depending on the nature of the underlying transaction as described above.,

Cash and cash-equivalents

(i) Cash and cash-equivalents

Cash and short-term deposits in the staternent of financial position comprise cash at banks and cash in hand and short-term deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less, that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and subyject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short term deposits, as defined above, net of
bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Group's cash management,

(ii} Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents consists of deposits with an original maturity of more than three months These balances are
classified into eurrent and non-current portions based on the remaining term of the deposit.

Measurement of EBITDA

The Group has elected to present eamnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA) as a separate [ine item on the face of the
Statement of Profit or Loss. The Group measure EBITDA on the basis of profit/ (lass) from continuing operations. In their measurement, the
companies include interest income but do nat include depreciation and amortisation expense, finance costs and tax expense.
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¥Y)

z)

aa)

4.2

Events occurring after the Balance Sheet date
Impact of events occurring after the reporting date that provide additional information materiatly effecting the determination of the amounts
relating to conditions existing at the reporting date are adjusted to Tespective assets and Habilities.

The Group does not adjust the amounts recognised in its consolidated financial statements to reflect non-adjusting events after the reporting
period.

The Group makes disclosures in the financial statements 1n cases of’ significant events

Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obl igation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by
the ocourrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain Atre events not wholly within the control of the Group or a present obligation that
artses from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount
cannot be made

Earnings per equity share (EPS)

Basic earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the Parent by the weighted average
number of equity shares and instruments mandatorily convertible into equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per equity share
is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the Group by the weighted average number of equity shares considered
for deriving basic earnngs per equity share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issved upen conversion of
all dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the equity shares been actially
issued at fair value (i.e. the average market value of the outstanding equity shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the
beginning of the period, unless issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each period presented

The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted retrospectively for all periods presented for any share splits and
bonus shares issues including for changes effected prior to the appraval of the consolidated financial statements by the Board of Directors. The
dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted carnings per share.

New standards, interpretations and amendments

4.2.1 New and amended standards and interpretations adopted by the Group
The Group applied for the first-time certamn standards and amendments, which are effective for annual periods beginning on or after | April 2024.
The Group has not early adopted any standard, interpretation or amendment that has been jssued but is not yet effective.

(a) Amendment to Tnd AS 116 Leases — Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

The MCA notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules, 2024, which amend Ind AS 116, Leases, with
respect to Lease Liabilily in a Sale and Leaseback.

The amendment specifies the requirements that a seller-lessee uses in meaguring the lease liability arising in a sale and leaseback transaction, to
ensure the seller-lessee does not recognise any amount of the gain or loss that relates to the right of use it retains

The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after | April 2024 and must be applied retrospectively to sale and
leaseback transactions entered into after the date of initial application of Fnd AS 116.

The amendinent does not have a material impact on the Group’s fmancial statements.

4.2.2 Standards issued but not yet effective

There are no standards that are notified and not yet effective as on the date.
This space has been left blank intentionally
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5 Property, plent and equipment Freehold Land  Plant and equipment Builings Eeasehold Office Fumniture and Camparters Total property, plant Capiiul work i
intprovements i fixtures and Ij progress

Cost
Asat ] April 2033 13,88¢ 483,979 129 143 13 k2t 261 4,968,547 106,966
Additions durmg the year” 597 1.28,241 1,371 6 2] 40 15 1300459 172122
Capitslied durmg the vear a . . B - - (1199213
[ispesals and adjustiments dunng the year 25%) (27,544; (i &) 23 (10} (27815}
As at | April 2624 Id,& 5£4£Bﬁ 1&0. 149 176 IZ-EPB 486 4,001,101
Addstions dunng the yes 2493 L1537 3468 38 26 150 L1435} LI5347
Caputabised dusng the veur N g - - - - - 118,291
Dnsposals and edjustrients durng the vear (11} USABY 29} @ 24) (15 668) {15,74)
As at 31 March 2025 14,309 SBA608 4868 148, 185 153 518 7,04,8!2;_ 1.40.4_5;9;
Accumitlates depreclation
As at 1 April 2023 - 76,507 35 125 67 43 u7 76,895 -
Charge for the year irefor note 35) - L5059 15 4 17 3 58 15,161 -
Deproczaion caprialised durmg the year - 283 32 2 [ 2 44 309 -
Ihsposals and adpusiments dunng the vear - 1,306 (0} - )y (0} {9} i1 4im} -
As at 1 April 2024 - M A53 &% 131 86 53 210 9016 -
Charge for the yes (refer note 35) 18350 16 2 11 9 43 18431 -
Depreciation, capitalised diming the vear 407 56 3 14 4 BG 570
Disposals and adjustments donng the year (953) 3] () (14) (376} -
As at 31 March 2025 - ]M 155 136 103 6_5_ 3£ 109041 S|
Net book value )
As at 1 April 2024 14,225 494173 1.317 1R 20 76 276 510,175 159,167
Ag at 31 March 2025 14,309 5,76,340 4,713 13 82 8 293 B 05 Bl | L4IJ;_I89

Mortgage and hypothecation on Property, plant aud equipment
Propern. plant & equpment are subject o @ part passu firet charge to respective lenders for Pproject term loans, buyer's/'sppliers credit. senior sceured notes, workmg <aputal loan, debentures amd acecptances es disclosed 10 kote 19 and aote 21

~ Capitalised boyrowing costs
The amount of bormwing costs caprtalised n property. plant apd cqutpment and il work i progress dunng the year ended March 31 2025 was INR 11,871 (March 31, 2024 INR | 1,538) The ralc rang@ng betwoen: 0 70% 1o 12% (March 31, 2024
6 70% 10 12%) used to determine barowing costs ehpble for capalisatisn wa ntey pecilic borowings sed capitalisaion mte of general borrowngs

e effectiy L

Assais on opernting loase (refer note 40 and 54)

Plant #md coaipment includes assels given on opersimg lease having prosa cost of BNR. 11,700 (March 31 March, 2024 TNR 7.416) which were zdded durmp the year and on which depreciation of INR 188 (Murch 31, 2624 INR 351 was clwrged leading
tonet book velue of INR 11,476 (March 31, 2024 [NR 7.381) Also capile] work & progres inchudes INR 608 (March 31 2024 INR 3 416) which once ready wall be given o operating lease
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6 Intangible nssets Other

Computer Customer . Development Carbon . . . Intangible asset

software contracis # [n;::g:]e riglrts Credit Total intangibles Logdwill under divelnpment
Cost
As at 1 April 2023 613 31592 7 36 - 33,248 11,583 150
Additions durmg the vear 307 - - 251 558 - 30
Capitalised dunng the year - - - - - - - (124)
As at 1 April 2024 o920 32,592 7 36 251 33,806 11,583 56
Addihons durng the year 88 88 - 12
Capitalised during the year - - - (76)
Held for sale {29) 29) -
Disposals and adjustments dunng tha year (61) {61) E -
As at 31 March 2025 918 32,597 7 35 251 33,804 11.583 92
Accomulated Amertisation
Asat 1 April 2023 24} 6,155 - ] - 6,404 - -
Amorhsation for the year (refer note 35) 136 1,348 - 1 - 1,485 - -
Amortisation capitalised durmg the vear - 63 - - - 63 - -
As at 1 April 2024 377 7,566 - 9 5 7952 5 .
Amortisation for the period (refer nate 35) 47 1417 1 54 1,519 - .
Held for Sale (20 (20)
Amortisation capitalised dueing the year 94 94 - u
As At 31 March 2025 498 w - 12: 54 9,545 = =
Net book value
As at | April 2024 543 15=026 7 27 22: 25854 ll,SiJ_ 56
As at 31 March 2028 ﬂ 23,609 7 26 97 24,259 11,583 92

# Remainung life of customer conracts ranges from 13 to 19 years as on March 31, 2025 (March 31,2023 14 10 20 years)

This space has been [eft blank
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Mortgage and hypothecation on intangible assecs:
intangible assets are subyect to & part passu first charge to respective lenders for senior secured baads, project team loans, buyer's / supplier's credit, working capital loan, debentures, senior secue
acceptances as disclosed 10 Note 19 and Note 24

Below is the break-up for goodwall for each group of cash generating ums and indivaduel cash generating umts (CGLU)

As at March 31,
Group of CGU / individual CGLU 2015 2024
Ostro Energy Group (wind power segment) 9,903 9,903
Goodwnll 9,903 9903
ReNew Vayu Una (wnd power segsent) 756 756
Goodwll 756 756
Pratharmesh Solarfarms (solar power segment) 428 428
Croadwall 428 428
Others (wind power segment)* 145 145
Others (solar power segment)* 364 364
Goodwill 509 509

*includes amount all d agamnst multiple CGUs and the amount allecated to each CGU 15 not matenal

The Group undertoak the smparment testing of Goodwall assigned to each Individual or Group of CGUs as at March 31, 2025 snd 2024 by applying the Valug i Use {'VILT} approach. The Group has entered into
Power Purchase Agteements (PPA} upto 25 years which entitles the Group to 3 fixed tanff over the renure of PPAs. Accordmply, for computing the VIU, the Group has determined cash flow projechons based on
ficed tariffs as specified m the PPAs upto the remaining tenure of PPAs rangng from 13 10 19 years, and for peniods thereafier, forecasted tanffs based on sssessment provided by an extemal speculist. The key
assumptiens used m computation of VIU are the Plant Load Factor (PLF), a measure of average capacity utilisahon of 2 power plant, used in Tevenue projections, and discount rares

The PLE 15 determined based on forecasts after considerng study of future wind speed (only for wind segment} and past performance, and discount rates are based on weighted average cost of capital These
assumphions ate forward-loolang and are affected by future econommc and chmatc conditions melzdmg wind speed.
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Based on the results of the impurment test, the estimated value m use of each Group of CGU end indrvidual CGU wes more than their respective camying values, by the following amounts

As at March 31,

Graup of CGU/ individusl CGU 2025 2014

Ostro Energy Group {wid power segtoent)’ 5,862 2,315
ReNew Vayu Urja {wind power segment)’ 1,712 1,469
Prathamesh Solarfarms (solar power segment)’ 1135 851
Others {wind power segroent) 2,334 2474
Others (solar power segtment)” 1,413 1,303

(1) The Group has engaged extornal specialists to asssst m. deterrmining () future PLFs and (b) disconnt rates snd computation of VIU The Group has currently estimated a discount rate of 12 1% (March 31,
2024 1212%, and PLF of 26 27 (March 31, 2024 26 2725) m determunation of VIU Increase in discount rate by | 099, Per atioum or decrease n PLF by 1 74%, would result m velue n use 1o he equal to the
<carrying amount

(2) The Group has cumently esnmated discount rates ranging between 12 15% to 13 229 (March 31, 2024 1] 43% to 13 09°5March 31, 2023 1055% 10 12 38%) and PLF of 22 50%a to 31 70% (March 31,
2024 22 50% to 31 70%, March 31, 2023 22 50° to 31 70%) in determinstion of VIU The Management befieves that any reasonably possible change m the key asaumptions on which valug m use 15 based
would not cause the carrying amount of each group of CGJ and individual CGU to exceed the value use

{3} The Group has ¢urrently estmated discount rates ranging between 12.25% to 14 15%% (March 31, 2024 11 74% t0 13 52%, March 31, 2023 1068% to 11.51%) and PLF of 18 13% to 24 62% (March 31,
2024 1813%a to 24 62%, March 31, 2023 18 13% 1o 24 62°0) 1 deternunation of VIU Ths Management believes that any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions en which valuo m use is based
would rot cause the carrying amount of each group of CGU and mdividual CGU to excead the vahe in use

~-This space has been lefi blank intentionally
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7 Right of use assets Leasehold land Building Total

Cost

Asat 1 April 2023 10,782 1,121 11,903
Additions during the year 3,238 19 3257
Disposals and adjustinents during the year (445) - (445)
As at 1 April 2024 13,574 1,140 14,714
Additions during the year 4,463 388 4851
Disposals and adjustments during the year (2,623} - (2,623)
As at 31 March 2025 15,414 1,528 16,942

Accumulated depreciation

As at 1 April 2023 818 454 1273
Depreciation charged to profit or loss during the year (tefer note 35 345 136 481
Capitalised during the year 16 92 108
Disposals and adjustments during the year (50) - (50)
As at 1 April 2024 1,130 682 1812
Depreciation charged to profit or loss during the period (refer note 5 24 82 106
Capitatised during the vear 386 171 557
Disposals and adjustments during the year (30) - 30
As at 31 March 2025 1,510 935 2445
Net book value

As at 1 April 2024 12,444 458 12,502
As at 31 March 2025 13,904 593 14,497

This space has been left blank intentionally
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8 Investments

Investment in unquoted equity shares of entities under joint control & associates at equity method

Fluence India ReNew JV Private Limited

412,00,050 (31 March 2024 412,00,050) fully pad up equity shares (Refer note no

3ENV

660,827 (31 March 2024: 660,827) full paid up equity shares
ReNew Green Projects Pte Ltd

150 (31 March 2024: 150} full paid up equity shares

Total

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments

9 Financial assets

Non-current
Financial assets af fair value through profit or loss

Investment in unquoted optionally convertible debentures
Total

Fivancial assets at amortised cost
Losns

Considered good and unsecured
Loans to related parties

Totat

Others

Bank deposits with remaining maturity for more than twelve months {refer note 16)

Security deposits
Deferred consideration receivable
Total

Current (umsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss
Investments

Quoted mutual funds:

Mutual finds
Total

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 3024

379 406
- 2456
8 0
387 2,862
387 2,862

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

247 112
247 112

- 121

0 121
2,433 2,888
568 370
178 821
3,179 4,079
264 1,502
264 D)
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10

10A

Aggrepate book value of quoted investments
Aggrepate market value of quoted investments

Financial assets a¢ amortised cost

Loans

Considered good and unsecured
Loans to related parties

Other loans and advanes

Total

Others

Deferred consideration receivable
Advances recoverable

Advances to related parties

Government grant receivable

- generation based incentive receivable
Interest accrued on fixed deposits
Interest accrued on loans to related parties
Security deposits

Remaining maturity less than 12 months
Carbon credit receivable

Others

Taotal

Deferred tax assets (DTA)/ deferred tax liabilities (DTL) {net)

Deferred tax assets (net)

Deferred tax assets (gross)

Compound financial instruments

Loss on mark to market of derivative instruments

Difference in written down value as per books of account and tax laws
Unamortised ancillary borrowing cost

Provision for decommissioning cost

Expected credit loss

Losses and unabsorbed depreciation available for offsetting against futire taxable income
Unused tax credit (MAT)

Provision for operation and maintenance equalisation

Lease liabilities

Government grant (viability gap funding)

Others

Deferred tax assets (gross) - total (a}

Deferred tax liabilities (gross)

Compound financial instruments

Gain on mark to market of derivative instruments

Difference in written down value of PPE as per books of account and tax laws
Unamortised anciltary borrowing cost

Right of use asset

Others

Deferred tax linbilities (gross) - total (b)

Deferred tax assets (net) (a) - (b)

264 1,502
264 1,502
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
395 487
284 -
679 487
207 206
634 1,449
2 261
288 322
900 1,000
53 17
177 166
13,004 14,945
107 91
448 347
15,820 18,504
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
3466 3,113
151 78
70 358
1 3
674 936
304 141
25,766 21,081
293 167
- 250
666 377
144 153
31,535 26,655
9 B
667 37
22,742 20,329
99 142
764 557
3 5
24,284 21,070
7,251 5,585
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Staternents for the year euded 31 March 2025
{Amounts in INR millions, unless atherwise stated)

10B

10C

Deferred tax liabilities (net)

Deferred tax liabilities (grass}

Compound finaneial instruments

Gain on mark to market of derivative instruments

Difference in written down value of PPE as per books of account and tax laws
Unamortised anciflary bommowing cost

Government grant (viability gap funding)

Right of use asset

Inventory

Others

Deferred tax liabilities (gross) - total (c)

Deferred tax assets (gross)

Cempound financial instruments
Loss on mark to market of derivative instruments

Unamortised ancillary borrowing cost

Provision for decommissioning cost

Expected credit loss

Losses and unabsorbed depreciation available for offsetting agaimst firture taxable income
Unused tax credit (MAT)

Provision for operation and maintenance equalisation

Lease ligbilities

Government grant (viability gap fimding)

Others

Deferred tax assets (gross) - total (d)

Deferred tax liabilities (net) (c) - (d}

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by tax rate

Accounting profit before income tax

Tax at the India's tax rate of 25 168 % applicable to the Parent (31 March 2024 31.2%)

Disallowance (net of allowance) under section 948 of the Income Tax Act'™
Interest on compound financial instrument®

Tax rate differences

Unabserbed depreciation and business losses (%2

Change in estimaies for recoverability of Minimurmn Alternate Tax (MAT)
Adjustment of tax relating to carlier periods

On account of adoption of new tax ordinance

- MAT credit written-off”

- Recognition / reversal of deferred tax asset / deferred tax liability

Effect of tax holidays and other tax exemptions

Other nen-deductible expenses

At the effective income tax rate

Current tax expense reported tn the statement of profit or loss
Deferred tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss

! The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in absence of reasonable certainty towards its realisation.

As at
31 March 2025

Asat
31 March 2524

28 217
797 842
64,134 55,681
168 182

4] 1

577 671

38 11
65,742 57,605

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

(167) :
14 30
9 5
1,603 1,614
277 281
37,679 34,843
2,721 2,869
- 248
737 791
355 452
105 101
43,333 41,234
22,409 16,371
For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
12,532 11,820
3,258 3,688
1.763 1,968
(169) 201)
1,693 {639)
(1,750) 615
{53) -
583 (557)
414 82
(48) )
3) 292)
(127 (667)
5561 3,996
1,514 981
4,047 3,015
5561 3,996

* The amount is netted off by 2,030 (March 31, 2024 1,064) that represents previously unrecognised deferred tax assets, recognised in the current year




ReNew Private Limited

Netes to Cy d Fi: ial S for the year cuded 31 March 2025

(Ampums 1 INR mullions, unless othenwise stated)

10D Reconciliation of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities (net):

#) For the year eniled 31 March 2025

Particulars D(”}t‘l.‘::"i(':)gTT)l::': ::? E::.:": Iﬁ:’: x} Incwm_a i (cfpr.nw) lacome / [f:pens;e) Acqui iuitinn.nf Non-  Addition llur.u:gh I)Tgl'r.:;;"flb;:nrsl
1 April 2024 or loss recognised in OCT  recognised in equity coatroiling interest  business combination March2025

Compound financial mstruments 2,898 164 - {40) . . 1222
Gaan / (loss) on mark to market of derivative instruments (770} 27 (%) 470) - - (1,249)
Difierence: in walten dowa value a5 per books of sceount aad tax laws (75,656) (¥3.570) - s - 2463 (86,7693
Unamortised anciflary botrowing oost {31 63 = 5 = 8 (258)
Provision lor decomumissiorng cost 2,550 274y - - - s 2,261
Expected credit Ioss 421 171 - = - - 396
Umabsorbed deprciation gvailable for offseitng against futse taxable in 55913 9,704 42 - 12,2361 63413
Miramam allernate @ax 3,036 122y - - - - 3014
Frowvision Tor iom and x 497 (497) = 5 . - o
Lease Liabilities Lis? 287 - - - {32 L402
Govempzni grant (viability gap funding) 451 (98} - - - . iR
Riglt of use asset {1,227) 41551 - " - 50 (1.290)
Others 241 (&4) (10 5 = 3 147

{10,786) (04T {4} 514K " 190 (15,158)

e rw—————This space has been Jeft blank imtentionally————




ReNew Private Limited
Notes to Co i Fi il Si Tor the year ended 31 March 2025
{Amounts in INR mitlions, unless otherwise stazed)

b) For the year caded 31 March 2024

Income {expense)

Particulars D?rf?rlf'rmc:: r::v:::::; T::eﬁi e [ncome / {expens ised in profit ACIRED e n'rﬁl.??;%:: ::n:.'il
1 April 2023 or Inss reeognised in OCI  recogmised i equity  or Lf;a?:i::'; of  business combination March 3024

Compound financaal mstromens 2637 260 - - o t 198
CGaan / {loss) on mark to marke! of denvative instruments @ {268) 81y 275) - 287 {770y
Differcrge in written dowis value as per books of account and tax laws (70,140} (8.702) - - - 1186 175.656)
Unamoriised ancillasy borrowing cost 31 ey - - - 1 (319
Proviston for decommissiomng cost 4113 {1.763) - - - - 2550
Expected credit loss 384 76 - - - [£¥] 423
Fair valustion of mvesmment 0 - - - - . o
Tax losses available for offsetting aginst Taiure taxable income 51,192 6,546 1 - - (3,120} 55023
Munirm aliemate 1ax 2307 669 - - - - 3.036
Provision for iot and roai q i 470 27 - - - S 497
Lease tabilities 4 534 - - - 91) 1167
Finameial guaramiee conracts - - - - - - -
Government prant (viability pap funding) 464 L - - . - 451
Raght of use asset (834) 470) - a - &7 a7
Option Premiun - - - - - - -
rentory (5) 5 - - . - 0
Unreabised gainloss on forcign curmrency loan - - - - - - -
Others 207 14 - - - - 241

(8,434) (JJ_!Q 630 275) - Jog (10,786)

The Group based on profil propecuons sepported by existing PPAs aud underiymg contractual agreements believes that (he utlisation of entire deferred tax asseis is probable. AR items of deferred tax ssets bave an (finiie Lz cxcem for
(hose on tax lasses and MAT wiich can be camed forward for o maximum period 8 sears and 13 years, respectively, from the date of their ongmaton The Group based o its current profit projections expects to realise the deforred ta assa
weognised on tax losses and MAT i their respective permissible carried forward penods. Addisonally, the Group has performed sensiivitics by reduciag revenues and profits by 5% and noted that there was no maternal 18PACL DR
recoversihily of the recognised deferred tax asseis

The Group has tax losses amounling fo INK 15,002 (31 March 2024 TNR 17,374) having an expiry period of | 1o 8 vears {31 March 2024 | (o § years), capital losses amownbng Lo NIL (11 March 2024 TNR Ni, unsbsosbed depreciation
arouiiing to INR 13 {3t Merch 2024 INR 5,877) which are as ailabie For niilisation svdelimiiely and MAT credit amounung to TNR 16 (31 March 2024 INR 144) haring an expiry period of 4415 years (11 Magrh 2024 5-14 vears)on which
deferred L2x assets bave not beon recogmsed a5 there reay not be sufficien: txable profits 1o oilset thase losses,

Certaun subsidiaries of the Group have undisiributed eamings which, if paid oul as dividends, would be subject (o tax n the Liands of eecipicnt. An assessable teviporary difference exsts, but no deferred tax linbility has been recopmued 2 the
Pascd is able 10 control timing of distibutions from these subsidiancs The Parexnt 15 nol expecied 1o distribute these profits from the subsidiares in the foreseenble Fulur.

There arc additional disallownaces / additions to remmed income of the Company 1 earlicr years on acoount of share based payment expenses, mierest expense and fow olher disallowances The management based an pest legal precedents
and the views of tax speciahsis believes that 1 bas strong grounds on ment for successful appea in thas matter The wtal exposure on the Group on account of such disallpwaoces is [NR 1,675 (March 31, 2024 [NR 1.675) plus aplicable
interest wl? the szttlement of such dispures. Further, the management based an past legal precedents and (e vicws of tax specialisis also believes that ng peralty can be levied on such issue.

sttt oo Tlug space has becn Left blank
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Notes io Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

11

12

13

i4

Trade receivables

Unsecured, considered good

Less: Impairment allowances for bad and doubtful debis
Total

Non-current
Current

Ne trade or other receivables are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or
receivables are due from firms or private companics respectively in which any director is a partner, director o

Notes:

(i) Trade recervables are non-inferest bearing and are generally on terms of 7-60 days.
(ii) Includes unbilled revenme of INR. 6,983 (March 31, 2024; INR. 6,547y,

(iii) Refer Note 36(i) for modification of contractual cash flows

Asat As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

26,442 24,215

26,442 14,215

(2,148) (2,356)

24,294 11,859
7.528 8,087

16,7606 13,772

Jjointly with any other person. Nor any trade or ather

(iv} Movement in the allowance for expected credit loss represents provision reversed during the year ended March 31, 2025 of INR 200 (met of provision created of

INR 281) (March 31, 2024: net provision created of INR 1.001)
{v) There 15 no material movement in trade reccivables except for billing and collection.

Prepayments

Non-current (unsecured, considered gooed unless otherwise stated)
Prepaid expenses
Totab

Current (unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
Prepaid expenses

Other assets

Noz-current (unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)

Others

Capital advance

Advances recoverable

Balarices with government aythoritics
TFotat

Current {Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated}

Advances recoverable

Balances with goverument authorities
Others

Total

Inventoyies

Consumables and spares
Finished Goods
Total

As at
31 March 2025

As af
31 March 2024

1,205 897
1,295 897
1514 1534
1,514 1,534

Asat
31 March 2025

Asat
31 March 2024

7,640 4752
47 67

31 35
7,718 4&54
1,182 1,591
2413 1619
4 4
3,599 3214

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

2289 1689
1,762 -
4,051 1,689

This space has been left blank intentionally
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Ameunts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

15

Derivative instruments

Financial assets designated as a hedge instrument at fair value
Non-current

Cash flow hedges

Derivative instruments- hedge instruments

Current

Cash flow hedges

Denivative instruments- hedge instruments
Total

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash egaivalents
Cash and cheque on hand

Balance with bank
- On current accounts
- Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months #

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Deposits with

- Remaining maturity for less than iwelve months #

- Remaining maturity for more than twelve months #

Less: amount disclosed under financial assets {others) {Note 9)
Total

# Fixed deposits of INR 27,552 (31 March 2024: INR 27,328) are under lien with various banks for

margin money for the purpose of letter of credit/bank guarantee and others,

As at
31 March 2025

Asat
31 March 2024

3,163 2,561
3,163 1,561
3932 970
3932 970

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

1 0
14,386 10,739
25,335 14,882
39,912 28521
27,095 35761

2,433 2,888
29,528 38,649
(2433) (2388)
27,005 35,761

the purpose of Debt Service Reserve Account {DSRA), as

# The bank deposits have an original maturity period of 8 days to 3,563 days (March 31, 2024: 8 days to 3,653 days) and carry an interest rate of 3.25% - 8 10% per

annum {March 31, 2024: 3.00% - 8.27%% per annum) which is receivable on maturity.

This spece has been left blank intentionally




ReNew Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
{Amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

17

174

I7R

17C

i3
18A

15B

Share capital

Anthorised share capital Number of shares Amount

As at T April 2023 3,05,00,00,060 30,500
As at 1 April 2024 3,05,00,00,000 30,500
As at 31 March 2025 3,05,00,00,000 30,500
Issued share capital Number of shares Amount

Equity shares of INR 10 each issued, subseribed and folly paid up

As at 1 April 2023 47,91,20,178 4,791
As at 1 April 2024 47,91,20,178 4,191
As at 31 March 2025 47,91,20,178 4,791

Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The Company have only one class of equity shares having par value of INR 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. If declared, the
Group wilt declare and pay dividends in Indian mpees,

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares of such Company will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of
all preferential amomnts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders of the Company.

Certain sharehoklers have an arranpement with the Holding Company to put skares held by them in the Company for cash at fair value or fixed number of equity shares of
the Holding Company at time of exercise of' put option. The Company does not have any obligation with regard to these shares,

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

As at 31 March 2025 As at 1 April 2024
Number % Holding Number % Holding
ReNew Global Energy Plc 45,04,27,864 94.01% 45,04,27.864 94 01%

As per the records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/members the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.

No shares have been allotted without payment of cash or by way of bonus shares during the vear of five years immediately preceding the balance sheet date.

Other eguity

Securities premium

As at 1 April 2023 1,27,415

As at 1 April 2024 1,27415

As at 31 March 2025 1,27,415
P

Nature and purpose

Securities premnium reserve is used to record the premitm on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised only for limited purposes such as issuance of bonus shares in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013

Capital reserve

As at 1 April 2023 287)
Utilised on acquisition of non-controlling interest 253
As at 1 April 2024 34)
Acquisition/Disposal of interest fromv/ito non-controlling interest 424
As at 31 March 2025 390
Nature and purpose

Capital reserve represents bargain purchase gain on business combinations recognised. It also includes adjustments recognised directly in equity pertaining 1o changes in
the proportion held by non-controlling interests t.e., difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests adjusted and ihe fair value of the consideration
paid or received.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemenis for the year ¢nded 31 March 2025
{Amaunts in INR miltions, unless otherwise stated)

18C Debenture redemption reserve

19D

18E

18F

As at 1 April 2023 1,360
Debenture redemption reserve created during the year {net) 3

As at 1 April 2024 1,355
Debenture redemption reserve created during the year (net) 759
Attributable to non-controlling interests (note $ I) (76)
As at 31 March 2025 1,038

Nature and purpose
As per the Companies Act, Debenture Redemption Reserve (DRR) is a reserve required to be maintained by the Companics that have 1ssued debentures, The purpose of
thus reserve is to minimise the risk of default on repayment of debentures as this reserve ensures availability of funds for meeting obligations towards debenture-holders.

Hedge reserve

Asat 1 April 2023 @17
OCT for the year (2,158)
Amount iransferred 1o property, plant and equipment 827
Attributable to non-controlling interests (note 5 1) 52
As at 1 April 2024 2,196)
OCl for the year {72)
Amount transferred to property, plant and equipment 1,427
Attributable io non-controlling interests (note 51) 29
As at 31 March 2025 !812!
Nature agd purpose

The Group uses hedging insiruments as part of its management of {oreign currency risk and interest rate risk associated on borrowings. For hedging foreign currency and
interest rate risk, the Growp uses foreign currency forward contracts, cross currency swaps (CCS), call spreads, foreign currency option contracts and interest rale BWaps
(IRS). Ta the extent these hedges are effective, the change in fair value of the hedging instrument is recognised in the cash fow hedging reserve. Amounts recogmsed m.
the cash flow hedging reserve is reclassified 1o the statement of- profit or loss when the hedged item affects profit or loss (example: interest payments).

Contribation from Holding Company

As at 1 April 2023 -
Expense for the year 888
Amount paid to Holding Company against stock option -
Transferred ta payable to holding Company (888)
As at 1 Aprit 2024 0
Expense for the year 1,512
Amount paid to Holding Company against stock option {838)
Transferred o payable to holding Company 1674)

As at 31 March 2025 SU)

Matere and purpose

The Company's certain members of senior managemeat and employees are awarded options under Holding Company Stock Option Plans and Incentive Plan (refer Note
41). The Contribution from Holding Company is used to recognise the grant date fair value of options 1ssued to employees. The Contribution from Holding Company
represents in substance equity contributions by the Holding Comnpany.

On January 30, 2023, the Holding Company has entered into a cross charge agreement with the Company, wherein the ESOP Cost that is incurred by the Company in
relation to stock option grants given to the employees of Company i.c., the Participant’s exercise of their Ogtion under the Plan, shall be paid to the Holding Company by
the Company on an annuat basis. In accordance with the same, the Company has reflected the equity settled share based payment as Payable to Holding Company against
stock option' as at March 31, 2024 and 2023, During the current year, the Company have paid INR Nil (31 March 2023 INR 1,865) apainst the said transaction fo the
Holding Company.

Foreign currency translation reserve

As at 1 April 2023 2)
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 0
As at 1 April 2024 [e3)
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 10
As at 31 March 2025 ]
Nature and purpose

Exchange differences arising on transtation of the foreign operations are recognised 1n other comprehensive income as described in accounting pelicy and accumulated in
a separate reserve within equity. The curmulative amount is reclassified to profit or loss when the foreign operation is disposed-odT,

~essseemesmsem——=-This space has been left blank intentionally
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Notes to C lidated Fi ial Staf ts for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amounts ir INR millions, unless otherwise stated}

138G Retained losses

As at 1 April 2023 (10,054)
Profit/Loss) for the peniod 7,511
Re-measurement losses on defined benefit plans {net of tax) (14)
Acquisition of inferest from non controlling interest (refer note $3) 30
Debenture redemption resarve created during the year 5
As at 1 April 2024 (12,522}
Profit{ Loss) for the period 6,559
Re-measurement losses on defined benefit plans ¢net of tax) 40
Forfeiture of vested options 103
Acquisition of interest by non controlling interest {322)
Debenture redemption reserve created during the period 159
As at 31 March 2025 {6.901)

Nature and purpose

Retained earmings are the profits{loss) that the Group has eamedfincurred tll date, less any transfers to general reserve, dividends or other distributions paid 1o
shareholders. It 1s a free reserve available to the Group and eligible for distribution to shareholders, in case where it is having positive balance representing net cammgs ull
dare.

rrommsssssssssmeenenen——-—This space has been left blmk intentionally
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(Amounls m INR ralhons, wless olwrasse stated)

19 Longterm berrowings

Debentures

= Wongonvertible debentures (secumd)
Lompubony convertible debertres (unsecyred )
Optonally convertiblo debemtures { upsocred

Torm howa from bank { secure);

Termican om francial instiuiions ¢ secured)

Secreor setired noteg

Loan from relaled party {unsccured )

Tatai Jong-terta borrowings

Amaount disclosed ander the head -Short-terin borrawhings

Net kong-term barrowings

# Certam bormosigs wsehudest sbove ass guarantecd byt Company on benalf of the Group entitcs Further,

The Group 8 barmwinga are subyeet to vanous fmancil and general govemants with whach the respecure bormowers weee

ratediatchy call the laan and borrowmes

Notes
{a} Detalls of srrurity
(Iy Nor convertible debentures {secured)

The debenfures are seeured by way of first Pan pussy chizge on the respective Ca

preserd and figure

i) {ly convertible deb

Nosrcurrent Current
Nates Eaterest Maturity As at As et A af Asut
IRfe % puu. 31 March 2428 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 31 Marck 2024
n 6.0%-11 30° Apri] 2025 [e June 2054 50.146 59217 287 4093
in) 8 O0Pe- 1300°; March 2027 {o func 2061 20245 18536 -
) BO0 o= 1200% April 2043 to July 2053 22487 171814 - B
v} &21%- 9705, Jume 2025 to March 2051 146,267 145471 17552
[{2] 660% - 1100 Junc 2025 to Juno 2045 211 400 207284 20063
{4 AT - 6700, March 2627 to Tuly 2028 106953 1.03 586 .
T4i%- 360% Aptil 2031 1o beplember 2030 8561 B8 467
556,159 531, ﬁ M
“ (60 8501
S66 159 S5 3 =

cerlan secunties hokd 11 aubmdiary cormpnnees are: plodged with banks and financi msitubiars a5 sscunty for Gaancl facrites oblansd by

1 compliiee <1 al March 31. 2025 and March 31 2024 The non-conphance with these covenants € nol romediated weauld pe

mpary & urEnovable properues. movable apcts. curres Assets, cash accrls moliudig but not limmted to cumment asscts, racesables. ook debis cash aad fard |

Entity Tenure Tota] Muturity date Number of Interest Meautorium period Corversion Terms
ivean) proceeds debepmmes CLOupHA rate
ReNesv Solar Enorgy i Jhaskhard tiroe) Prvate | eted L L March 31, 2027 8,775,454 & 00% Not apphicable N
1B Vom Solur Seven Private Listed 0 13 August 18, 2060 and Jung 17, 2081 2209544 1000% 24 maonits from the dato of 1w ::.: Sg‘;‘)“;:};“ et bfv':::‘d :°1')
Renew Surya Rostam Private Lomyted 26 is308 August §, 2048 860076750 13 0% Mat applicable o )
Toral 16.296 877,151,747 . .
{iii) Opdionally convertible debetures (umsecurud)
Entity Tenure Totl Matwrity date Number of Interest Mo rutortum pe o Convervian Tenys
(venrs) debentures e =
ReNew Surve Ojes Penata Limued Wi " Ddav 912055 ad Jaly § 3007 245 04565 T Notappheable Thiae cquity share will be sssed for
¢ach UCD on the outorty date (| 1)
at the apbion of holiter subroct 1o
sherchalding patiem bewng eonatane
|Hebos Infratech Pavate Lumed 2 Apmni 28 2053 le.2e0000 120024 Nolapphcable Eaquity share will be 1550t for cach
ReNew S Skt Ervats [ amted n Apmt 28, 205% 1218391 12 00% Not agplicable GCD on e mamney date based an
ReNew Pover Services Pmy ats Tiguted 0 1nis? Apnl 1R 2651 260 42d 46T 12 00% Not appheeble face value
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Nates to Consalicdated Flnancial Statcencets for the yeur ended 11 March 2025
fAmonnts m BNR rmlliens wndens otherwse stated)

(iv) Term oan from banks (secured)

Secured by pan passu first charge by way of mortaage of ] the present and fmure izmovable propertica, Inpatheration of movable suscts, book debt, operatiig cash Qows. roocvabley, commeamons, revenus, 4 bank accounts and s of ol gt wtke. interens
benelits, clatms ete of project docutrrats £nd insurance comracts of the Teapective Civowp company These loaks psually heve repavmert vcle of manlily  quarterly peyments. For all lang-tonm loan arrangermcnts fom buatz, to Group bas bod wiih the delt covenants as
st March 31, 2025 and 2024

¥} Term boan from financial instiubions (scered)
Sexured by a il pan passy charge by way of morigage oa mnovable propertics, fisl pen paun charge by wav of hvpothecation of teagiide moveshle asscls. firet charge on 6! the coment sssets and accotnta, Furthor secured by wry of surgnmen: of
intsrest. benclit, clams and dermands under al the projent agreemends, lelter of oredit, wsuragee comacts and proeecds, band oo, of the resy sy Theso k bave repavment evele of el quartery ey

(vi} Listedl sentor secuped notes

Nates are secured by way of cxclusive morigage aver ermovabls properies 2ud excluave okiarge by way of hvpothesation of Langiblc and itangble movable amssta. Furiker socured by wiy of rypothecation over nghts and benef, clamma and derimnda under ] the pmjoct
agrecanis, letier of credil, maurance commaols and proceeds, guaranlees. perfirmance bond sl of the campany Sesondary cherge over the pocourt recesvables, book debls and cash fows. The semor aecuzed notes Al be repaid through bullet paymments darisg frorm Joly
2036 to fuly 2028
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Notes to C i Financial St; for the year ended 31 March 2025
{Amounts in INR millions, unless otherwrse Stated)

() The details of non convertible debentures (secured) ave as below:

Listing status  Debenture Series  Face value per Numbers of NCDs outstending Outstending amount Nomire Earliest redemption  Last date of repayment  Tertms of repayment
NCD (INR} As at March 31, As at March 31, iuterest rate (p.a.) date
2025 2024 2028 204
Ligted. Mot applecable 10,050,000 1,943 2305 1,945 2,305 975% 30.8ep-25 31-Cei-26 Half yearly
Lasied Series-2 HL00,000 231 1,033 D31 1,033 9 L@, 30-8ep-25 30-Sep-34 Halfvearly
Lisied Senes-3 10,00,000 3,964 4305 3564 4,305 910 30-Sep.23 30-Sgp-34 Halfyearly
Nou listed Not applicable 10,00,600 1,342 1445 1,342 La43 603%% 28-Feb-26 22-Aug-26 Yearly
Nom hsted Not appiicable 10,00.000 5863 6314 5,863 6,314 603, 28-Feb-26 22-Aug-26 Yearly
Nom hsted Not appliceble 10,06,000 3323 3579 333 3579 6103% 28-Feb-26 22-Aug-26 Yearly
Non hsted Not applicable EG,00,000 10,157 10932 10,157 10,939 6.03% 28-Feb-26 22-Aug-16 Yearty
Non hsled Not applicabie 10,00,060 1,504 1620 1,564 1,620 603% 28-Feb-26 22-Aug-26 Yearly
Nen lisied Not applicable 10,00,004 3175 3419 3075 3419 603%0 28-Feb-26 22-Aug-20 Yeuly
Nom hsied Not applicable 10,00,000 3341 4136 3,841 4,136 6.03% 28-Feb-26 22-Ang-26 Yoearly
Lasted ot applecable 100,000 25,000 25000 2,500 2500 9.55% 11-Aug-26 11-Aug-26 Bullet
Non hsted Not applicable 10 3,67.32,513 36732513 367 367 11500 05-Deg-52 05-Dec-32 Bullet
Non histed Not apphcable 0 2,66,61,237 2666] 237 267 267 11.50 16-Feb-33 16-Feb-53 Thalet
Non listed ot applicabie n 05,94,200 9504200y 6 6 11502 09-Now-53 09-Nen-53 Buiet
Nom listed Not applicable 10 235,598,000 23598000 236 236 11507 09-Nov-53 09-Nov.53 Bullet
Nom Isted Not applicable 1,00,000 20,004 20000 2000 2,060 B30 01-Jun-21, 01-Jun-26 Bullet
Listed Serics-A 1,00,000 1,500 1500 150 150 1024% 25-Mm-26 25-May-26 Bullet
Listed Series-B 106,900 3400 - 340 16 03% 08-Nov-24 08-Nov-24 Buliet
Listed Sencs- 1,00,000 2600 - 260 1090380 23-Fan25 23-Jan-25 Bullet
Tasted Mot applicable 1,90,000 80,000 BOOGD 2,000 8,000 1018% 30-Apr-25 30-Ape-25 Bulket
Listed Not applicable 1,600,000 65,000 TO000 6,500 7,006 990%; 31-Dec.25 30-Apr-27 Yerle
Non hated Net apphicable 10 19903929 - 19y - 11500 28-Jun-54 28-Jun-34 Bullet
Nom histed Not applicable 10 67,9118 - 68 - 11508 28-Tun.54 28-Jun-34 Bedict
Noa hsted Not applicable 1 1,96,26 496 - 1%6 - 18.50%, 28-fun-34 28-Tun-54. Bullet
Listed Not applicable 1,068,000 50,000 - 5,000 n 14 182, A2-Aug-25 22-Aug-25 Balkt
Lasled Not applicable 100,000 12278 . 7,228 - §44% 3G-Jun-25 31-Aug-29 Querterly
Total (gross) 68,872 60,311
Transaetion costs, discount on wssue and premium on redemption 4,102 299
Total 7,974 53,310

At e o e This 8pace has been left blank wtenne




ReNew Private Limited

Notes to Conselidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

{Amounis in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

20 Lease liabilities

21

22

13

24

Nen-current
Lease liabthities (refer Note 403

Current
Lease liabilities (refer Note 40)
Total

Deferred government grant

Current
Non-current

Long-term provisions

Provision for gratuity (Refer note no.39 )
Prowision for Warranty*

Provision for decommissioning costs
Total

* Includes INR 42 warranty provision created during the year (Mar-24 Nil)

As at 01 April 2023

Arised during the year

Unwinding of discount and changes in discount raie
Disposal of subsidiary

Adjustment during the year*

As at 31 March 2024

Arised during the year

Disposal of subsidiaries

Unwinding of discount and changes in discount rate
Adjustment during the year*

As at 31 Mareh 2025

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

3782 7477
5,282 7477
967 858
067 858

As at
31 March 2025

Asat
31 Murch 2024

11
181

11
192

192

203

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

266 266
42 B
9,484 10,508
9,792 10,773

{2,540)

Provision for

decommissioning

costs

{9.656)

10,508
864
(61}
773

9,484

*Adjustment during the vear relates to revision in the provision for decommissioning costs on account of changes in the estimated future costs, or in the discount

rate applied as at the end of Tepotting period.

Decommissioning costs

Provision has been recognised for decommissioning costs associated with land taken on leases whergin the Group is committed 10 decommission the site as a

result of construction of wind and solar power projects.

Other non-current liabilities

Deferred revenue
Security deposit received
Total

Short term borrowings

Working capital term loan (secured)
Term loan from bank (secured)
Acceptances (secured)

Buyer's / supplier's greds

Asat
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

634 174
1] -
634 174

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

18,670

55,488

11,249

27,680
11,123
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Notes to Conselidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

25

Lean from related party (unsecured) 286 171
Term loan from Banks - 1,600
Current maturities of long term borrowings (refer note I 60,850 30,244
Total 1,39,402 82,067

Working capital term ioan (secured)
The term loan from bank carries interest ranging from 8 45% to 11.15% per annum (March 31, 2024° 6.75% to 10.75%0 per annutn) and is repayable witha bullet

Acceptances (secured}

Acceptances represent creditors to whom banks have issued letter of credits. The letter of credits are secured by pari passu charge over all present and future
current assels and movable fixed assets of the respective project Company for which such acceptances are taken and the discount rate of acceptances ranges from
7.00% t¢ 9.94% per annum (March 31, 2024: 695310 11,529 per annuen). The maturity period ranges from 3 10 12 monihs.

Buyer's / supplier's credit {secured)

Buyer's/ Supplier credit carries an interest rate of 3.35% to 4.949, (March 31, 2024: 3.90% to 6.08%:) and is secured by first pari passu first charge by way of
mortgage of all the present and future immovable properties, hypothecation of movable assets, book debt, operating cash flows, receivables, commgsions,
revenue of whatspever nature, ail bank accounts and all intangibles assets, assignment of all rights, title, interests, benefits, claims etc. of project documents, PPA,
and insurance contracts of the Company. Creation of charge by way of mortgage and assignment is under Process.

Loan from related party (unsecured)
Unszcured loan from related party 15 tepayable on demand and carries interest at 9.5% per annum {March 31, 2024: 8%, per annum)

# Certain borrawings included above are puaranteed by the Company on behalf of the Group entities, Further, certain securities held in subsidiary companies are
pledged with banks and financial institutions as security for financial facilities obtained by subsidiary companies

Trad bi As at Asat

rade payables 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Current
Trade payables 7.861 8,765
Total 71,861 8,765

This space has been iefl blank intentionally
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

(Amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

26

27

28

29

Derivative instruments

Financial Lizbilities designated as a hedge instrument at fair value
Non-corrent

Cash flow hedges

Derivative instruments - hedge instruments

Current

Cash flow hedges

Denvative instruments - hedge instruments
Total

Financial liabilities
Non Current

Financial liabilities 2t amortised cost
Liability for operation and maintenance and other contractual liabilitics

Current
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Others

Liability for operation and maintenance and other contractual liabilities
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings

Interest accrued but not due on debentures

Capital creditors

Purchase consideration payable

Payable to Holding Company against stock option

Total

Other current liabilities

Advance from customers
Other payabies
Total

Short term provisions

Provision for gratuity
Provision for compensated absences
Total

As at
31 March 2025

Asat
31 March 2024

217 215
217 215
604 321
604 321
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
1,015 1,851
1,0&”5= 1,851
308 340
2915 2,309
2,924 836
33,012 40,002
44 44
2,538 1,864
41,741 45,485
As at Asat

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

1.064 <
4,464 4,331
5528 4,331

Asat
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

50 33
271 304
321 337

T'his space has been left blank intentionally.
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Nodes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended
30 Revenue 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Sale of power 81,617 76,635
Transmission line projects 1,913 4,347
Sale of goods 13,194 -
Others 350 348
Total 97,074 81,336

The above revenue includes (a) revenue from contract with customers of INR 96,098 (March 31, 2024; INR 81,108) and (b) operating lease income of INR 929
(March 31, 2024 INR 222) which is a part of transmission line project. Further revenue from sale of goods includes INR 355 towards variable consideration in

form of liquidated damages provision,

The Group during the year recognised impairment losses on receivables arising from contracts with customers, inchided under other expenses in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss, amounting to INR NIL (31 March 2024; INR 1,001).

a) The location for all of the revenue from contracts with customers is India,

b} The timing for all of the revenue from contracis with customers wrt sale of power is over time and wrt sale of goods is at point of time.

¢} The Group has certain power purchase agreements entered with customers which contains provision for claiming cost over-nuns due 1o change in law clause,
subject to approval by appropriate authority. During the year ended March 31, 2025, on receipt of approval of cost over-run of INR 102 (March 31, 2024- TNR
Nil, March 31, 2023: INR 641), the Group has included the same as part of transaction price. Pending approval of cost over-runs of INR 3,581 (March 31, 2024:
INR 3,578} till the reporting period end, the Group has not included these over-runs as part of transaction price applying guidance on constraining estimates of
variable consideration. Out of cost over-runs approved till the reporting period end, the Group during the year ended March 31, 2025 hag recognised revenue of
INR 99 (March 31, 2024: INR 110).

d} Transaction price - remaining performance obligation;
The remaining performance obligation disclosure provides the aggregate amount of the transaction price yet to be recognised as at the end of the reporting period
and an explanation as to when the Group expects to recognise these amounts in revenue, Applying the practical expedient as given in Ind AS 1 15, the Group has
not disclosed the remaining performance obligation related disclosures for contracts s the revenue recognised corresponds directly with the value to the customer
of the entity’s performance completed to date, except to the extent stated n Note 54, The cost over-runs which are pending approval of customers have heen
excluded for this disclosure because these were not included in the transaction price, These cost over-runs were excluded from the transaction ptice in accordance
with the guidance on constraining estimates of variable consideration,

As at As at

f} Contract balances: 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Trade receivables (refer note 11} 24,204 21,859
Contract assets (refer note 54) 2,832 1.716
Contract liabilities (refer note 28) 1,064 -

For the year ended

31 Other income 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Interest income accounted at amortised cost
- on fixed deposit with banks 3,779 3,886
- on loan to related parties 39 -
- on safeguard duty recoverable 135 131
- others 1,847 2,518
Compensation for loss of revenue 204 221
Income from leases 2 49
Gain on on sale of fixed assets 4 f
Insurance claim 907 758
Fair value change of mutuat fund (including realised gain) 21 90
Gatns on fair value changes of financial instruments (other than hedge instruments) 91 98
Interest income on income tax refund 195 160
Unwinding of financial assets 301 504
Gain on settlement of financial liabilities 750
Unwinding of contract assets 183 530
Miscellaneous income 422 432
Total 9,040 9,378




ReNew Private Limited

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

(Amounts in INR rillions, unless otherwise stated)
32 Changes in inventories of finished goods

Opening balance

Finished goods

Total opening balance

Closing balance

Finshed goods

Total closing balance

Increase in inveniory

Finished goods

Increase in inventory

33 Employee benefits expense

Salanies, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident and other funds (Refer note no 39

Share based payments (Refer note no 41)
Gratuity expense (Refer note no 39)
Staff welfare expenses

Total

34 Other expenses

Legal and professional fees
Corporate social responsibility
Travelling and convevance
Lease rent relating to short term leases
Director's commission
Printing and stationery

Rates and taxes

Payment to auditors

Insurance

Operation and maintenance
Repair and maintenance

Loss on sale/damage of property plant & equiprment

Bidding expenses

Advertising and sales promotion
Security charges
Communicatiot: costs
[mpairment of carbon credit
Impairment of Inventory
Impairment allowances for financial assets
Warranty Expenses

Donation

Liquidated damages
Miscellaneous expenses

Total

35 Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (refer note 5)

Amortisation of intangible assets {refer note 6)
Depreciation of right of use assets (refer note )
Total

For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
1,762 -
1,762 -
(1,762) -
{1,762) -
For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
2,726 2,068
112 98
547 259
41 36
104 75
3,530 2336
For the vear ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
1,026 920
311 240
424 494
26 38
3 2
3 4
1,033 1,044
87 110
931 1,017
6,264 5937
157 243
18 18
51 25
86 103
605 542
235 247
13 105
37 149
- 1.573
71 -
428 490
179 240
087 613
12975 14,154
For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
18,431 15,136
1,519 1,485
106 481
20,056 17,102




ReNew Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Finaucial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended

36 Finance costs 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Interest expense# 48,776 41,267
Bank charges 929 677
Unwinding of discount on provisions 773 977
Losses on fair value changes on derivatives at FVTPL* 220 1,190
Option premium amortisation 524 1,829
Unamortised ancillary borrewing cost written off 173 301
Total 51,395 46,241

#Includes interest on lease liabilities of INR 615 {March 31, 2024: INR 671)
*Includes cumulative losses that were reported in equity and have been transferred to stalement of profit or loss in respect of forecasted transaction that arg no

longer expected to occur.

(i) Modification of contractual cash flows
The Ministry of Power in its Gazette Notification dated June 3, 2022, established rules providing settlement mechanism for the amounis owed by generating
companigs, infer-state transmission licensees and electricity trading licensees.

The Group's customers subject to this scheme shall pay the outstanding receivables due to the Group in equated monthly instalments without 1nterest.
Accordingly, the Group has recorded the modification in terms of the contract and the resultant loss primarily due to the extended interest free credit period has
been recognised as a finance cost in the statement of profit or loss.

Unwinding income on these trade receivables of INR 301 (31 March 2024- INR 504) is recognised as "Unwinding income of financial assets” under Finance
income'. Trade recervables outstanding of INR 1451 (31 March 2024: 1,664), from customers opting for EMI pursuant to LPS Rules, which are not due within the
next twelve months from the end of the reporting date, are disclosed as non-current.

For the year ended
37 Earnings per share (EPS} 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Profit attributable to equity holders of parent for basic and diluted EPS 6,559 1511
Weighted average humber of equity shares for calenlating basic EPS 47.91,20,178 4791,20,178
Basic and diluted profit per share (in INR) 13.69 15.68

This space has been left blank intentionally
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
{Amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

38 Disposal gronp held for sale and disposal of subsidiaries

(i) For the year ended March 31, 2025

{a) On December 19, 2024, the Group through its subsidiary, ReNew Private Limited (RPL) enfered into a Share Purchase and Shareholder Agreement (SPSA)
with Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust {Buyer) for the sale of entire stake of 'ReNew Sun Waves Private Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Group having project capacity of 300 MW solar power jocated in Jaisatmer district of Rajasthan. The total sale consideration o account of above

transactions was INR 5,196 against net assets of INR 2,123 which resuited in a gain of
wherein the entire control in the entity was transfered to the Buyer.

Assets and liabilities of the entity sold at the date of disposal

INR 3,073, The transaction was completed on March 7, 2025

Particulars Amount
Agssets

Property, plant and equipment £1,877
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalenis 307
Right of Use assets 200
Cash and cash equivalents 4
Trade receivables 177
Other assets 433

Total assets

Liabilities

Long-terin borrowings
Short term borrowings
Lease liability
Long-Term Provisions
Trade payables

Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Net assets sold

Sales consideration
Gain on sale

Consideration satisfied by:
Cash and cash equivalents

The results of the subsidiary sold included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss were as follows:

Income

Expenses

Profit before tax
Income tax expense
Profit after tax

Impact on cash flew statement

During the year ended March 31, 2025, the aforesaid subsidiary contributed INR 1,570 (March 31,
flows, generated INR 791 (March 31, 2024: used cashflows of INR 920) towards investing activities
INR 929) towards financing activities.

Net cash inflow arising on disposal
Consideration received in cash and cash equivalents
Less: cash and cash equivalents disposed

(a) 13,403

9,854
849
207

61

21

288

(b) 11,280

(&)= (a} - (b) 2,123
(d) 5,19

{d)- (e} 3473

5,196

For the year ended

31 March 2625 31 March 2024

1.717 1,899
{1,461) (1,567)
256 12
(66) (99)
190 233

2024: INR 1,722) to the Group's net operating cash
and used cashflows of INR 1,962 (March 31, 2024

5,196
(409)
4,787
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Notes to Conselidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

(b) On December 30, 2023, the Group through its subsidiary Regent Climate Connect Knowledge Solutions Private Limited entered info a Share Purchase

<

—

Agreement with Nitin Tanwar & Sanand Sule (Buyers) for the sale of Climate Connect Digital Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group which is
in the business of providing data-driven decarbonization solutions located in United Kingdom. The total sale consideration for sale was INR 4 against net
assets of (INR 13) which resuited in a gain of INR 17 The transaction was consummerated on June 21, 2024 wherein the contro] in the entity was
transfered to Buyer.

Assets and liabilifies of entities sold a¢ the date of disposal

Particulars Amount
Assets

Cash and cash eguivalents 14
Trade receivables 11
Other assets 12
Total assets (2) 37
Liabilities

Trade payabies 50
Other liabilities .
Total liabilities (b 30
Net assets sold (€} =1(a) - (b) (13)
Sales consideration (d) 4
Gain on sale d)- () 17

Consideration satisfied by:
Cash and cash equivalents -

The results of subsidiaries sold included in the statement of profit or loss were as follows:
Aol

For the year
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Income - 16

Expenses 15 (51)
Profit before tax (15 (36)
Income tax expense - 36

Profit after tax (15)

Impact on cash flow statement

During the year ended March 31, 2025 and 2024, the aforesaid subsidiary contributed immaterial numbers to the cashilows for the Group.

Net cash outflow arising on disposal
Consideration received in cash and cash equivalents

Cansideration received in cash and cash equivalents 4
Less: cash and cash equivalents disposed (14}
{10)

On March 19, 2025 , the Group has entered into a Share Purchase Agreement with 50 Hertz Limited (Buyer") for the sale of its subsidiary "Regent Climate
Connect Knowledge Solutions Private Limited" for a consideration of INR 57, Accordingly, the assets and liabilitties of INR 94 and INR 41 have been
classified as "Asset held for sale” and "liabilities held for sule” respetively. Subsequently, the sale transaction was completed on April 22, 2025 wherein the
entire control in the entity was transfered 1o the Buyer.

d) Additionally, investments in 3E NV of INR 3,868 have been included under "Assets held for sale” as described under Note 52(a);).
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(ii) For the year ended March 31, 2024

(a) On 8 Janvary 2024, the Group through its subsidiary ReNew Solar Power Private Limited (RSPPL) entered into a Share Purchase and Sharehelder
Agreement (SPSA) with Axis Trustee Services Limited and Indrgrid Investment Managers Limited for the sale of ReNew Solar Utrja Private Limited (Solar
Urja), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group having project capacity of 300 MW solar power located in Jaisalmer district of Rajasthan. The total sale
constderation on account of above transactions was INR 5,283 against net assets of INR 1,944 which resulted in a gain of INR 3,339 The transaction was
consummerated on 23 February 2024 wherein the enire control in the entity was fransfered to Indigrid (‘Buyer').

Assets and liabilities of the entity sold at the date of disposat

Particnlars Amount
Assels

Property, plant and equipment 12,182
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 999
Right of Use assets 68
Cash and cash equivalents [,229
Trade recervables {18
Other assets 1226
Total assets {a) 16,122
Liabilities

Long-term borrowings 10,893
Short term borrowings 2342
Lease liability 199
Leng-Term Provisions 113
Trade pavables 32
Cther liabilities 498
Total liabilities (b) 14,078
Net assets sold (¢)=(a)-(b) 1,944
Sales consideration (d) 5,283
Gain on sale (d)-{c) 3.339

Consideration satisfied by:
Cash and cash equivalents 5,283
The results of the subsidiary sold included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss were as follows:

For the year ended
Income 1,816 2,255
Expenses (1,577) (1,698)
Profit before tax 239 557
Income tax expense {74) (357)
Profit after tax 165 200

Impact on cash flow sintement

Dunng the vear ended 31 March 2024, the aforesaid subsidiary contributed INR 1,468 (31 March 2023: INR. 1,956) to the Group's net operating cash flows,
INR 491 (31 March 2023; used cashflows of INR 1,695) towards investing activities and used cashflows INR 891 (31 March 2023: INR 271) towads
financing activities

Net cash inflow arising on disposal

Consideration received in cash and cash equivalents 5,283
Less: cash and cash equivalents disposed (1,229)
4,034
eyt y—

(b) On 24 April 2023, the Group through its subsidiary ReNew Solar Power Private Limited (RSPPL) entered into a Share Purchase Agreement with JLT
Energy 9 for the sale of entities stated below. Each of the below mentioned subsidiary had a capacity of 20MW and carried out business of solar power
projects. The total sale consideration on account of above transactions was INR 1,801 against net assets of INR 1,480 which resulted in a gain of INR 321.
Date of loss of control for following entifies are as follows:
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Name of subsidiary

Date of toss of control

Vivasvat Solar Energy Private Limited
Izra Solar Energy Private Limited
Abha Sunlight Private Limited

Nokor Bhoomi Private Limited

11 August, 2023
21 September, 2023
27 September, 2023
27 September, 2023

Nokor Solar Energy Private Limited 12 October , 2023
Assets and liabilities of entities sold at the date of disposal
Particulars Amount
Assets
Property, plant and equipment 4513
Bank balances other than cash and ¢ash equivalents 92
Raght of Use assets 151
Cash and cash equivalents 123
Trade receivables 114
Trade receivable- non cuirent 25
Other assets 66
Total assets (a) 53183
Liabilities
Long-term borrowings 3330
Short term borrowings 191
Lease liability-non current 133
Long-Term Provisions 37
Trade payables 25
Other liabilities 20
Total liabilities b 3,736
Net assets sold {e} = (a)- (b) 1,447
Sales consideration (d) 1,801
Gain on sale () - (c) 354
Consideration satisfied by:
Cash and cash equivalents
The resulis of subsidiaries sold included in the statement of profit or loss were as follows:

For the year ended
Income 380 722
Expenses (1,061) {543)
Preofit before tax (682) 179
Income tax expernse 174 {30)
Profit after tax {508) 149

Impact on cash flow statement

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the subsidiaries sold paid INR 564 (31 March, 2023: generated INR 720) to the Group's net operating cash flows,
contributed INR 1,909 (31 March, 2023: used cash flows INR 370) ( in respeet of investing activities and paid INR 1,281 (31 March, 2023: used cashflows

Net cash inflow arising on disposal

Consideration received in cash and cash equivalents
Consideration received in cash and cash equivalents
Less: cash and cash equivalents disposed

1,801
{123)
1,679
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39 Gratuity and other post-employment benefit plans

Retirement benefit n the form of provident fund 15 a defined contribution scheme The contributions to the provident fund are charged to the statement of profit or loss for fie year

when the contributions are due The Group has no cbligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund

The Group has a defined henefit gratuty plan Gratusty is computed as 15 days sal

The followmg tables summanse the components of net benefit SXPENSE Teco;

the consolidated statement of financisd positron for gratuity

) Statement of profit or loss and OC]

ary, for every completed year of service or part thereof i excess of & months and 1s payable on
rtirementtenmination/resignation. The benefit vests on the emplayees after completzon of 5 vears of service The Gratutty Labitity has not been externally funded Group makes

proviston of such gratusty hiability m the books of accounts on the basis of agtusral valustion as per the projected umt credit method

gnised 1n the consolidated statement of profit ar loss and the unfunded status and amounts recogmsed n

For the year ended
Net employees benefit expense recognised in employes cost 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Current service cost 95 73
Inferest cost on benefit obiiganen 20 16
Net benefit expense* ii5 39
* Thus amount 1s inelusive of amount capitalised 1 different projects
b) Balance sheet

Asat Asat

Benefit liability 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Present value of unfunded obligation 36 300
Net liability 316 300

For the vear ended

31 March 24025 31 March 224

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation
Opening defined berefit obligation 300 231
Current service cost g5 73
Interest cost 20 16
Benefits pmd (60} {34}
Lubalihes assumed! (settled) 0y {0
Rem easurements during the year due to:
- Expenence adjustments (8) 10
- Change i financial assumptions G 4
- Change in demographic assumptions (41) -
Closing defined benefit abligation 315 300
The entire amount of plan obligation 15 unfimded
¢} The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations

For the year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Discount rate 6 60% T20%
Salary escalahon 10 00%5 10008,

The estimates of future salary mereases considered in actuanial valuation take account of inflation, total amount of inflation, sentortty, promotion and other relevant factors, such as
supply and demand im the employment market

The Group regularly sssesses these assumptions with the projected long-terny plans and prevalent industry standards The ipact of sensitivity due to changes i the mgnficant
actuarial assumptions on the defined benefit obligations 1 given in the table below

Faor the year ended
Hacticniars Change in 31 March 2025 31 March 204
__sssumptions
Dascount rate +035% 34 289
5% 330 312
Salary escalation +05% 328 309
-0.5% 316 292

The sensitevity anaiysis above has been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obliganon as a resubt of reasonable changes in key assumptions
aceurming at the end of the year
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Notes to Consolidated Financinl Statenents for the year ended 31 March 2025
{Amounts in INR milltons, unless otherwise stated}

d)} Projected plan cash flow

The table below shows the expected cash flow profile of the benefits to be paid to the current membership of the plan based on past service of the employees as at the valuatio date
Asat As at
Maturity Profile 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Within next 12 months 52 33
From 2nd to 5th year 192 127
From 6th to 9th year 117 122
From 10th year and beyond 108 299

The weighted average duratien to the payment of these cash fiows is 5 06 years (March 31, 2024 7 27 vears)

Risk analysis

The Group 13 exposed to & number of nisks m the defined benefit pians. Most simaficant nisks pertaining 1o defined benefits plans and management estmatton of the 1mpact of these
nisks are a3 follows.

(i) Inflation risk: Currently the Group has not funded the defined benefit plans Therefore, the Group will have to bear the enfire increase in lhability en account of inflation

(ii} Longevity risk/life expectancy: The present value of the defined benefit plan hability i calculated by reference to the best estrmate of the mortality of plan participants both
durmg and at the end of the employment An mncrease in the Iife expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan lnabality

(1if) Salary growth risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan l:abiiity 15 calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan partictpants An increase in the salary of the plm
participants will increase the plan habiity

For the year ended
Trefined contribution plan: 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Contmibution to provident fund & other fund charged to statement of profit & loss 347 i
(tnelusive of amount caputalised m different projects)

40 Leases
As a lessee
The Group has entered into leases for its offices and leasehold tands. These leases generally have Ecase terms of 5 to 35 years The Group also has certan leases of regional offices
and office equipment with lease terms of 12 months or less and icase of office equipments with low value. The Gi oup applies the “shost-term lease’ and *lease of low-value sssets”
recogrubion exemptions for these leases
Set out befow are the carying amounts of lease hahilties and the movements dusing the year:

For the year ended

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Qpening balance at beginning of the year 8,335 4,159
Additions 924 2,266
Capitahsed during the year 244 145
Accretion of nterest 615 650
Drsposal of subsidianes (206) {337y
Payments {603) (388}
Balance as at end of the year 9,249 8&35
Current 967 458
et 8282 7477

a) There are no restnctions or covenants mipesed by leases

b) Refer note 34 for rental expense recorded for short-term leases and iow value leases.

¢} There are no amounts payable toward vanable Jease expense recogused for the year ended 31 March 2025 and March 2024
d) The maturtty analysis of Jease liabiltties are disclosed m note 47(c)

€) There are no leases which have not yet commerniced to which the lessee is committed.

f) The effective interest rate for lease habalinies ts 9.09% to 9 30% {March 31, 2024 9 30%),
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As a lessor

As desenibed m Note 33(a), the Group has entered mto Transmission Services Agreements {TSAs) to set-up two ansmission projects on Busld, Qwr, Operate and Mamtam (BOOM)
basts for a 35-year period as against the economic usefud life of 50 years Out of two projects, construction on one project is completed n one of the project and other one 1= sull under
construction. As more fully explained in nete 53(a), pursuant to change i the regulations, the Group has assessed and concluded that Appendrx-D Ind AS 115,'Service Concesston
Arrangements' accountmg 1s no applicable to these TSAs, rather, these TSAs would contam a lzase of Transmussion Line under Ind AS 1 16, i addsion to service element under [nd AS
115 The smd lease 15 assessed to be m the nature of the operabing lease The lease of one project, for which construction was completed, has commenced during the year The lease of
under construchon project 18 expected commence i the comng finencial year once construction is completed

Both the agreements provide for fixed lease rentals that progressively reduce for the first 8 years and then remam constant for remainder of the TSA tenure, subject only to the Group
ensunng minmum specfied availabdity of the asset

The reatal mcome recognised by the Group on straight-line basis dunng the year ended March 31, 2025 13 INR 929 (March 31, 2024 INR 204} Future minimum renfals recewable
under non-cancellable operating leases as at March 31, 2025 are {1) Within ane year- INR 1074 {i} between 1 - 2 years - INR 1,071, () between 2 - 3 years - INR 1,071, ()
between 3 - 4 years - INR 1,032, (v) between 4 - 5 vears - INR 968 and {v1) Mote than 5 years - INR 22,164 (March 31, 2024 are 1) Within one year- INR 1,047, (1) between1 - 2
years - INR 1,073, (1) between 2 - 3 years » INR 1,071, {1v) between 3 - 4 years - INR 1.071, (v) between 4 - 5 years - INR 1,014, and {v1) More than 5 years - INR. 23,005)

This space has been left blank mtentionally
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41 Share based payment

#) Replacement of Group Stock Option Plans

Cha Auyst 23, 2021, all vested and unvested optisn outstanding for Groap Steck Option Flans were e
catitled 10 0.5282 Holding Company Stock Option for every one Gronp Stock Option held for both vesied and umvesied aptions with 5o changes in vesting
i INR, pot comveried into US Drollars nsing exchapge mite as on the date of eplacement, as exercise pac

The replaceme of Groug Siack Option Plans with Helding Compam Stock Option s &
Stock Opticn Plans plns wncremerta] fair vahie (if o) measu
*Contribution from Holding Compamy™. The modificat

walug and had contiued (o messure the amount revognised

with the Company, wherein the ESOP Cost 1hat is incureed b
the Congaany on an annual basis. 1n accordance with the sanie, the Cos
Company have paid INR 836 {March 31, 2024- TNR Ni) agans: the

The Fanr vabug of stock options was

for the year ended 31 March 2025

at the daie of

valuation of Holdmg Company Stock Option Plan as ar the date of mplacement

placed by abe "2021 Stock Entitloment Program’” of the Co

e of Helding Company Siock Option

as an ang

ion reduces the fair value of the siock opuons graned, measnred immediately bl
ised for services received based om the grant date fair valve of the Group Stock Opt
v the Company in rlation 10 stock ophon grants given 1d the cinployees afl
mpaey has reflected the equity seitfe share hased pavment as 'Paya)
sad éransaction to the Holdiag Company

using Black-Scholes valuation model, taking snto acconm the tezms and conditions

Particalars

Dividend yield (23)

oY

Lile

Expected volatility (¢} 236M5-371.87% 33 471°,- 49 979
Rusk-Jree interest mie (°5) 329%%0-63%% 005%,- 15%%
Weighted avirage expecied fife of apuons granted 007 years - 6 86 years 107 years - 6 86 vears
Weighied avemge share price INR 606 96 USD B 17

Groep Stock Holding Company

e au the date of replacement] related to ermployees of the Group arc recogmsed s employees’ expenses,

for 25 a modification of the Gsoup Stock Option Plans. ESOP

The expected volatility refleess the assumption that the histarical vofatility over a perrod simnlar to the Yife of 1hs opuons 15 indicative of fitse treuds, which may nol necessatily be the actual oucome

The relevant termes of 1he Holding Company Stock Option Fians are as below

erpany {Holding Compasy Slock Opion Plans} The coployees of e {roup were
period and exercsse period Tl exercise prece of Group Stock Option, whuch was Tixed

expenses |grant daie dair value as per Group
aver vesting penod. wikh corresponding crodil beng recogmised as
ore and afier the modification, and therefore the Group I2s ot 1aken into accouns 1ol deciease m Eair
tont Plang granted. On 30 Janaary 2023, the Holding Company has entered into 2 cross char
Company ie., the Participan s exercise of their Option under the Plan, shall be pad 1o the Company by
le to Holding Company agninst stock option’ 15 al March 31, 2025 and 2004 Duriag the curzent year, the

cement

upair which the shere options were granied. Follewing arc the assurmplees wsed

Holding Company Siock Option Plans
Particolars 2013 Stock Option Plan 2048 Steck Option Plan 2017 Stock Option Plan 2016 Stock Cption Plan 2014 Stock Option Plan 2011 Stock Option Plan
Modified
Grant date August 16, 2019 Multiple Multiple Multipie Muktipls Mulupk:
facemient dats Augnst 23 200 ¢ _Augusi 23, 2021 August 33, 2021 August 23, 202] Aupst 27, 2021 Auguar 29, 2011
[Vesting period Time Inked vesting; Time linked vesting: Time linked vesting: ‘Fime linked vesting: Time linked vesting: Time Jinked vesting:
Gramts will vest in 5 vears on 50 "aof Soof will vest in 5 years) 3 on quarlery basis effective from 5 vears on guarterly basis which |5 years Trom ghe onigimil grant

Exercise periad Witiiin 10 years from the date of ori 0 Vet
Exercise USD 533 | Ushs31 557560 USD 4 53 I USD2 7 ] US> 178 I usn i 13
Settlemeny ity settied
Expiry date April 34, 2028 1o April 10, 207 (o Seprember 30, 2026 September 30, 2021 (0

August i6, 2029 ‘

December 11, 2070

Eebruary 25, 2028

I December 31, 2022 o

December 3), 2072

Jaomaey 1, 2025

o |

Number of options sutstanding as at (in milion):
[March 31, 2028 1 I
March 312024 { 1 |
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(Amounts in TN millions, unless otherwise Sialed)

The details of options ling are ized belpws
Particulars Number of optiens (i million)
Ouistanding as at April 4, 2022 12
Exercised / lapseid during the yest 1
Outstuading as ut March 31, 2023 11
Exervised | tapsed during the year 0
tstandin at M 31,2024 Il

Exercisced / lapsed dwting the year [}
Ouistanding a5 it March 31, 2025 1

Excrcisableat March 31, 2024 1
Exercisable at Mareh 31, 2025 1

- The weighled average exercise price of thisc options ontalanding wus USD 4 20 for the year ended March 31. 2025 {March 3¢, 2024 USD 4 203

« The weighted averge exercise price of cxercisable apbons was USD 4.20 fo: the year ended March 21. 2025 (March 31, 2024 USDr 4 20

- The weghted averape exercise prece of replocement of Group Stock Option Pians was USDH4.20 for the year ended March 38, 2025 ¢March 31,2024 USD 4.20)
- The weighted average exercise price of opiions exercised duting the yearwas USD 4 13 for year ended Mawch 11 2625 (March 31, 2024 USD 2 15)

= The weighted average life of opons ding g5 a( March 31, 2025 was 2 06 vears (March 31, 2024 297 years)

- There were 17254 options exerciscd during the vear ended March 31, 2025 (Masch 31, 2024 148638 options)

202t Incentive Award Plan granted during the perlod 23 August 2021 to 31 March 2034
The Helding Congany introdoced 1he 2021 Incentive A ward Plan (Incentive Flm) to grant optons (o selected cmployees of the € sroup The relevant terms of (he lacentive Plan are a5 below

According 1o this schcme, the corployees sclected by the compensation commutics Tmm fme (o time will be entitled Lo optons 48 per grant letter wssued by the tpensation Hior, subject fo £ali of p wveating
The employees will be sssued class A equity sharg of the Compacy on exercises of this incertive plan
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for the year txded 33 March 2025

Tartictars | 2021 Incentive Plan .
wm Februay 132024 | November1,2623 October 27, J27 | s 11,2029 Septewiber 13 2023 | Aupsii 3023 | Taly 7, 2023 | Jiane 5, 2021
Vesnmg penod B0 af optionz wali vesi  80% of aphiors will vost 80% of aptions will vest | K ¥ opbona will vest | Restrc b Stock Unnis (RSUs)y B2 5% ahares o vest on (B9 of options wall vesl |B0%, of oxptaors Will vest
over 3 perwd of 4 years 0 over s pens d of 4 vears i over & penod of 4 vears mlover & perod of 4 vears m{tn the 19 smrversary of e last day of cach quaner  (aver a permd of 4 years misver o peried of 4 years i
8 L based pasnt ost @ tmo based mamer, out '8 e besol manger, ot | e based e 1 |Cirard Dhate - V1%, #larng from Seplenmer  |a e based memer out iJ nze baseed memrmer. out
ofwluch 200 will vest  of wich 2% wili vest  of wiuel 20% wall vest [ wipch 20% will vest (i the 2ol amwversary © 2007 untill estirg ! winch 207 will ves| £ wheeh 20°%5 wil] veat
atfter ame vearsnd efler ore vear and after on ear and et o year and [t Dt - 138 S ye———— [Ep——
[ Potsung 6% will vest e 60% il vest tematnang 60% will vest i 6% will vest 0n the 30l anniversary of the cemairang (4% will vest
over tho eoxd 12 quarters  over the ned 12 quamters  over the nest 11 ipearters the et 12 quarters [Civard Daio - 4% aver [he et 12 quartors r
(e 5% h Lol 5% bquerer) e S meschquariar) e 5% m cuch e | (16 §%m cach quarter) (i c 5% i each quarter)
In addstzon, out of the ‘ln wddion, o of the In addibon, cut of the |Ex nsddrtson, vt of the FPerlomumca Basey] Utmts (PBUS ) | addition, out of the I mabebibaonn, 0wt of the
(Fe g 0% aplan, 5% mmaneg 20% aptm, 5% remmimng 20% oplan. 5% memasng 2055 opon, 3% On e 3nd amurersary of the | g 207 oplon, 5% | remasnmg 207 spten. 5%
o1 stock ophoes will vest of stock options will vest of stack oplog will veat ol stock opteoms wall vest [Girat Date  100% subpest to of stogk vpona wall vest | of stock optione wall vest
lat every smuversary af | every amuversary of  at cvery mmversan of (#every anmversary of | scleesement of Performance A1 EveTy sfaverzary ol sl svers aomversary ol
e gt dale based un  the grwst date bused on Whe grnad dhate batnesd o |the grant date based on [ Mistrics the grent date bassel on [t prant date based on
I ¢ ompav's perforionce _Cormpam 's perdrmence Lumper s pelormmuee | onymy's perfisrmance . ! —— 1€ ompaey & petormmece | ompam o performance
Excreise penod Withes & y lien date of grast
Wathm 10 yonrs frn the date of grant npos v o n \eeting 8 ugeen ot
[Extrise o 118D ¢ 83 1180 5 78 | 1RDS VR E HT _IED 1 [IERT]
Settlemen fype Lty Setled
gy date Febraary 15,2030 | Noveraba |, 2073 Ochber 27,2083 [ Septerber 13,5014 | Auguat ; | T & 301 ]
Number uf options cutsennding as &t (fn million):
March33 2034 ] [ ] n 1 | 9 | RStz 1. Phlls- 1 4 a [}
March 31 2127 | 5 T - 1 5 | = K B B
= “Phog space has been left blank
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ated)

2621 Frceniive

¥articular
Grnnt date Morch1s 2022 Movember 15 2022 | Keptemaber 15 2022 | August 22 100 Jups 10 2032 Augnst 23 2021
DMaveminer 13. 2621 and
; | . .y | March i9, 2022 |
 estmg penod #irs of oplions will vest |80 of opuons will vexl | #iF. of epron Wil vest A of weack i 1 M ol oplons will ves
mer i period of 4 voars @ ovel m poriod of d 4 ears wall vest at the of optaona will vast over o a poncd of 4 yaars &
| # e based Duimmer ot Dazed tramer Gt o Lome BAsed momer ot | eec ) Onler over B perod el o 4 years i e sme baged
witich 2075 wall vest 1 wheth 26% will west b 20%% will Vst | d

et s vens and

Omimng S0%6 will veut

1
all vt
ver e nent 12 guortacs
5% wy cach quarter)
out of tha

additon,

ho grunt dnty bused on
< umpany s penk

1 opzouna wul vest over a
|pericd of 4 yenr i a ene based
A SUE of whick 2096 will
wesk aftar onn vorr fosd reme Bung
S il vast over the Bes 12
e 5% m each quarter)
. e

| gt Bprod vralug
1'30 Lo 0o

Wthun 10 yem

o the chaae
1) fo s

1 quity Seried
Atgust 23 2032

1emrcue pecticod
Tosn sen price
.

R s 85 TS0 8 Ay PRI ED oa = VSD Lok i

Augnal 23 2071 1
Tebraary 73, 2071
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Notes 1o Ci i Fi tal 51 for the year ended 31 March 2028
(Amouzs in INR wmillions, valess otherwise staled)

The fair valuc of stock options was estimated ol the date of erant nsing Black-Scholes valuation moded, taking 1nio accoust the terms nnd conditions upon which the share opticns were gramed. Following are 1he assuteptions wsed mvaluaion of
2021 Incentive Award Plar on grant date

Far the year cndeil

Particulary 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Dividend veeld () 00%, 0%,
Expected velatilicy (%0} 28 5233 9 23 68% i 41.23%
Rsk—free interest rate 485} 364% 0 521% O 78% 10 5 422,
Werghted averge expecied life of options granted 210Yms B-10Yrs
‘Weighsed avernge share price USD5 2210 USD T 46 USD 4 98 10 USD 9 63
The expected volatibiy reflects the assurnption that the historica vobxtility over a period similar to the Tife of the oplions is indicaimve of fulure trends. whach may not necessarily be the actual pugome
The details of sptions outstanding are summarized below:

q Namber of eptions
e i iligg)
Opening balance as at 1 April 2022 30
Graied dunng the year 6
Exercised! dyring the vear 0
Qutstanding at the vear ended 31 March 2073 36
Granted during the year 1o
Excrcised/ during the vear 1
Cuistanding at the year coded 31 March 2024 5
Granted during the year
Exercisod/ duting the year 1
Outstanding at the year eaded 31 March 2025 57
Exercisable at ar 31 March 2024 15
Exercisable at 21 31 March 2025 40

- The weighted average excreise price of opuons gramed during the period was USD 8 61 for the vear ended March 3 L, 2025 (March 31, 2024 USD 8 By
- The weighled avesage exercase price of 1hese options gramed was USD 7 25 far the vear ended March 31, 2025 (March 31, 2024 USD 6 36)

- The weighted mverage excroise pree of o e cisabie options was USD 9 63 for the year ended March 31, 2025 {March 3t, 2004 USD 997

- The weighted average remaitung comimetval bt for the share opions outstanding as at March 31, 2025 was 7 27 years (March 31, 7024 8 14 years)

- There were 171,299 options exercised durmng the year ended March 31, 2025 (March 31, 2024 Nil)

¢} Expenscs arising from share-based payment transactions
The expense recognised for employee services recenved durine the year 1s shown in the followng table:

Far the year ended

Pardicurigrs 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Expense arising from equity-seitled share-based pEymEn J 1.609 2381

Totul cxponse arising from shave-based payment transactions* 1,609 2281

" This amaul 1s wclysive of amount capitatised i different projects

—===tt—r——ee—e———~This s pace hns been left blank
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42 Group information

for the year ended 31 March 2025

(a) Subsidiaries
The Group's subsidianes along wath the proporhon of svmershup mterests and the votmg rights held by the immediate helding company are disclosed belaw The country of mcorpasation 18 also ther
Cod{ SNo |[Name of companies Immediate holding company inf:u“tzl::n As at 31 March, 2025 As at 31 March, 2024
1 _[ReNew Solar Power Povate Limuted ReNew Prrvate Limited Indea 190% 1007,
2 |ReNew Green Erergy Solubons Pnvate Lunted ReNew Private Limted India 100%a 100%
(previously known as ReNew Wind Energy (Jath Three)
Private Linited)
3__|ReNew Fazlka Solar Power Private Linmted ReNew Solar Power Private Limited India 100% 100%
4 |ReNew Transmission Ventures Private Limited ReNew Private Limited Inds 190% 100%
5 |ReNew Power International Limeted ReNew Private Limutzd Usited Kmpdom 100", 100%
6 {ReMNew Wind Energy (Tath) Limiteq ReNew Private Limuted India 100, 100%
7 |ReNew Wind Energy (Kamataka) Private Liuted ReNew Green Enerzy Solutions Private Laruted Tndis T, 7
B |ReNew Wind Energy (AP) Private Lunned ReNew Green Biverry Selutons Private Limited India 70%o
9 |ReNew Salar Enecgy (Jbarkhand Theee) Private Lirmted ReNew Solar Power Prvate Limited Incha 51%
10_|ReNew Solar Energy (Telangana) Private Limuted ReNew Solar Power Private Limmied India 100%s
11 _JReNew Surya Alok Private Linuted ReNew Green Energy Solutions Private Linuted India [
12 |ReNew Sunlight Energy Private Limed ReNew Gireen Erergry Solurions Private Limated Indiz 53%
13 _|ReNew Surya Uday Private Limted Reiew Green Enesgy Solutions Private Limited India Td%
14 |ReNew Energy Markets Private Lapmted (Farmerly known as|ReNew Private Linuted India 100%,
ReNew Vayu Fower Private Limmted)
13 [ReNew Photovoltaics Private Limited (Farmerly known as{ReNew Shakt Four Private Lumted Inda 100°: 1007
ReNew Saksham Una Private Limuted)®s
16 |ReMew E-Fuels Private Limited ReNew Privare Linuted Indiq 100% 100% K
E7 _|ReNew Fal Unja Prvate Linnted ReNew Pawer Services Prvate Limuted indva 1007 100%%
18 JReNew Wind Energy (Weltun) Private Linnted ReNew Private Lumead India 1807, 1000
19 |ReNew Wind Energy {Devgarh) Pavats Limited ReNew Private Limited India 1007, 1P
20 [ReNew Wind Energy (Rajkat) Private Limited ReNew Private Limited India 100° 0 100% |
21 [ReNew Wind Energy Delhi Pnvate Limited ReNew Private Linnted Indha 100%: 100%
22 _ |ReNew Wind Energy (Shivpur) Private Limuted ReNew Privaie Limsted India 100 100%%
23 jReNew Wind Engrgy (Jadeswar) Povate Limited ReNew Povate Limuted India 100%
24 |ReNew Wind Energy (Varekarwadi) Private Lunuted 'ReNew Private Limted India 1000 T
25 |ReNew Wind Energy (M) Pirvats Limited ReNew Private Limited India 100°
26 |ReNew Wmnd Energy (AP 3) Private 1inuted ReNew Private Lirmted India 1008,
27_ [ReNew Wind Energy {MP Two) Private Luzted ReNew Private Limuted Indra 1000,
28 [ReNew Wind Energy (Rajasthan Cine) Private ReNew Prvate Limited India 1000
Lirnuted
29 [ReNew Wind Energy {Jarnb) Private Linnted ReNew Private Linated India 106°,
30_JReNew Wind Energy (Onssa) Provate Limnited ReNew Private Einnted India 100°%
31_ |ReNew Wind Energy {TN) Prvate Limited ReNew Private Lumited India 1007,
12 [ReNew Wind Energy (AP?) Pnivite Limied ReNew Private Lirmuted India 100°5
33 ReNew Wind Energy (Kamataka Two) Pnvate ReNew Private Linmted India 100°%
Limued
34_ |ReNew Wmd Enetpy (Vaspet $) Private Limted ReNew Prvate Lineted Indwa, 100%, a
35 |ReNew Wind Eneriy {AP 4) Private Limited ReNew Private Limated Indha 100%
36 |ReNew Wind Energy (MP One} Private Lizited jReNew Pravate Linnted India 100%,
37 |ReNew Wnd Energy (Karnataka Five) Private ReNew Prvate Linsted India 190%
Limited
38 |Narmada Wind Energy Prvate Limited ReNew Pavate Luimited India 100"
39 |Abahs Wind Ereray Developers Prvare Limited ReNew Private Linmeed India 160
40 |Helos Infratech Private Lumited ReNew Private Lamuted India 100°s
41 {Shruti Power Projects Private Lumited ReNew Prvate Linited india 100%
42 |Kanak ReNewables Lutted ReNew Private Lumted Indin 1%
43 |Osto Raj Wind Private Lamited Ostra Enerpy Private Linmted India 100%
34 |Ostro Madhya Wind Private Limited Ostzo Eneigy Private Limired India 100%
45 |Ostro Anantapur Private Lirmted Ostro Enerpy Private Linnted India 100%,
46 [Bidwsl Renewable Private Eamuted RoNew Private Limted Inca 100%%
47 _Zemira ReNewzhle Energy Limnted ReNew Private Linuted India 1008,
48 |Renew Vyan Shakii Pnvate Limited ReNew Private Limnted India 100°%,
49 |ReNew Pawan Una Prvate Limited ReNew Private Limited India 1008
50 _|ReNew Pawan Shakt: Private Limited ReNew Private Lamated India 1002, 1007,
51 JReNew Naveen Urja Private Luted ReNew Povate Linuted Incha 1002, 100%
52__{ReNew Samr Unja Private Limited ReMew Solar Power Povate Lanited Indra 1007, 100°s
33 _|ReNew Samir Shskt Private Linuted ReNew Solar Powsr Private Limited India 100%, 100%
54 |ReNew Solar Energy (Rajasthan) Private Lirmuted ReNew Solar Power Private Limited India 1002 100%
55 _|ReNew Solar Epergy (TN) Prsvate Limited ReNew Solar Power Private Limsted India 10025 100% |
56 |ReNew Solar Enes; ataks} Private Limited ReNew Solar Power Prvate Limaited India 100, 100%
57__|ReNew Sawr Una Private Limited ReNew Green Energy Sofutions Private Livited India 1088 100%%
38 |ReNew Clean Energy Private Limited RelNew Sofar Power Pnvate Lummted Indig 1002, 1007
59 |ReMNew Solar Services Private Limited” ReMew Green Energy Solutions Private Limuted India 10620 100% |
60 |ReNew Agni Power Private Limnted ReNew Solar Power Private Limited India 100% 100%
61 |ReNew Saur Shakt Pavate Limited ReNew Solar Power Private Limited India 1802, 100%
62 |ReNew Solar Energy (Jharkhand One) Privete ReNew Solar Power Private Limited India 100% 1007
Limuted™
61 |ReNew Solar Energy (Jharkhand Five) Prvate Lirted ReNew Solar Power Private Limeted India
64 [ReNew Solar Energy (Kamataks Two) Prvale Linured ReNew Solar Power Pavate Linuted India
635 _|ReNew Wind Energy (Kamataka 3) Private Limited ReNew Solar Power Private Limited India
66 |ReNew Wind Ener, Four) Private Limited Relew Sofar Power Pavate Linuted Izrdia
67 |ReNew Wind Energy (Mabarashtra} Private Limited ReNew Solas Power Private Limited India
68  JReNew Wind Frej ataka 4) Private Limited ReNew Solar Power Private Limited India
69 |Bhurmi Prakash Private Lirited ReNew Solar Power Private Limited Incha
70__JTarun Kiran Bhoomi Private Limited ReNew Solar Power Private Limited Indig




ReNew Privare Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amownts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

71 [ReNew Wmd Energy (AP Five} Prvate Linted ReNew Solar Power Pnvate Linuted India 100"
72 | Sympheny Vyapaar Pnvate Limited ReNew Solar Power Frivate Limiled Inthz 100¢
73 _|Lewcon Vangya Pravale Limited ReNew Solar Power Prvate Limited Idha 100°,
74 | Star Solar Power Private Linuted ReNew Solar Power Pavata Linnted India 100"
75 |Sungold Energy Prrvale Lindted ReNew Solar Power Private Luvuted India 100% s 100
76 | ReNew Wind Energy (Budh 3) Private Limited ReNew Green Energy Solations Private Liruted India 100%4 100%
77 _|ReNew Wmnd Energy (TN 2) Povate Limmted ReNew Solar Power Pvate Limited India 100°. 100°%
78 |Akhilagya Solar Energy Private Limited ReNew Solar Power Private Lunited India 100%% 100
79 |Zorya Solar Energy Prvate Limited ReNew Sofar Power Privete Limited India LO0° 1007
80 | Auxo Solar Energy Private Lsnuted ReNew Wind Energy (TN) India 100°: 1065
Prvate Limiled
81 |Renew Sun Waves Prevaee Lumted ReNew Solar Erergy (Jharkhand Four) Privaiel India 0% 100%
Limeted
82 Ao Sunhght Private Linuted ReNew Solar Power Pivate Limiocl India 100% 100%%
83 |Renew Sun Energy Private Limited ReNew Sojer Power Private Limited India 100% 100
84 _|Renew Sun Bright Povate Limuted _I_R_eNew Private Limited India E0G", 100%
85 |Renew Services Prvate Limited$ ReNew Prvate Linuted Indin 100", 100
86 |Rorew Sun Power Private Limmted ReNew Salar Power Private Limited India 100°%a Log”
87 _|Greenyana Sunstream Prvate Linmted ReNew Green Energy Solutions Privaie Lumuted Indiz . T4%
38 JRenew Vyoman Energy Private imited ReNew Private Limited Incha 100%% 1007
89 |Renew Vyoman Power Private Linted ReNew Vekram Shaktr Private Lumted India 1007, 100°
90 |Renew Surya Roshni Private hmited ReNew Solar Pawer Private Limited Indhe Fo0" 1007%
91 |ReNew Surya Aayan Private Limited ReNew Solar Power Prvate Lirnited India 100" 100%
92__|ReNew Solar Vidhi Private Limutad ReNew Solar Power Private Linited India 100° s 100%
53 |ReNew Solar Stellar Prvate Linuted ReNew Solar Power Privae Lintited India 100° s 100%s
94__[ReNew Solar Piyush Private Limuted ReNew Solar Power Private Limuted Incia 190" 10(Pw
95 __|ReNew Surys Tejas Prvate Limuted jReNew Green Energy Solutions Private Limited Ingia 6§99, 69°
96 |ReNew Sun Renewables Prvate Limired ReNew Green Energy Schutions Private Limmted India 690, 69
97 _|ReNew Sun Shakii Private Limated ReNew Green Enerpgy Solutions Private Lumted India 60%, 69
98 |ReNew Ravi Tejas Private Linnted ReNew Green Energy Solutions Prvate Limited India 1008 1P
99 ReNew Surya Ravi Private Limuted ReNew Solar Energy (Jharkhand Four) Pnvate India 100°% 100%
Lamuted
100 |ReNew Dinkar Jyot Povate Limted ReNew Solar Power Private Lited India 100%. 100%
101 |ReNew Dinkar Unja Private Linted ReNew Solar Power Private Lirsted India 1600
102 _|ReNew Bhanu Shaks Privale Lumed ReNew Groen Energy Solutions Private Limited India 6%,
103 JReNew Ushma Energy Private Limited ReNew Sofar Power Private Linnted Inda 100% 100%
104_|ReNew Surye Spark Prvate Lumited ReNew Green Energy Solutions Private Lirnted Indea 4% T4%
105 |ReNew Hans [1ja Private Lirnited ReNew Solar Pawer Private Limited India 100°, 1(HP
106 _|ReNew Solar (Shakti One) Povate Limuted ReNew Solar Power Private Limited India 100%, 100%
107 [ReNew Solar {Shakti Two) Private Limited ReNew Vikram Shakti Private Limned India 100", 100
i08 [ReNew Solar (Shakt Three) Prvate Linuted ReNew Solar Power Private Limited India 100%: 1007
109 |R|:New Salar (Shakt Four) Private Tinated ReNew Prvate Limted India 100%a 100%%
110 jReNew Solar {Shakui Five) Private Eanutec ReNew Solar Power Private Limred India 100%, 100P
111 |ReNew Solar (Shakh Six) Private Limited JReMew Solar Power Private Limsied India 1007 100%
112 |ReMNew Sofar (Shakti Seven) Private Limted ReNew Solar Power Private Linuted India EO0% 1007
1i3 [RoNew Solar (Shakti Eight) Private Limited ReNew Solar Power Private Lamited India 100% 1007
i14 [ReNew Green (MHH One} Private Limited ReNew Green Enetay Solutions Private Lumated India 6% 1007
115 _|ReNew Green (MHP One) Pavaie Linjted ReNew Green Enargy Salutions Private Limited India 100°, 1007
116 gReNew Green (TNJ One) Private Lirmted ReNew Green Energy Solations Frivate Limited India 100%s 1
117 _]ReNew Green (GIS One) Private Limnited IReNew Green Energy Solabons Pivate Lunired india 699, (9%
118 _[ReNew Green {(GIS Two) Private Limted ReNew Green Ereryy Solptions Private Lunited Indlia 69 [
1i9 |ReNew Green (MHK Two) Private Lisuted ReNew Graen Solutions Prsvate Limited India 60, 100°%
126 [ReNew Sandur Green Energy Prvate Lamted (formertly|ReNew Green Eneriry Solutions Brivate Limited India 51% 51%
known os ReNew Green { One) Prvate Limuted’)
121 _|ReNew Green (GIS Three) Privaie Lumted ReNew Green Energy Solutwns Povate Limited India 745 74%
122 jReMew Green (GJ five) Private Limited ReNew Green Enerpy Solntions Private Limited India 699, 6%
123 [ReNew Green (GY Six) Private Limsried ReNew Green Energy Sohmtions Private Limied India 69% (9%
124 _[ReNew Green {GI seven) Private Lunied ReNew Green Energy Sohstions Private Limted India 696 6P
125 {ReNew Green (MHK One) Private Limited ReNew Green Energy Solutions Private Limited India 100%, 100
126 _[ReNew Green (MHP Twn) Private Limted ReNew Green Energy Solytions Private Lumted India 100% 7
127 |ReNew Green (TNJ Two) Private Limited ReNew Green Energy Solutions Private Limited India 106° I
128 lReNaw Green :MPR Two) Prrvate Limsted ReNew Green Energy Solutions Private Linied India 580, 55%,
129 [ReNew Green (KAK Two) Private Limuted ReNew Green Ee Solutrons Private Limmed India 74%, T4%
130_|ReMNew Green (KAK Three) Private Limited ReNew Green Energy Solutions Private Limitad India 1008 100%%
131_|ReNew Green (MHS One) Private Lirmted ReNew Green Energy Solitions Provate Lisited India 74% T4%
132 |ReNew Green {GI Ten) Pavate Linted ReNew Green Encrpy Solutions Pnvate Linuted India £9% '
133 _|ReNew Green (I Efeven) Private Limited ReNew Green Energy Solutions Privare Limsted Indiz 100" 1007
134 IReNew Green (GJ Twelve) Povate Limited ReNew Green Energy Salutions Private Limted India 100%s 100°%
135 |ReNew Green {G] Thirtzen} Prvate Limited ReNew Green Energy Solutions Prvate Limited India 100" 100°%
136 |ReNew Green (KAK Four) Private Limited ReNew Green Energy Solutons Prvate Limited Indig 100%: 100%%
137 |ReNew Green (MPR Three) Privaie Limited ReNew Green Energy Solutions Prvate Larited India %% 69%
138 JReNew Green (MPR Four) Prwvate Limited ReNew Green Enerpy Solutigns Private Limited India 1008,
135 [ReNew Green {TN Three) Private Linued ReNew Green Energy Solutions Private Limmted Indiz 10085
140 [ReNew Green {TN Four) Private Limited ReNew Green Energy Solutions Pavate Limned India 100%
141_jReNew Green (CGS Two) Pvate Limuted ReNew Green Energy Solutions Povate Limired India 100%
142 [ReNew Nizamabad Power Private Linuted ReNew Fazilka Solar Power Private Litmted India 100°%
143 {ReNew Warangal Pawer Private Eamited ReNew Fazilka Solar Power Private Limited India 1{HP s
144 IReNew Narwnna Power Private Eimgeed ReNew Fazilka Solar Power Private Limited India 100%
145 _[Sunworld Solar Power Private Limited ReNew Fazilka Solar Power Pravate Limted India 100"
146 _ |Neemwch Solar Power Private Limited ReMew Fazilka Solar Power Private Limrted ndia 1P
147 [Purvanchal Solar Power Prvate Linuted ReNew Fazilka Solar Power Private Linnted India 100
148 Rewanchaf Solar Power Private Lumted ReNew Fazilics Solar Power Private Limited India 100%%
149 [ReNew Medak Power Privete Limited ReNew Fazilka Solar Power Povate Limited India 100
150_|ReNew Ranga Reddy Solar Power Private Linuted ReNew Fazilka Solar Pewer Private Limited India 100%%
151 [ReNew Karnmmagar Power Povate Limited ReNew Farilkea Selar Power Pnvate Limated India 1007




ReNew Private Limited
Notes to € lidated Finaneial S s Tor the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amounts in INR amilions, unless otherwse stated}
152 |ReNew Solar Photovoltaic Povate Limited (formerly known{ Acme Solar Holding Povate Limted Indiz 490, 495
as 'ACME Phatovoltae Solar Pnvate Limuted')
153 |Renew Green Shakt: Povate Limited (formerly known as|ReNew Soler Power Prvaie Limted India 100%s 1005
'ACME Green Shakt Private Limited”)
i34 |ReNew Vikram Shakt Povate Lamited ReNew Private Limited India Lg% 100
135 [ReNew Tapas Una Prvate Limuted ReNew Privats Eimited India 1008
156 _|ReNew Green (GT Nine) Pavate Limsted ReNew Green Energy Solutions Private Linmed India 60
157 IReNew Green léCGS Onei Private Limuted ReNew Green Energy Solutions Private Limmted India 1007
158 |ReNew Green (MPR One) Povale Luruted ReNew Green Energy Solutions Private Limited Indha 100
139 [ReNew Vidyut Tey Pavate Linuted ReNew Private Linuted Inchig 100%
160 |ReNew Vidyut Shakn Private Liuted ReNew Solar Power Private Limated Inchig 100%, |
161 [ReNew Power Synergy Private Limited ReNew Private Lamated India 100 1007
162 |Koppai- Narendra Transmnission Limited* ReNew Transnugsion Ventures Private Lumuted Inda 1% 51%
163 |ReNew Soelar (Shakn Nine) Prvate Linmnted ReNew Solar Power Private Limited Indm 100°, 100
164 |ReNew Solar (Shakh Ten) Pnvaie Linuted ReNew Solar Power Private Limited Tntha 100%: 100%%
165 [ReNew Solar (Shakh Eleven) Private Limited ReNew Solar Power Private Lunited India 100%s 100° s
166 _|ReNew Sofor (Shakti Twelve) Private Limted ReNew Solar Power Pnivate Lututed India 100°%% 100"
167 [ReNew Solar (Shakti Thirteen) Private Linmted ReNew Solar Power Private Lumuted India 100%a 1007
168 |IB Vogt Solar Seven Private Litmsed ReNew Solar Power Pnivate Lumuted India 49% 19%
169 |Comeght Parks Private Limited ReNew Solar Power Private Limned India 100% 100%
170 |Chmate Connect Dhgital Lumnited Regemt Chmate Connect Knowledpe Solutons|  Umited Kingdom ®o 100%
Prrvate Lunited
171 |ReNew Green (G Fourteen) Private Limied ReNew Green Energy Solutions Privaie Limited India 100%
172 ]ReNew Green (GI Fifleen) Povate Livnited ReNew Green Energy Solutions Private Limuted India 100%5
173 IReNew Green (MHS Twao) Private Limated ReNow Green Energy Solutions Privare Linied India 100°
174 [ReNew Green (MIIS Three) Pavate Limited ReNew Green Energy Solutions Povate Limited India 100%
175 |ReNew Green (UP One) Private Limited ReNew Solar Powet Private Limited India 106%a
176 |ReNew Green (HPR One) Privats Limied ReNew Solar Power Private Lumuted India 1007,
177 _|ReNew Green (KAK Five) Private Limeted ReNew Green Energy Solutions Prvate Limuted India 1660
178 _|ReNew Green (MHP Four) Private Limited ReNew Green Energy Solutiong Private Lunited India 1000,
179 1Gadag TI-A Transnusaon Limted* ReNew Transsussion Ventures Private Lirnted Endia 51"
180 |ReNew Power Services Private Licuted ReNew Private Limijed India 100°0
181 |Ostro Energy Private Limited ReNew Power Services Private Limted India 100°:
182 [Ostro ReNewsbles Private Limited Ostro Energy Private Lunated Incha 1002
183 [Ostro Una Wmnd Private Linuted Ostro Energy Private Limned Indra 100%:
184 |Ostro Mahawind Power Private Linuted Ostra Enerpy Private Limited Indin 100%
185 |ReNew Wind Ener Three) Private Limited ReNew Solar Power Povate Linited Indin 100%:
186 |Renew Surya Vikaan Private Lumtad ReNew Solar Power Privatz Limited Irdia 10054
187 {ReNew Tej Shakt Private Eomyted ReNew Private Linoted. Ihdia 100%,
188 fReNew Una Shachar Private Limnted ReNew Private Limited India 100%:
189 [ReNew Groen (G] Four) Prvate Limuted ReNew Green Enerzy Solutrons Privaie Linuted India 69%%
190 [ReNew Green (GJ Eight) Prvate Limrted ReNew Green Energy Solutions Private Linuted India [
181 |Gadag Trar Luuted* ReNew Transmussions Ventures Private Limited India 51%
192 |Rengw Green (MHP Three) Private Limited ReNew Green Energy Solutions Privace Linuted India 100° -
193 | Aalok Solarfarms Luruted Ostro Energy Private Linuted India 100°o )
194 |Abha Selarfarms Linnted Ostro Enerpy Prvate Limited India 100%, 1040
195 |Shreyns Solarfarms Lumnited Ostro Enerpy Prevate Limited India 100% 100"
i96 _{Heramba Renewahles Litted Ostro Energy Private Linuted India 100°%, 106P s
197 [ReNew Wind Energy (Rajasthan} Prevate Limuted ReNew Private Limited India 100°; 1007
198 |Prathamesh Solarfarms Limited Ostro Energy Private Limuted india 100% 1P
199 |AVP Powennfia Private Limuted Ostro Energy Private Limited India 100%, 104
200 |Badomi Power Private Limited Ostro Energy Private Limated India 100%% 100P
201 |ReNew Vayn Ura Private Lirired ReNew Private Lumited India 100%, 5
202 |ReNew Wind Energy (Rajasthan Four} Private Linuted ReNew Solar Power Private Linned India 100%%
203 |Pugalur Renewable Private Limuted ReNew Pivate Linited India 100%
204 |ReNew Wind Energy (Rajasthan 2) Private Lumited” ReMNew Privaie Limited India 100%s
205 _|ReNew Wind Energy (Sipla) Pnvate Limited [ReNew Prvate Linnted India 100%
206 _|Mol. Ih R bl Prvaig Limited ReMNew Private Limted Inchia J00%o
207 |Regent Ciimate Connect Knowledge Sclutions Prvate|ReNew Prvate Limited Tudia 0%
Linuted
208 IReNew Surya Kot Private Lanited IReNew Green Energy Solutions Private Lamuted India 100y 1060
208 [ReNew Surya Pratap Psvate Litmted ReNew Surya Vihaan Private Limted India 100 100%
219 _|ReNew Vayu Enetgy Private Limted ReNew Private Limsted India 100 100w
211 _|Ostro Rann Wind Private Limted Dstro Energy Private Lumited India 100% 100"
212 | Ostro Bhesada Wind Private Limited” Ostro Energy Private Limited India 100 100"y
213 _|Ostro Dhar Wind Private Limited Ostro Energy Private Linuted India 1009 100
214 [Ostrg Alpha Wind Private Limiled ReNew Green Energy Solutons Private Lumuted Inda 4% 7%
213 {Ostro AP Wind Prvate Limited Ostro Energy Prrvate Lirmuted India 100% 100%s
216 _[Ostro Andhia Wind Private Linnted Ostro Energy Prevate Limited India 100% 1P
217 |Ostro Kanneda Power Private Limited Ostro Energry Provaie Limited India i00% 1P
218 |Ostro Dakshin Power Pnvate Limited Ostro Energy Privete Lumited Inda 1006 1P
2]19_|Dstro Private Limosed Ostro Energy Private Limited India 100% 1"
220 |Ostra Kutch Wind Private Limited Ostro Energy Prvate Limited india 100%
221 |Renew Una Limsted Renew Solar Power Private Limired India 100%%
222 ReNew Surya Ojas Private Limited Renew Solar Power Private Leuted India 51%
223 |ReNew Solar Energy {Jharkhand Four) Private hmited |Renew Solar Power Private Liited India 100%%
224 |Rajat ReNewables Limted [ReNew Prvate Limmted India 100
223 |ReNew Wind Energy (Rajasthan 3) Private Linited [&New Private Limited India
226 |ReNew Susya Kiran Private Linnted [ReNew Green Energy Solutions Private Latuted Indig
227 |ReNew Mega Solar Power Private Linuted Renew Solar Powsr Povate Lumited India
228 |ReNew Energy Global Americas Inc ReNew Povate Lumted India
229 [Renew E-Fuels Greennh3 Private Lunuted ReNew E-Fuels Private Limited India )
230 |Global Rensery Energy LLC RenServ Globa! Private Limited UAE 0%
231 _|ReNew Hydro Power Private Limtted ReNew Private Lanited India 100%




ReNew Private Limited

Notes to C:

Al Group compares hsted bove are engaged 1 activities refating to gencraton of power through non-conventonal and rengwable eneriy sources except for the below menttored
These comparnes are also engaged m proveding EPC services apart from generation of power through non-conventional and renewable energy spurces.
services for operation and mamtenance.

% Thess

lidated Fi ial 5 for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amounts m INR mullions, unless otherwise stated)

.

are d m p:

* These companmies are engaged 1 construchion / mantenance of transmission lines

%5 This Company 1s engaged 11 module maufacturng actvaty

(b} Interests in joint operations, joint ventures and associates*

S.No |Name of companies Tavestor company ) Couniry ?f As at 31 Mavch 2025 As at 31 March 024
mcorporation
1 [vG DTL Transnssions Projects Private Limsted ReNew Wind Energy (AP2) Pnvate India 500 50°
Lymuted
2 |3ENV ReNew Power Intemnational Limited Belgium 78% A¥e
3 |Fluence India ReNew JV Private Limuted ReNew Private Limited India 50 50%a
4 |GHA India Private Limited ReNew Private Limited India 13% 31%
3 |ReMew Green Projects Pre Ltd ReNew Privare Limated Singapore 15% 15%
6 [Climate Connect Digital Limuited ReNew Power 1 | Limited Uniled Kingdom %05 %

*Also refer Note 32
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ReNew Private Limited
Notes to C liduted Fi F G, far the year ended 31 Mavch 2025
(Amounts in INR miflions, unless otherwi se staved)

43

¥I.

Related party disclosnre

Names of related parties and related party relationship
The names of eelated pasties with whom transactions have taken place during the year and description of relationship as identified by the management are described below

Entity controlling the Company (Holding Company)
ReNew Energy Global Ple

. Enfities owned or significantly indl ed by key persannel or their relatives

ReNew Foundaton

Entities under joint control frefer note 52) and significant infitence
JE NV and 3E Renewable Energy Software and Services Private Limited
ReNew Green Projects Pte Ltd (with effect from 14 August 2023)
Fluence India ReNew JV Private Limited

. Fellow subsidiaries

Diamond I Limited
India Clean Energy Holdings

. Associate

ReNew Geeen Projects Ple Lid (with effect from August 14, 2023)
Climate Connect Digital Limited (with effect from June 2] L 2024)

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

The transactions with related parties are made at arm’s length prices Outstanding balances at the vear-end are unsecured and interest free (other than interest carrying loan balances) and
setlement occurs in cash There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables For the year ended 31 March 2025 and 2024, the Group has 2ot
fecarded any impaimzent of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties. This nssessment is undertaken on a forward-looking basis at each reporting period end through examinmg the
historical information and financial position of the related party that is adjusted 10 reflect surrent conditions of market in which the related party operares

R tion {o key pe 1 and their relatives

For the year ended
Remunerntion to key management personnel 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Short-term benefits o 394
Share based payments 77 374
Post-employment benefits 6 1

1,693 769
Payment to non-gxecutive directors (includes Directors sitting fee and 3 3
commission)

Key management personnel (KMP} are those persons having authority and responaibility for planning, directing and consrolling the aguvities of the Group, directly or indirectiy, includieg any
director {whether executive or gtherwise).

For the year ended
Other related party 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Remuneration 1o relatives of KMP#* 184 66
#close relative of Chaiman and Managing Director of the Company
* inetuding share based payments amounting to INR 229 (March 31, 2024 INB Nil)

VIL Details of transactions and balances with holdigg company

ReNew Energy Global Ple
Transactions duriog the year end 31 March 2025 | 31 Mareh 2024
L.oan taken fiom Holding Company 138] -
Interest expense on loan from Holding Company 167] 164
Purchase of capital goods 5,006 -
Amount paid 1o Holding Company towards equity settled siock optioa plans 818 e
ReNew Enerpy Global Ple
!Balnnces as at 31 March 2025] 31 March 2024
Recoverable from related parties pl 261
L oan payable o Holding Company 2,586/ 1241
Interest accrued payable io Holding Company 474 264
Trade payuble 5,008, -
Paveble to Holding Company 2,538] 1,864




ReiNew Private Limited

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

{Amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

VIIL Transactions and balances with entities ander joint control:

JENY
Transactions during the year end 31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
Loans given 270 176]
Support services rendered ] 5
Hinterest income on loan given to related parties 9] 4|

3E Renewnble Energy Software and
Services Private Limited

31 March 2025 | 31 March 2624

Transactions during the year end
Operation and maintenance expenses

14 35

Fluence India ReNew JV Private

Limited
Transactions during the year end 31 Muarch 2025 |31 March 2024
Purchase of capital goods 71] 2,060)
AF NV
Bal 0g at 31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
Loans piven

Trade Receivable

Interest accrued on loans given

284 431
4

15

3E Renewabte Energy Software and
Services Private Limited

31 March 2025 |31 March 2024

Balance as at
Trade Payable

| g

Fluence India ReNew JV Private

Limited
[Baknce as at 31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
{Trade Payable 168| 247}

X, Transactions and balances with extites under significant influence:

Transactions daring the year end

ReNew Green Frojects Pte Ltd
31 March 2025 | 31 Morch 2024

Unsecured loan given 20 375
Interest income on loan given to Telsted parties 30 12
ReNew Green Projects Pie Ltd
|Ba]ance as at 31 March 2025 [ 31 March 2024
Unsecured loan receivable 395 375
I[nterest accrued on loans given 44 13

X. Transactions and balances with fellow subsidiaries

Di d II Limited

Transactions during the year ¢nd

31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024

Unsecured Joan received E 7.092;
Ogptionally convertible det es {0CDs) received 10,489 14,307
Optionatly convertible debentures repaid - 4,846
Interest expense en unsecured loan 341 458
|lnterest exgense cn oEiiunallE convertible debentures 2,106 1,209]
Diamond I1 Limited

IBn]ance as at 31 March 2628 | 31 March 2024
Unsecured boan pavable 5,827 7,692
OELinnallz convertible debentures payable 19,9501 B 461
Interest accrued on loans taken o6 101
474 228

[nterest accrued on OCDs taken

India Clean Energy Holdings

31 March 2025 ] 31 March 2024

Transactions during the year end
Interest expense on External commercial borrowings

1,704 1,654

India Clean Energy Holdings

Balance as at

31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024

External commercial borrowings

14,053 13,081

Accrued interest on external ial borrowings

762 742

This space has been feft blank intentionally




ReNew Private Limited
WNotes o C lidated Fi ial St for the year ended 31 March 2625
(Amounts in INR millions, voless otherwise stated)

XI, Tramsactions and baiances with other relsted parties:

ReNew Foundation
Transactions during the year end 31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
Contribution for activities relaled {o corporate social responsibility 74| 33

KMP and their relatives

Transactions during the year end 31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
Retention bomus given 500 570
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HeNew Private Limited
MNates to Consolituted Fiowacisl Stmemnn for ihe year ended 51 March 2025
{Amounts i INR miliions, umless clherarse siaped)

H Segrment imformation
The ¢ T2 of the Hinlduig € cmpey n roepock of Tesonoe sl mcrmation provided ty fonctional haadi zad o thue comnikred to be the Chied Oparstmg Vonaion Mo [CODAMY

T it dachoset st et o sy soomitt i etemal epenti (00 L€ Th
rvitios b} module md e e prosocts Tha om epuriabia segmants et

i b bt et b o 1y of Do ogorstam. Thes reportalile semmonts of Group uarder [FRS 3 - Uparaiang segments, o (o) Wil Selkr sod e Fowsy which prodomsmaty niss to
e b s s st randcresd by tae Giro,

Tha % do oot The Groep eformauon Lammgs o, dpruciation md [ Sogrment (BT D A, whom Scgment EBFTD A is menmres] on lbo bera of profid (lom ) Sven comtssimg eparstoss, wheah 1t wssd by o
CODM mmmm&wmimﬂ,lmﬁ'ﬂﬁmm 3 e revenne geoeraled (om e revpeinve sogmeul phn cllier inoome porcaisis Lo the regective vémtrent e in rakiced by Raw matanals and oosreshles nard, cployess bepefil and ciher oepomss, axcledimg degroamsnn anid

N0 aparating sem it hes bach aggregaied £ fonn the shone repexishle operatng epmonis. bmrihar tolal sty s tihiltses Baloios s . CORM,
For the year ended 31 March 2023 Vor tie yesr endrd 31 March 202¢

Farticulars Wind Paver Solar P Hydr Module aod crl and Toanl Hydre  Traemision  Medul andrel  Adjustments

5 line @ cHminstleny WiadFamer  SoberBomer ey [ D ad limiatioa ™Y
Reveaa (cetamal sustomer} 43767 s LT 1510 13194 - 96,700 40.553 3674 2256 447 -
Liistpisieat v . FR - 24,142 (23,143) 5 14285
Reveni Foers] 5397 3237 1910 37336 24.042) 96,700 WA 367 2256 7 15205
Otber sacomo 4789 2138 84 21 = e 7321 x) " # s51
Tatal nrone ) [T 7T 2321 1173 37358 T L4023 7 Jase T30 Ty Teans
Lens Row stersale oo ooassmzbles e snd chosgss ia 02 w14 22024 £304 1446 14289 429 e
mvitevisn of Biabs) goods
Low Emploee benafit and cthar srpaus ™ T 438 29 EL] a7 218} 13,718 7817 438 38T L] 97 [ LA
Total expemes (b} 7405 [ T <1 13,192 a143) BRI 7557 5384 367 T8 15288 A5IAE) ]
Seguveat ERITDNA (a) - (B} 1,521 4.20% - BT SEE3 ALETE 1,943 1163 T3S
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45 Fair values

Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the firancial instruments of the Group

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Carrying value Fair value Carrying value Fair value
Financigl assets
Measured at amortised cost
Securty deposits 143 745 535 535
Bank deposits witk remaining matnty for more than twelve months 2,433 2,433 2,888 1,838
Trade recevables 24,204 24,294 21,859 21,859
Cash and cash equivalent 39,922 30,922 25621 25,621
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalent 40,099 A0,09% 50,706 50,706
Deferred consideration receivable 385 385 1,026 1026
Advances recoverable 634 634 1,449 1449
Interest accrued on fixed deposits 900 906 1,000 1,000
Interest acemed on loan to third party 53 53 17 17
Government grant recesvable 395 395 413 413
Loans te related parties 680 680 608 608
Recoverable from related parties 2 2 261 261
Other cusrent financal assets 448 448 347 347
Measured at fair value
Investments 511 511 1,614 1,614
TFinanctal assets designated as a hedge instrument at fair value
Derivative nstruments - hedge instruments 7.095 7,095 3,531 1,531
Financial liabilities
Measured at amortised cost
Non Convertible Debentures 72,974 72,630 63310 62,271
Term loan from bank 1,63,818 1,68,231 156,415 1,58,248
Term loan from financial 1nstitubons 2,31,405 231,309 2,18,050 2,13,260
Compulserily convertible debentures 20,245 20,245 18,5% 18,536
Optionally convertible debentures 22487 22,487 11,818 11,818
Senior secared notes 1,06,953 1,356,326 1,03,986 13,115
Loan from related partres 9,128 9,128 9,333 9,333
Interest accrued and due on borrowmgs 2,915 2,915 2309 2,309
Interest accrued but not due on debentures 2,924 2,924 836 836
Capital creditors 33,012 33,012 40,052 40,052
Purchase consideration payable 44 44 44 44
Payable to Holding Company 2,338 2,538 1,864 1,864
Froviston for operation and mainienance equahisation 1,323 1,323 2,162 2,192
Short-term Bomowirgs 78,551 78,551 51,823 51,823
Trage payables 7861 7.861 8,763 8,765
Financial Fabilities designated as a hedge instrument at fair value
Denvative instruments §21 821 536 536

The management of the Group assessed that cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables (current), bank balanees other than cash and cash equivalents, short term loans, trade payables,
shor term interest-beanng loans and borrowings, other current financial habilities and other current financial assets approximate their carrying amounis largely due to the shori-term
matunties of these mstruments.

The following methods and assumptiens were used to estimate the fair values:

Fair values of the Group’s term loans from banks, term loans from financal instrtutions, non-convertible debentures, accepéances and senior secured notes including current matunties are
determned by using Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) method using discount rate that reflects the 15suer’s borrowing rate (prevaling interest rate i the market) as at the end of the reporting
period They are classified as level 3 fair values in the fawr value kierarchy due to the inclusion of unobservable inputs including own credit risk The own non-performance risk ns at March
31, 2025 and 2024 was assessed to be insiguficant.

Fanr values of the hability compenent of compulsory convertible preference shares and compulsory convertible debentures determined by using DCF method using discount rate that refiects
the borrowing rate (prevaling interest rate o the market} as at the end of the reporting period They are classified as tevel 3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy dug to the mchugon of
unobservable inputs including ewn credit nsk. The own non-performance fsk as at 31 March 2025 and 2024 was assessed to be unsigmficart

i Fair values of the non-current trade recervables, bank deposits and secunty deposits grven are determuned by using DCF method using discount rate that reflects the lending rate (prevading

wnterest rate 1n the market) as at the end of the reporting period They are classified as level 3 fair values 1n fair vatue hserarchy due to inclusion of unobservable mputs including
counterpacty credit risk

The Group enter mte denvative financial instruments wath various counterparties, principally finaneial nstitutions wath investment grade credit ratings. Cross currency nterest rate swaps
are valued using valuation technuques, which employs the use of market observable imputs The modets incorporate varous far vatue level 2 inputs including the credit quality of
counterparties, foresgn exchange spot and forward rates, yield curves of the currency, interest rate curves and forward rale curves of the underlying nstrument The changes 1n counterparty
credst risk had no matenal effect on the hedge effectiveness assessment for denvatives designated i hedge relationships
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46 Fair value hierarchy

The Group categonzes assets and Liabilthies measured at fair value mto one of three levels depending on the abnlity to abserve inputs employed tn thetr measurement which are described as

follows

» Level | ~ Quoted (unadyusted) market prices i active markets for 1dentical assets or habilihes

« Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that 18 sigruficant to the fair value measurement 15 dicectly or idirectly abservable
« Level 3 - Valuation techmaques for which the lowest Jevel input that i3 significant to the fair value measurement 15 uncbservable

For assets and lisbiltties that are recogrised at fur value on a recurning basss, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the uerarchy by te-assessing
categonsation (based on the lowest level input that 13 significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting penod There were no changes in the Group’s
valuation processes, valuation techniques, and types of nputs used in the fair value measurements dunng the year

There were no materal transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurements duning the year, and no transfers mto or out of Level 3 fawr value measyrements during the year ended
31 March 2025 and 2024 There were no changes i the Group’s valuation processes, valuation techmques, and types of mputs used i the farr value measurements during the year

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the assets and habilities of the Group -

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets/liabilities as at year end

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Financial assels Level Carrying value Fair value Carrying value Fair value
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit & ioss
Investrment Level 2 511 511 1,614 1,614
Financial assets designated as a hedge insirwment aft fair value
Denvaiive mstruments Leval 2 7.0095 7.095 1531 1.511
Total 7,606 7,606 5,044 5,144
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Ti fal liabilities Level Carrying value Fair value Carrying value Fair value
Financial liabilities designated as a hedge instrument at fair value
Denvative msiruments Level 2 821 821 536 536

Set out below are the fair vatue hierarchy, valuahon techmques and inputs used as at 31 March 2025 and 2024

Particulars Fa-nr — Valuation technique Inputs used
hierarchy
Financial assets mensured at FVTPL
Investment Level 2 Market value technigues Market valué of mvestment
Financial assets designated as a hedge instrument at foir value
Derivative mstruments Level 2 Market value techniques Forward foreign currency exchange rates,
interest rates to discount future cash flows
Financial ligbilities designaled as a hedge instrument at fair value
Dervaive msteuments Level 2 Market value techmiques Forward foreign currency exchange rates,
mterest rates 1o discount fiture cash fows
Financial liabifities
|Financial guarantee contracts Level 3 Discounted cash flow Prevaiting nterest rates in the market, future

cash flows

cesmmmnmmmmmemmmemme—eeem Th1g Space has been left blank intentionally
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47 Fi inl Risk M t objectives and policies
The financeal hiabilines compnse loans and bormmovonygs, derivauve liabilities, trade payable and other financial ligbilities.

The tmawn purpose of these financtal habilivies 15 to finance the Group's operations The Group's priacipal financial assets nclude Joans, derivative asscts, trade recesvables, ¢ash and cash equpalenis
and other finzncial assets, The Group 15 exposed to market risk, credst risk and hguidity sk The Group’s semor manapgement oversees the management of these nsks. The Group's senior
management 1s supported by various sub commuttees that advises on financial risks and the appropriate financial risk govemance Framework for the Group These commuttees provede assurance 1o the
Group's senior management that the Group's financsal nisk actvities are governed by appropriate policies and procedure and that financial nsks are identified, d and d 11 accord:
with the Group's policies and aisk objectives. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees polcies for managmg each of these risks, which are summansed below

a} Market Risk
Market risk 15 the risk that the Group's assets and Tabikities wall be exposed to due to a change in market prices that deterrmine the valuntion of these financial instruments Markel nisk compnses three
types of nsk mierest rate nsk, currency risk and other price Tisk. Financial mstruments affected by market risk inctude loans and borrowings, deposss and denvative financial instraments

The sensitrvity analyses in the follewing sections relate to the posiion as at 31 March 2023 and 2024 The sensinvaty analyses have been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt, the atio of
fixed to floatng mnterest rates of the debt and denvatives and the propornon of financial mstruments n foreipn currencies are all constant and on the basis of hedge designavons in place o at 31
March 2025 and 2024

(i) Interest rate Risk

Interest cate nisk 15 the nsk that the fur value of Euture cash fows of a fimancial mstrument will fluciuate because of changes i market wnlercst rates. The Group 15 exposed to nferest mie nsk
primasly from the extemal borrowngs that are used to finance thesr operations. In case of extemnal commescial borrowings ("BECE") and buyers creduit the Group belioves that the exposure of Group
0 changes in market interest rates 1s insigmficant as the respective companies manage the cisk by hedgmg the changes wn the market snterest rates through cross currency mierest mte swaps. The
Group also momitors the changes 10 interest mtes and actively re finances its debt obhigations to ackieve an optmal mterest rate exposure

Interest Rate Semsitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonable possible change i mterest rates on financial Liabilities, 1e foating mierest rate borrowings n INR and USD Interest rate sensitivity
has been calculated for borrowings with floating rate of Interest. For borrowings with fixed rate of mterest sensitywty drsclosure has not been made With all other vanables held constant, the Group's
profit before tax 15 affected through the impact on financial Liabalities, as follows

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Increase/decrease in Effect on profit  Increase/decrease in  Effect on profit
basis points belore tax basis pointy before tax
INR +/(-)50 {-)/+ 1,750 +-)50 (-)/+1.402

The assumed movement in basis pomts for the mterest rate sensitivity analysis 1 based on the cursently observable market environment. Though there 15 exposure on accoual of Interest rate
movement os shown sbove but the Group mimmises the forergn currency {US dellar) unerest rate exposure through denvanves and INR interest rate exposure through re-financing

(i) Forcign Currency Risk

Foreym carrency misk 15 the risk thet the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes 1n foreign exchange rates The Group 15 exposed to forewgn curency nsk
ansing from mports of goods m US dollars The Group hedges s exposure to fluctaations on the translation o INR of its buyer's / supplier's credst by ustng foreign currency swaps and forward
contracts ‘The Group has followed a conservative approach for hedgmg the foreign currency nisk 50 &5 to not use complex forex derivatives and forsign currency loar, The Group also momiors that

Jortal

the hedges do not exceed the underlying foregn currency exposuce. The Group does not any spesula

b) Credit Risk

Credit risk from balances with banks 15 managed by Group's teasury department Envestuents, in the form of fixed depasits, loans and other mvestments, of surplus fonds are made only with banks
and financizl nstttions withm credit limits assigned to each counterparty Counterparty credi bimuts are reviewed by the Group's treasury department un hne with the approved investment pohey
The Imits ate set 10 minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitygate financial loss through counerparty's potential fadlure to make payments

(i) Trade Receivahles

Customer credrt risk 13 managed basis established policies of Group, procedures and controls relating 10 customer credst risk ¢ 0 d receivibles are regularly memtored.
The Group does not hold collateral as security  The group has majerly state utilihes/government entiies as its customers with high credit worthiness and therefore the group does not see any
significant nsk related to cradit

The credit quality of the customers 15 evaluated based on thesr credit ratings and other pubhely avadable data

The Group has esablished a provisson matris that 1 based on its hustoncal crednt loss expenence, adusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment and
imparrment analysts 18 performed at each seporting date to measure expected credit losses The calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasensble and
supportable tformation that 1s avadlable at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economi¢ condihons

(i) Financiasl instruments and ceedit risk

Credst sk fom balances with banks 15 managed by Group's treasusy department. Investments, n the ferm of fixed deposits, loans and other mvestments, of surplus funds are made only with banks
and financial institutions withn credt hmis gned to each counterparty. Counterparty credit lumits are seviewed by the Group's treasury department 1a Iine with the approved investment pelicy
The lunits are set 1o munwse the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through counterpasty's potential farlure to make payments

{iii) Other financial assets
Credut rsk from other Bnancial assets including loans 15 managed basts established pohicies of Group, procedures and controls relating to credit sk r Qutstanding recewvables
are regularly monstored The Group does not hald collateral as security

—This space hes been left blank inteationally
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¢} Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilitics that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.
The approach of the Group to manage liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that these will have sufficient Yiquidity to meet their respective Liabilities when they are due, under
both nonmal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable lesses or risk damage to their reputation. The Group assessed the concentration of risk with respecl to
refinancing its debt and concluded it to be low. The Group has access to a sufficient variety of sources of fimding and debt maturing within 12 months can be rolled over with
existing lenders.

The Group rely mainly on long-term debt obfigations to find their construction activities. Te the extent available at acceptable terms, utilised non-recourse debt to fund a sigmficant
portion of the capital expenditures and investments required to construct and acquire our wind and solar power plants and related assets. The Group's non-recourse financing 1
desipned to lmit default risk and is a combination of fixed and variable interest rate instrurents. In addition, the debt is typically denommated m the currency that matches the
currency of the revenue expected to be generated from the henefiting project, thereby reducing currency visk. The majority of non-recourse debt 1s funded by banks and Tinancial
institutions, with debt capacity supptemented by nnsecured loan from related party.

Thé table below summarizes the maturity profile of financial liabilities of group based on contractual undiscounted payrents:

;: ll\]';nrch 2005 On demand ](::’::;': 3 3 to12 months | 1105 years MU:::;::‘H § Total
Borrowings

Non convertible debentures (secured)” - - - 48,650 8303 57013
Compulsorily convertible debentures - - - 15,601 40,3068 55969
Optionally convertible debentures* 785 7.012 7798
I'erm lean from banks* - - 1,53.856 29,559 1,83415
Loans from financial institutions* - - - 1.62.887 149,627 312514
Semior secured notes* - - - 86,764 37,047 1,23810
Loans from related party - 3,760 8,150 11910
Short term borrowings

Acceptances (secured) - 41,652 13,836 - - 55488
T'erm loan from banks apd financin] institutions (secured} - - - - - .
Working capital term loan (secured) - 12,030 6,640 - - 18670
Buyer's / Supplier's credit - 3373 733 - - 4106
Other financial liabilities

Lease liabilities - 176 771 3,353 25,143 29442
Currend mawrities of long term borrowings® - 25,622 74.147 - - 99,769
Interest accrued but not due on bosrowings - 944 1,972 - - 2915
Interest accrued but not due on debentures - 2,924 - g 2524
Capital creditors - 33,012 - - - 33012
Purchase consideration payable - 44 - - - 44
Trade payables

Trade payables - 7,801 - - - 7861
:: ;;mh _— On demand Le;iﬂ’:l: > |3t012 months| 1 to5 years M";‘;;'r':“ 5 Total
Borrowings

‘Non convertible debentures {(secured)* - - - 61,883 7,463 69,346
Compulsorily convertible debentures - - - 8,064 38.287 46351
Optionally convertible debentures*® 785 7.200 7,994
Term loan from banks* - - 1,54,033 35,001 1,89,035
Laans from financial institutions* N - - 1,60,069 1.47,384 3,07453
Senior secured notes* - - - 91,206 38,178 1,26384
Loans from related party . 3,578 6,373 5,951
Short term borrewings

Acceptances (secured) - 17,822 9,858 - - 27,680
Term loan from banks and financial institutions (secured) - 1,604 - - - 1,600
Buyer's / Supplier's credit (secured) - 6,799 4,450 - - 11,249
Working capital term loan (secured) B 9,603 1,520 - - 11,123
Other financial liabilities

Lease liabilities . 196 701 2,991 24,576 28465
Cwrent maturities of long term borrowings® 680 16,901 63,257 - - 80838
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings . 944 1,366 - - 2,309
Interest accrued bui not due on debentures - 216 619 - - 836
Capital creditors - 40,092 - - - 40,092
Purchase consideration payable - 44 - " - 44
Trade payables

Trade payables - 8,765 - - - 3,765

* {ncluding futare interest payments
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48 Capital management
For the purpose of the capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, compulsorily converfible debentures, compulsorily convertible preference shares, Sccurities
premium and all other equity teserves attributable to the equity holders of the parent. The primary objective of the Group’s management is to maximise the shareholder value

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in cconomic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants.

To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, retun capital 1o sharcholders or issue new shares. The Group monitor capital
using & pearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Group mmcludes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings and other payables, kss cash
and shori-term deposits. Group systematically evaluates opportunities for managing its assets including that of buying new assets, partially or entirely sell existing assels and
potential new joint ventures. Crystallisation of any such opporfunity shall help the Group in improving the overall portfolio of assets, cash flow management and sharehelder relums

The policy of the Group is to keep the pearing ratio of the power project to 3:1 during the construction phase and nim to enhance it to 4:1 post the construction phase. This is in line
with the indusiry standard ratio. The curent gearing ratios of the various projects in the Group 15 between 3:1 to 4:1. Tn order to achieve this overall objective, the capital
management of the Group, amongst other things, aims to ensure that they meet financial covenants attached 1o the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that defing capital stmicture
requirements

There are no anremediated breaches of the covenants on any interest bearing loans and borrowings as at March 31, 2025 and 2024.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended 31 March 2025 and 2024,
49 Commitments Liabilities and Contingencies (to the extent not provided for)

(i) Contimgent liabilities

Description asjat Asat

31 March 2025 31 March 1024
Contingent liabilitics on account of Liquidated damages for delay in project commissioning for which no materiat lishility is expected 184 484
Further, the management believes that amy amount of liquidated damages to be fevied by customer shall be entirely reimbursable from
capital vendors of respective projects.
Contingent labilities on account of transmission penalties for inability to execute or delays in executtion of projects - 1,283
Income tex disallowances / demands under litigation 257 190
Others™ 2,983 759

# The Group is contesting demands of direct and indirect taxes and the management, including its tax advisers, believe that its positions will likely be upheld in the appellate process
No fax expensc has been accrued in the fi ial stat ts for the 4 ds raised.

~inghudes (a) Disputes related to Jand; (b) Water tax on Elecwicity Generation Act, 2012 (c) Periphery charges (March 31, 2025: INR 1,114; Mareh 31, 2024 INR Nill; (d)
Compensation for short-supply; and (¢} Forecasting, Scheduling, Deviation Settlement Mechanism (DSM Reg lations, 2018) ete,

(i) Commitments:
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for

At 31 March 2025, the Group has capital commitment (net of advances) pertaining to commissioning of wind & solar energy projects of INR 48,326 (31 March 2024 56,857).

Guarantees

The Group has obtained guarantees from financial institutions as a part of the bidding process for cstablishing renewable projects. Further, the Group issues imgvocable performance
bank guarantees in relation to its obligation towards constraction and transmission infrastructure of reagwable power projects plants as required by the PPA and such outstanding
goarantees are INR 48,017 as at 31 March 2025 {31 March 2024 INR 31,733).

The terms of the PPAs provide for the delivery of & minimum quantum ef electricity at fized prices.

50 Legal matters

(a) Dispute with Southern Power Distribution Company of Andhra Pradesh Limited

Certain subsidiary companies (AP entities} have entered into long-term PPAs having a cumulative capacity of 777 MWs (wind and solar encrgy projects) with Southemn Power
Distribution Company of Andhra Pradesh Limited i.e. the distribution company of Andhra Pradesh (APDISCOM). These PPAs have a fixed rate per unit of efectricity for the 25-
year term. With regard to aforementioned PPAs, certain litigations as described below are currently onderway;

1. In terms of the Generation Based Tncentive {(GB1) scheme of the Ministry of Renewable Energy (MNRE), the AP entities acerue income based on units of power supplied under
the aforementioned PPAs. Andhra Pradesh Electricity Regulatory Commission (APERC) vide its order in July 2018 allowed APDISCOMS to mterpret the Andhra Pradesh
Electricity Regulatory Commission (Terms and Conditions for Tasiff Determination for Wind Power Projecis) Regalations, 2015 (Regulations) in a manner to treat GBI as apass
throuph in the tariff,

The AP entities filed writ petition before the Andhra Pradesh High Court (AP High Court) challenging the vires of the regulation and the order by APERC and were granted an
interim stay order m August 2018 thereby directing APDISCOM not to deduct GBI from future billings from date of the order, though AP DISCOMs continue to deduct the same,

In another matter addressing a similar issue, the Hon’ble Appellate Tribunal for Electricity, vide its judgment dated December 19, 2024 in Appeal No. 284 of 2018 titled Green Infra
Wind Solations Limited v. APERC & Ors. has ordered the AP DISCOM:s not to reduce the PPA price for the GBI benefit accming to the power gencrators and to refund the
amounts deducted along with an interest of 12%a per annnm. Pursuant thereto, the AP DISCOMs have filed Civil Appeal No. 4495 of 2025 before the Supreme Court, which is
pending verification and listing. The Group has filed Impleadment Application to include all AP Entities before the Supreme Court, with the objective that, AP entities get similar
relief as Green Infra in the Civil Appeal before the Supreme Court. As at March 31, 2025, the cumulative amoient recoverable related to GBI deductions from the APDISCOM
included in trade receivables amounts 1o INR 5,237 (Mavch 31, 2024: INR 4,598).

The management, basis its assessment, judicial precedent and the practice followed consistently in other states, believes that the GBI benefit is over and above the applicable tariffs
and the APERC does not have jurisdiction to interfere with the mtent of GBI scheme. Therefore, the outstanding amount is recoverable and continues to be recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.
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3 The Government of Andhra Pradesh (GoAP) 1ssued an order (GO) dated Huly 1, 2019 constituting a High-Level Negotiation Committee (HLNC) for review and negotiation of
tariff for wind and solar energy projects i the state of Andhira Pradesh. Pursuant to the GO, APDISCOM issued letters dated July 11, 2019 and July 12, 2019 10 the AP entities
requesting for revision of tariffs as agreed in the PPAs. The AP entities filed a writ petition before the AP High Court challenging the GO and the same was finally dispesed by the
division bench of the AP High Court in favour of the Gronp. APDISCOMs have challenged the erder before the Hon’ble Supreme Court of Indiz whch is pending finsl adjudication.
Following the orders of the High Court, the APDISCOMs have released payments to the Group but has made certain deductions on account of tariff adjustment due to excess power
supplied.

The Group has filed an application before APERC for release of the amounts deducted As at March 31, 2025, the cumulative amount recoverable from the APDISCOM 1n relation
to this matter meluded in trade receivables amounts to INR 3,627 (March 31, 2024: INR 3,064).

In view of the favourable order by the AP High Court and basis the internal analysis, management belicves that it bas strong merits in the case and no additional adjustreent is
reguired in the consolidated financial statements.

(b) Dispute with Karnataka Electricity Regulatory Commission

ReNew Wind Energy (Karnataka) Private Limited and ReNew Wind Energy (AP) Private Limited, subssdizries of the Group, set up projecis to supply electricity for captive use by
their shareholders. The KERC, through a circular dated September 18, 2018, directed the KESCOMs and Karnataka Power Transmission Corporation Limited to monitor the status
of group captive generators/ consuiners to ensure that they have acquired the status of group captive penerators/ consumers and to verify the compliance of their consnmption of
electricity with the Edectneity Rules, 2005, and to levy cross subsidy surcharge (CS8') and electricity tax differential on captive users drawing power from captive generating plants
1 case of any violation Pursuand fo and basis the Septerber 18, 2018 circular, ESCOMs issued demand fettets to the captive users of the Company’s subsidianies specified above,
seeking recovery of cross subsidy surcharge and differential of applicable electricity tax due to failure of compliance with the Electricity Rules, 2005 The Group filed writ peqtions
challenging the circular and the demand letters and against the ESCOMs (“Kamataka Writs™) and separate petifions before the KERC for quashing the demand lettexs {(“Karnataka

Petitions”}
The Karnataka High Coust, in its interim orders dated July 18, 2019, and September 18, 2020, ordered the Karnataka electricity supply comparics {KESCOMs3} o refruin from
takmg any precipitative action agamst captive users. Thereafter, the KERC disposed of the Karnatska petitions based on the principles laid down by the Appellate Tribunal For

Electricity (APTEL') in its judgment dated June 7, 2021, in the case of Tamil Nadu Power Producers Association vs. Tamil Nadu Electricity Regulatory Commussion and ethers.
KERC declared that the plant maintained its compliance as a captive generating plant for FY 2017-18, except for FY 2013-14 and FY 2015-16.

On Octeber 9, 2023, the Supreme Court notified its judgment in Civil Appeal Nos. 8527-852% of 2069 i the matter of M/s Dakshin Gujarat Vij Company Luted, uphotding the test
of proportionality on a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV), which was otherwise exempted, and reversing the judgment in the case of Tamil Nadu Power Producers Association vs.
Tamil Nadu Electricity Regulatory Cermmission and others.

In December 2023, the KESCOMs challenged the KERC order before the APTEL, which is pending final adjudication.

The Group has also filed a Writ Petition before Karnataka High Court challenging the levy of CS5, since the levy was intended to be a temporary provision and were supposed 10 be
reduced progressively in subsequent years. The Group believes that smee there was no levy of cross-subsidy surcharge since FY 2009-2012, it cannot be re-intreduced as per the
mtent of the Act.

The pleadings are completed and the matter is listed for final arguments. Further, the responsibility of drawing power in proportion to the sharehelding was squarely on the
consumers and hence as per the PPAs, it cannot be recovered from the Group, Neither a demand has been received tll date nor does the Group expect any material demand in futare.

Basis internal cvaluation, management believes that there are merits in its position and that the demand raised by distribution companics would be utimately rescinded and heace no
adjustment has been made in the consolidated financial statements in this regard.
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51 Hedging activities and derivatives
Derivatives designated as hedging instruments

The Group uses cerain types of derivative financial instruments (viz forwards contracts, swaps, call options and call spreads) to nanage / mingate its exposure to foreign exchange
and interest risk Further, the Ciroup designates such derivative financial instruments {or its components) as hedging instramests for hedging the exchange rate fluctuanon and
interest risk attributable to either a recognised item or a highly probable forecast transaction {*Cash flow hedge’).

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivative financial instruments (or its components) that ave designated and qualify as cash flow hedges, are recognised in the
ather comprehensive income and beld in hedge reserve - a component of equity. Any gains / {losses) relating to the ineffective portion, are recognised immediately m the statement
af profit or loss within finance incore / finance costs The amounts sccumulated in equity for highly probable forecast transaction are added to carrying value of non financul asset
ar non financial Kability as basis adjustment, other amounts accumulated in equity are re-classified to the statement of profit or Joss in the years when the hedged item affects profit
or Joss.

Af any point of wme, when a forecast transaction is no Jonger expected to ocour, the cumnulative gains / (losses) that were reported in equity is immediately transferred to the
statement of profit or loss.
Cash flow hedges

Hedge has been taken against exposure to foreign currency risk and variable interest outflow on External commercial borrowings, Fareign Letter of Credirs sad highly probable
{orecast transactions, Terms of the derivative contracts and their respective impact on OCT and statement of profit or loss is as below-

Loan
Pay fixed INR and receive USD and pay fixed mterest at 4.68%¢ 10 9.79% p.a. and receive 4 variable interest at 3 months SOFR plus 2.61%0 p.a.. SOFR plus 2.25% p.a., SOFRA plus
25 pa. TONA plos 1 4% p.a. and fixed interest at 2.88%0 to 7.10% p.a. on the notional amount.

Senior secured noies (incleded in long term interest-bearing loans and borrowings)
Pay fixed INR and receive USD and pay fixed interest in INR at 0.91% to 0.38% p.a. and receive a fixed interest in USD at 0.85%t0 7.95% on the notional amount.
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The cash flow hedges through Cross Currency Swap {(CCS) of USD 1,892 (March 31, 2024; USD 1580), CCS of JPY 11,845 (March 31, 2024: JPY Nilj CCS of EURO Nil (March
31, 2024: EUR 38), Coupon Only Swap (COS) of USD 851 (March 31, 2024: USD 820), Principal Only Swap (POS) of USD 311 (March 31, 2024: USD 355) and Call Sptead of
USD 450 {March 31, 2023 USD 430), call spread of CNH 202 (March 3, 2024: Nil) foreign currency call options of USD Nil (March 31, 2024: USD 658) and foreign curency
forwards of USD 167 (March 31, 2024: INR 181}, EUR 2 (March 31, 2024: EUR 13} and CNH 2,512 (March 31,2024: CNH 3,135} outstanding at the year ended March 31, 2023
were assessed to be highly effective and s mark to market (Joss)/jzain of INR 287 (March 31, 2024 INR (378), March 31, 2023; INR 2,249) with a deferred tax liability/(Asset) of
INR 91 (March 31, 2024: INR (82), March 31, 2023: INR 564} is included in OCL

~ All of the cash flow hedges were fully effective during the years ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024.

- All of the underlying foreign currency and floating interest rate exposure is fully hedged with cash flow hedges as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2024.
The expiry dates of cash flow hedge deals range between April 2, 2025 1o July 17, 2028,

Foreign currency and Interest rate risk

Forward contracts, Swaps, Call Option and Call Spresd measured at fair value throngh OCI are designated as hedging instruments in cash flow hedges of interest and prncipal
payments in USD/CNH.

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Assels Liabilities Assets Liabilities
Derivative contracts designated as hedging instruments - Non-current 3,163 217 2,561 215
Derivative contracts designated as hedging instraments - Carrent 3,932 604 o270 321
Hedge reserve movement
a) Cash flow hedge reserve 31 March 2028 31 March 2024
Opening balance (after non-controlling interest) (163) 1,352
Gain / (loss} recognised on cash flow hedges 2,689 {2,878)
(Ginin) / loss reclassified to profit or loss (under head finance cests) {2,050) 580
(Gain) / loss reclassified to profit or loss on unwinding of derivative coniract (12 (11)
(Gain) / Joss reclassified ta non financial assets or Liabilities a3 basis adjusument (under head property, plant and squipment} (718) (75)
(Gain) / loss reclassified to profit or loss as hedged future cash flows are no longer expected to occur - -
Income tax relating on cash flow hedges™ {11) 614
Closing balance 267y (218)
Less: Non-controlling interest movement 29 53
Closing balance (after non-controdling intercst) (238) (165)
b) Cost of hedge reserve on cash flow hedges
Opening balance (after non-controlling interest) (2,031) (2,469)
Effective portion of changes m fair value (1,933) (3,169)
Amount reclassified to profit or loss as option premium amortisation (under head finance costs) 1,245 2,293
(Gain) / toss reclpssified to profit or loss on unwinding of derivative contract 400
Loss reclassified to non-finangial asscts or linbilities as basis adjustment (under head property, plant and equipment) 2,624 1,178
(Giain) / Toss reclassified to profit or loss as hedged future cash flows are no longer expected to oceur = =
Income tax relating to cost of hedge reserve* {439 (264)
Closing balance (574) (2,031}
Less: Non-contrelling interest movement - =
Closing balance (after nen-controlling interest) (574) (2,031)
{¢) Total Hedge reserve movement (a+b)
Opening balance {after non-controlling interest) (2,196} 917
OCT for the year (72) 2,158)
{Gain) / loss reclassified to non-financiat assets or liabilities as basis
adjustment (uider head property, plant and equipment), nst of tax 1,427 827
Attributable to non-controlling interests 29 33

Cloging balance (after non-controlling interest) (812) (2,196)
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52 Joint arrangements

(a) Interest in joint ventures

i} 3E NV along with its subsidiaries are engaged in SaaS business of (i) asset optimization and analytics of renewable enctgy assets including energy storage, covering the asset’s
entire lfe cycle, and (i} the supply of verious expert services for engineering, technical and strategic decision support m the area of renewable energy. The Group classified its
interest in 3E NV os a joint venture on account of equal representation by both the parties on the Board of 3E NV and the decisions about its relevant activities requiring unanimots
consent of both the parties sharing control, During the year ended March 31, 2023, the Group has increased its holding in 3E from 40% to 78% without gaining control over the
entity at an additonal consideration of INR 1,412 (including loan conversion into equity of INR 224) for the same. The Group decided to sell its stake in 3E NV and consequently,
the mvestment has been disclosed as “assets held for sale” in the consolidated financial statements

During the year ended March 31, 2024, the Group accounted for its share of loss of INR 145 relating to the post acquisition profit/ loss of 3E NV For the period starting from April
1, 2024 upto the date of decision to classify it as held for sale, the Group's share of loss in 3E NV was not material and hence the same was not accounted for. The carying vilue of
Group's investment m 3E NV as at March 31, 2025 of INR 3,868 (including goodwill of INR 3,518) is being shown as assets held for sale. While in the previous year, the same was
included under ‘Investments” with a carrying value of INR 2,456 {including goodwill of INR 2,366). Besides aforementioned, additional financial mformation of 3E NV s not

abarinl

ii) The Group on August 5, 2022 entered mto a joind venture agreement with Fluence Energy Singapore Pre. Ltd., to jointly establish a lithium ion Battery Energy Storage System
(BESS) mtegration business in Iudia including the sale, distribution and marketing of the technology and servicing the projects. The agreement prescribes the committed finding
ameunt of USD 10, which shall be split evenly between the parties. Accordingly, the RPL has contributed USD 5 {INR 412} to the entity, Fluence India ReNew IV Private Limited
(Fluence). Based ¢n the terms contained in agreement this transaction has been classified as joint venture. The Group’s interest in the JV entity 15 accounted for using the equity
method in these consolidated financial stat ts. Draring the year ended March 31, 2025, the Group recopmised a loss of INR 27 in the consolidated statement of profit or loss as its
share in the post-acquisition losses of Fluence {March 31, 2024: INR Nil). Accordingly, the carrying value of investment in Fluence as at March 31, 2025 is INR 379 (March 31,
2024; INR 406), There are no material assets and liabilities

iii) The Compamny entered into an agreement on July 27, 2023 with Indian Oil Corporation of India (TOCL) and Larsen & Toubro Limited (L&T) to form a joint controlled entity
namety 'GH4 Indin Private Limited' (“GH4") incorporated under the laws of India. The aforesatd entity was incorporated with the purpose of developing (includmg construction)

green hydrogen (and its derivatives including green ammonia, methanol, ete.), production assets, associated renewable asset. The Company invested INR 10 10 acquire 33 33%
equity stake in GH4 Based on the terms contained in agreement this transection has been classified as joint venture. The Group's interest in the JV cntity is accounted for using the
equity method in these consolidated financial stat 1ts. During the year ended March 31, 2025, the Group recognised a loss of INR Nil (March 31, 2024 loss of INR 10} in the

consolidated statement of profit ot loss as its share in the post-acquisition losses of GH4. Accordingly, the carrying value of investment in GH4 as at March 31, 2025 stands at INR
Nil (March 31,2024 INR Nil} . There are no material assets and liabilities.

{b) Associates

ii) The Company has significant influence over 'ReNew Green Projects Pte Limited' and owns 15% interest in the aforementioned entity, which is engaged m business of carhon
credits peneration via carbon investment projects outside India. The country of mcorporation and principal place of busmess of the associate is in Singapore. The interesf in the
associate is not significant to the Group.

ii) The Group through its subsidiary ReNew Power International Limited' has 25%% interest in Climate Connect Digital, which is in the busmess of providing data-driven
decarbonization solutions. The country of incorporation and principal place of business of the assosiate is in United Kingdom. The interest in the associate 15 not significant to the

(c) Joint operations R

The Group has 50° interest in & joint arrangement called VG DTL Transmissions Private Limited which was set up together with KP Energy Limited to develop evacuation facility
for the SECI 111 project in the state of Gujarat. The country of incorporation and principal place of business of the joint operation 15 in India. The interest in joint operatiop is not
significant to the Group.
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33 Accoumting for transmission line projects entered into by the Group
During the year ended March 31, 2023, the Grouwp through its subsidiaries engaged in transmission business wherein the subsidiaries had entered into Transmission
Services Agreements {TSA) with the Government (Grantor) on BOOM and/or Build, Own, Operate and Transfer (BOOT) basis. The Group through its subsidiaries
acts as a transmission licensee.

{a) Accounting for transmission line BOOM projects

The TSAs have been entered for ferm of 35 years, as against the asset’s useful life of 50 years, and as per the terms of the T8A the Group is responsibls for
constructing the Transmission project, then operating and maintaining these Transmission projects and make therm available for use by the Grantor for the entire TSA
period. TSAs have a fixed annual levelized tanfF for 35 years’ period, subject only to the Group ensuring minimum specified availability of the asset and any
reduction in availability will lead to a downward revision in tanff for the relevant period.

Further, as per the eleetricity regulations applicable at the time of entering TSA, it was mandatory for the Group te held transmission license in order to trapsmit
electricity through its transmission line. In addition, even after the end of 35 vears period; the Govemment had the ability and right to (i) decide on the extension of
the TSA period, including the tariff to be charged or (ii) appoint another operator to operate the infrastructure.

Accordingly, the aforesaid TSA(s), read together with the prevailing regulations, were assessed to be Service Concession Agreements covered under Appendix-D Ind
AS 115Service Concession Arrangements' and were accounted for using the financial asset model under Appendix-Id nd AS 115'Service Concession
Arrangements’.

Subsequently, in January 2024, there are changes in the applicable regulations allowing companies which have entered into TSA under the BOOM model to
ingdependently operate the infrastricture without any grantor involvernent, including determine tariff for its usage after the TSA term of 35 vears. As a result of the
changes mn the regutations, afer the TSA period, the Government no longer has the ability and night to (i) decide on the extension of the TSA period, inclucding the
tariff to be charged or (ii) appoint another operator to operate the infrastructure. Based on the Group’s analysis of changes i the regalation duly supported by an
external legal advice, these changes in the regulation alsc apply to all pre-existing TSAs and thus the Group now will have exclusive control over the residual
interest, which it has assessed fo be significant, Consequentially, the TSA no longer qualifies to be a Service Concession Agreement under Appendix-D Ind AS
115, 'Service Concession Arrangements’ [n the absence of any clear guidance under Appendix-D Ind AS 115,'Service Concession Arrangements’, the management has
referred guidance under other Ind AS dealing with similar and related issues as well as most recent pronouncements of the other standard setting bodies particularly
lease modification accounting in Ind AS 116 as applicable to the lessor to deal with impact of change in the regulation. Accordingly, the management has applied
below accounting in this scenario:

(i) On the date of change in the regulations, the Group has derecognised the contract asset of INR 10,583 recognised toward services rendered till date and recogmised
PPE at its fair value. The difference between the fair value of the PPE so recognised and the derecopnised contract asset, which is a non-menetary government grant,
is not material. Subsequent construction cost, for the uncompleted projects, is being added to the PPE. The PPE, once ready to use, is depreciated ever its usefu} life
as per Ind AS 116.

(iiy The Group has also assessed that post change in regulation, the TSA would contain a lease element and a service element which woutd be separated and
accounted for in accordance with Ind AS 116 and Ind AS 115 respectively. The said lease will be in the nature of an operating lease (refer Note 40).

The Group has two projects under the BOOM model. Upto the date of change in regulations, the Group had recognised construetion revenues of INR 0987
{including INR 7,478 upto Marcl: 31, 2023} and operating and maintenance revenues of INR 0 {upto March 31, 2023: Nil} and consequential contract assets of INR
10,583 and trade receivables of INR %5 were existing on that date. The construction profit of INR 386 million (inchuding INR 289 upto March 31, 2023) for these
contracts was included in construction revenue recognised upto the date of change in the regulations. The Group had also recognised finance income on contract
assets of INR 691 (upto March 31, 2023: INR 152)

This space has been left blank intentionally




ReNew Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
{Amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

(b} Transmission Line projects accounted for under Appendix-I¥ Ind AS 115,"Service Concession Arrangements’
The TSAs have been entered for term of 35 years and as per the terms of the TSA, the Group 15 responsible for constructing the Transmission project, then operating
and owning these Transmussion projects for the entire concession period and thereafter transferning these projects to the grantor.

Such Transmission project have fixed annual levelised tariff as per terms of TSA and such arrangements fall under the purview Appendix-D Ind AS 115,'Service
Concession Arrangements’, 'Service Concession Arrangements’ and have been accounted as per financial asset model.

The change in regulation mentioned under (a) above does not impact TSAs covered under the BOOT model and accounting thereof as in these cases the Company is
obligated to transfer the assets to the grantor at the end of the TSA period.

{c} The movement of contract assets during the year ended 31 March 2025 and 2024 are sommarised below:

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Balance at the beginning of the year [.716 7
Recognition of contract assets pursuant to recognition of construction revenue* 933 4§52
Unwinding of contract assets (calculated at the rate of 7.06%0 p.a} 183 330
Derecognition of contract asset for BOOM projects (refer (a) above)** - (10,678)
Balance at the end of the year 2,832 1,716
Non-current
Current 2724 1,500

08 215

* includes profit of INR 34 (March 31, 2024: INR 161).
** includes INR Nil (March 31,2024: 95) which was transferred to trade receivable

{d) The transaction price allocated to the remaining construction activities and operation and maintenance services is approximately INR 873 and INR 632,
respectively (March 31, 2024 INR 661 and INR 632 respectively). As the construction activities progress, the performance obligations will continue to be fulfilled
and the remaining revenue would be recognised for projects covered under Appendix-I) Ind AS 115,'Service Concession Arrangements'. The Group expects to
complete the construction activities within next year. Further, operating and maintenance services shall be completed over the tenure of TSAs,

Subsequent events

On Jume 6, 2025, the Group through its subsidiaries, ReNew Solar Power Private Limited and ReMew Transmission Yentures Private Limited (together referred to a3
‘Sellers') have entered into share purchase agreement for sale of its entire stake in two subsidiaries namely, ReNew Surya Aayan Private Limited (solar power
segment) and Koppal Narendra Transmission Limited {transmission line segment) respectively to Indi Grid (Buyer). Subsequently, the Gronp lost control over the
aforementioned subsidiaries on June 24, 2025 and the carrying value of the net assets disposed was not materially different from the sales consideration received

The Group has evaluated subsequent events through July 29, 2025, which is the date when the consolidated financial statements were authorised for issuance. There
are no events which would require any material adjustments or disclosures in these consolidated financial stalements,
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